
September 28, 2021 City of Guadalupe Council Meeting Agenda  Page 1 of 5 

 

 

City of Guadalupe 
 

AGENDA 
 

Regular Meeting of the Guadalupe City Council 
 

Tuesday, September 28, 2021, at 6:00 pm 

City Hall, 918 Obispo Street, Council Chambers 
 

 

The City Council meeting will broadcast live on Charter Spectrum Cable Channel 20. 
 

All persons attending the City Council meeting are required to wear nose and face masks regardless of 

vaccination status when indoors in public setting, with limited exceptions pursuant to County of Santa 

Barbara Health Officer Order No. 2021-10.3. 
 

If you choose not to attend the City Council meeting but wish to make a comment during oral 

communications or on a specific agenda item, please submit via email to juana@ci.guadalupe.ca.us no 

later than 1:00 pm on Tuesday, September 28, 2021. 
 

Please be advised that, pursuant to State Law, any member of the public may address the City Council concerning any 
item on the Agenda, before or during Council consideration of that item.  If you wish to speak on any item on the agenda, 
including any item on the Consent Calendar or the Ceremonial Calendar, please submit a speaker request form for that 
item. If you wish to speak on a matter that is not on the agenda, please do so during the Community Participation Forum. 
 
The Agenda and related Staff reports are available on the City’s website: www.ci.guadalupe.ca.us Friday before Council 
meeting. 
 
Any documents produced by the City and distributed to a majority of the City Council regarding any item on this agenda 
will be made available the Friday before Council meetings at the Administration Office at City Hall 918 Obispo Street, 
Monday through Friday between 8:00 am and 4:30 pm, and also posted 72 hours prior to the meeting.  The City may 
charge customary photocopying charges for copies of such documents. Any documents distributed to a majority of the 
City Council regarding any item on this agenda less than 72 hours before the meeting will be made available for inspection 
at the meeting and will be posted on the City’s website and made available for inspection the day after the meeting at 
the Administrator Office at City Hall 918 Obispo Street, Monday through Friday between 8:00 am and 4:30 pm. 
 
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this meeting, 
including review of the Agenda and related documents, please contact the Administration Office at (805) 356.3891 at 
least 72 hours prior to the meeting.  This will allow time for the City to make reasonable arrangements to ensure 
accessibility to the meeting. 

 

1. ROLL CALL:  
 

  Council Member Liliana Cardenas 

  Council Member Gilbert Robles 

  Council Member Eugene Costa Jr. 

Mayor Pro Tempore Tony Ramirez 

  Mayor Ariston Julian 

 

mailto:juana@ci.guadalupe.ca.us
http://www.ci.guadalupe.ca.us/


September 28, 2021 City of Guadalupe Council Meeting Agenda  Page 2 of 5 

 

 

2. MOMENT OF SILENCE 

 

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 

4. AGENDA REVIEW 

At this time the City Council will review the order of business to be conducted and receive requests 
for, or make announcements regarding, any change(s) in the order of business.  
 

5. CEREMONIAL CALENDAR  
 

• Swearing in Michael Kuhbander, Police Officer  
 

6. PRESENTATION 
 

• Santa Barbara County Department of Public Health – Tobacco Prevention Program 
  

7. COMMUNITY PARTICIPATION FORUM 

Each person will be limited to a discussion of three (3) minutes or as directed by the Mayor.  
Pursuant to provisions of the Brown Act, no action may be taken on these matters unless they are 
listed on the agenda, or unless certain emergency or special circumstances exist.  City Council may 
direct staff to investigate and/or schedule certain matters for consideration at a future City Council 
meeting. 

 

8. CONSENT CALENDAR  

The following items are presented for City Council approval without discussion as a single agenda 
items in order to expedite the meeting.  Should a Council Member wish to discuss or disapprove an 
item, it must be dropped from the blanket motion of approval and considered as a separate item. 

 
A. Waive the reading in full of all Ordinances and Resolutions. Ordinances on the Consent 

Calendar will be adopted by the same vote cast as the first meeting, unless City Council 
indicates otherwise. 
 

B. Approve payment of warrants for the period ending September 23, 2021. 
 

C. Approve the Minutes of the City Council special meeting of August 26, 2021, to be ordered 

filed. 

 

D. Approve the Minutes of the City Council regular meeting of September 14, 2021, to be 

ordered filed.  

 

E. Approve the amended scope of work and budget for agreement with Los Amigos de 

Guadalupe (LADG).  

 

 

 



September 28, 2021 City of Guadalupe Council Meeting Agenda  Page 3 of 5 

 

F. MONTHLY REPORTS FROM DEPARTMENT HEADS 
 

1. Department of Public Safety Reports – August 2021 

a. Police Department Report 
b. Fire Department Report 
c. Code Compliance Report 

2. Human Resources Report for August 2021 

3. City Treasurer’s Report for August 2021 

 

9. CITY ADMINISTRATOR REPORT: (Information Only) 

 

10. DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC SAFETY REPORT: (Information Only) 

 

11. MAYOR’S REPORT- UPDATES  

 

REGULAR BUSINESS 
 

12. Temporary Appointments of Councilmember, Committee, Commission or Community 
Representative to Ad hoc groups. 
 
Written Report: Todd Bodem, City Administrator 
Recommendation: That the Mayor and City Council nominate temporary appointments from the 
City Council and various committees/commissions/community/staff to the following ad hoc 
committees: 

• City Hall Auditorium Renovation Ad hoc Committee 

• T-Mobil Hometown Techover Program $50,000 Grant Ad hoc Committee 
 

PUBLIC HEARING 

 

13. Short-Term Rentals Ordinance.  

 

Written Report: Philip Sinco, City Attorney 

Recommendation: That the City Council introduce on the first reading, and continue to its 

meeting on October 12, 2021, for second reading and adoption, an ordinance regulating short-term 

rentals in the City of Guadalupe and amending various provisions of Title 18 (Zoning) of the 

Guadalupe Municipal Code.  

 

14. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 

 

15. ANNOUNCEMENTS - COUNCIL ACTIVITY/COMMITTEE REPORTS 

 

16. ADJOURNMENT  

 
 



September 28, 2021 City of Guadalupe Council Meeting Agenda  Page 4 of 5 

 

I hereby certify under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing 
amended agenda was posted on the City Hall display case and website not less than 72 hours prior to the 
meeting.  Dated this 24th day of September 2021. 
 
 
 

___________________________________ 
Todd Bodem, City Administrator 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

Todd Bodem 



September 28, 2021 City of Guadalupe Council Meeting Agenda  Page 5 of 5 

 

PROPOSED FUTURE CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS 
 
 

 

Council Meeting:  Date and Subject Department Agenda Category 

Tuesday, October 5, 2021, at 6:00 pm / Special Meeting  

American Rescue Plan Funds - Workshop  Workshop 

   

Tuesday, October 12, 2021, at 6:00 pm / Regular Meeting 

Contract Award – Preparation of the EIR for the 
General Plan Update 

Planning Department Regular Business 

Short-Term Rentals Ordinance – Second Reading City Attorney Consent Calendar 

Water & Sewer Rates  Public Works/City 
Engineer 

Regular Business 

Adopting the 2021 Water Master Plan Update 
prepared by MKN & Associates 

Public Works/City 
Engineer 

Consent Calendar  

   

Tuesday, October 26, 2021, at 6:00 pm / Regular Meeting 

   

   

   

Tuesday, November 9, 2021, at 6:00 pm / Regular Meeting 

   

   

   

Other Unscheduled Items Proposed Date 
of Item 

Department Agenda Category 

City Hall Repairs   New Business 

Tree Ordinance  Public Works New Business 

Sidewalk Vending Ordinance  Planning Department New Business 

Vacant Property Ordinance  Administration Dept New Business 

Sign Ordinance  Planning Dept New Business 

Pasadera Public Infrastructure Dedication  Public Works Dept New Business 

Food Truck and Special Event Ordinance  Planning Dept New Business 

Gift Policy  City Attorney New Business 

Master Fee Schedule CPI FY 2021-22  Finance Department Workshop 

Planning/Building Tracking Software   Planning Dept. New Business 

Joint Meeting – Guadalupe City Council & 
Guadalupe Union School District Board 

TBD  Future Meeting 

Joint Meeting – Guadalupe City Council & 
Recreation and Parks Commission  

TBD  Future Meeting 

Pasquini Lease Agreement  City Attorney / Public 
Works 

Consent Calenda 

Public Hearing Proposed Water & Sewer 
Rates (First Reading Ordinance) 

Nov. 23, 2021 Public Works/City 
Engineer 

Public Hearing 

Second Reading – Ordinance Proposed 
Water & Sewer Rates  

Dec. 14, 2021 Public Works/City 
Engineer 

Consent Calendar 



Guadalupe Tobacco 
Control Policies

Santa Barbara County Department of Public Health - Tobacco 
Prevention Program

Agenda Item No. 6



History
• After 4 city council meetings, 

ordinance passed on July 
28th, 2020

• Includes:
⚬ Smoke-free Multiunit 

Housing 
⚬ Smoke-free Air
⚬ Flavored Tobacco Ban

￭ Minimum Pack/Price
⚬ Tobacco Retail License



Ordinance No. 2020-489

On July 14, 2020 Guadalupe City Council conducts a second reading 
of the ordinance, adding:

Licensure of Tobacco 
Retailers

Flavored Tobacco Ban

Chapter 5.53
Regulates smoking in 
multi-unit housing & 

public spaces

Chapter 8.70



Ordinance No. 2020-489

On July 14, 2020 Guadalupe City Council conducts a second reading 
of the ordinance, adding:

Licensure of Tobacco 
Retailers

Flavored Tobacco Ban

Chapter 5.53
Regulates smoking in 
multi-unit housing & 

public spaces

Chapter 8.70



No Smoking in 
Multiunit Housing

Smoking is no longer allowed inside your apartment, 
townhouse, condonimium, duplex etc. or outside on 

balcony, porch, deck etc.



Multiunit Housing: Useful Definitions

Unit = Individual apartment, condominium, townhouse etc.
-personal dwelling space, even where lacking cooking facilities or private 
plumbing facilities
-includes any associated exclusive-use enclosed area or unenclosed area: 
balcony, porch, deck, or patio 

Multiunit residence
-property containing two (2) or more units, including but not limited to: 
apartment buildings, condominium complexes, senior and assisted living 
facilities, hotels/motels 



No Smoking: Multiunit Housing
Smoking is prohibited in:
• Individual apartments, 

condominiums, townhouses etc. 
(units)

• exclusive-use indoor and outdoor 
areas 
⚬ private balcony 
⚬ porch
⚬ deck
⚬ patio



Multiunit Housing: Buffer Zones

Smoking is prohibited in outdoor 
property located within 20 feet in 
any direction of any doorway, 
window, opening, or other vent 
into a multiunit residence

20 feet



Resources for MUH Managers

Model Lease Addendum - American Nonsmokers Rights 
Foundation

Signage for around your MUH complex



After January 28th, 2021 every seller of a 
multiunit residence unit shall provide 
prospective buyers with written notice 
clearing stating: 
1) Smoking is prohibited in units
2) Smoking is prohibited in common areas 
except those specifically designated as 
smoking areas

Person(s) with legal control over common 
areas shall post "No Smoking" Signs. 
• The absence of signs WILL NOT be a 

defense to a violation of any provision 
in this ordinance

Notice & Signage

20



• Enforcement: Department of Public Safety or its 
designee, peace officer, or code enforcement official

• Each incident of smoking in violation of this chapter 
= $100 fine

• All other violations subject to civil action punishable 
by fine anywhere from $250 - $1,000

• Violations will be public nuisances 

Penalties & Enforcement



Enforcement 
Tips

Send a Letter to 
Residents01
Post Signs02
Loop residents into 
your work03
Decide on a plan for 
smoking complaints 
& violations

04

Document reported 
violations05
Encourage 
community 
compliance

06

American Nonsmokers Rights 
Foundation: Enforcement Tips 
for Building Managers and Staff 



No Smoking: Indoor & 
Outdoor Public Places



No Smoking in Public 
Spaces
Areas you cannot smoke in include: 

• City Facilities

• Indoor and outdoor areas
⚬ places of employment
⚬ dining areas
⚬ recreational areas
⚬ private smokers' lounges
⚬ retail and wholesale tobacco shops
⚬ common areas of multiunit residences
⚬ public places



Reasonable 
Distance Required

Smoking in any outdoor area 
must be at a reasonable 

distance (20 feet) away from 
open entryways into an indoor 
area AND outdoor area where 

smoking is prohibited



Ordinance No. 2020-489

On July 14, 2020 Guadalupe City Council conducts a second reading 
of the ordinance, adding:

Flavored Tobacco Ban
Tobacco Retail License

Chapter 5.53
Regulates smoking in 
multi-unit housing & 

public spaces

Chapter 8.70



Flavored Tobacco Ban
Stores will NO LONGER be able to sell flavored 

tobacco products (including menthol) or 
paraphernalia 





Tobacco Retail License
All retailers that sell tobacco will need to apply for 

and receive an annual local tobacco license 





How to get a TRL

Call (805) 343-6905 to get more information on 
business licenses 



Prepare 

Agenda Item No. 8B 

REPORT TO THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GUADALUPE 
Agenda of September 28, 2021 

Revittd by: Approved by: 
Veronica Fabian 
Finance Account Clerk 

��-Hmv 
Lorena Zarate 
Finance Director 

Todd Bodem 
City Administrator 

SUBJECT: 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Payment of warrants for the period ending September 23, 2021 to be Approved 

for payment by the City Council. Subject to having been certified as being in 

conformity with the budget by the Finance Department staff. 

That the City Council review and approve the listing of hand checks and warrants to be paid on 

September 29, 2021. 

BACKGROUND: 

Submittal of the listing of warrants issued by the City to vendors for the period and explanations for 

disbursement of these warrants. An exception, such as an emergency hand check may be required to be 

issued and paid prior to submittal of the warrant listing, however, this warrant will be identified as 

"Ratify" on the warrant listing. 

1



2



3



4



5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



August 26, 2021 City of Guadalupe Council Meeting Agenda Page 1 of 24 

MINUTES 

City of Guadalupe 
Special Meeting of the Guadalupe City Council 

       Thursday, August 26, 2021, at 6:00 pm 

City Hall, 918 Obispo Street, Council Chambers 

1. ROLL CALL:

Council Member Liliana Cardenas F I N A L    C O P Y 

Council Member Gilbert Robles 

Council Member Eugene Costa Jr. 

Mayor Pro Tempore Tony Ramirez 

Mayor Ariston Julian 

Council Member Costa, Jr. was absent.  All others were present.  (Note:  The abbreviation “CM” for 

“Council Member” is used in these minutes.) 

2. MOMENT OF SILENCE

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

4. COMMUNITY PARTICIPATION FORUM

Each person will be limited to a discussion of three (3) minutes or as directed by the Mayor.
Pursuant to provisions of the Brown Act, no action may be taken on these matters unless they are
listed on the agenda, or unless certain emergency or special circumstances exist.  City Council may
direct staff to investigate and/or schedule certain matters for consideration at a future City Council
meeting.

1. Aniela Hoffman is a resident of Pasadera.  She spoke on those houses in the Pasadera
development that are full-time Airbnb’s saying that she lives next to one.  She said, “I say full-
time because no one lives there.  It’s like a hotel.  Weekends are especially busy.  Two to six
vehicles arrive for a single-family home.  One weekend there were two small tour buses, an RV,
and a small vehicle. Not just the weekends but these are the most party-like times. Constant
nuisance noise sometimes after midnight.  They’re unaware of others. Constant children
screaming.  Basically, loud adults celebrating because they’re all there on vacation.  The house
next door to me.  There’s a window on the second floor overlooking my patio.  The people are
staring down on me while I’m in my own yard.  One even held up a phone like they were recording
or taking pictures.  The constant loud noises and feelings of anxiety and stress permeate my daily
life.  It’s very stressful.”

Ms. Hoffman continued saying, “These full-time Airbnb’s take housing away from residents. They 
displace residents by making housing in an already scarce market even more scarce.  They 
transform quiet neighborhoods into noisy vacation districts altering any sense of community or 
safety.  My neighbor mentioned that she’s less comfortable letting her children run and play 
because of the strangers and the traffic. These investment properties raise rents, gentrify cities 

Agenda Item No. 8C



August 26, 2021 City of Guadalupe Council Meeting Agenda  Page 2 of 24 

 

and towns, outbid buyers by $50,000 over the value.   When cash buyers come in, families and 
residents don’t have a chance.  These houses are used in a commercial capacity.  How are they 
taxed? I imagine they’re Improperly taxed at this time.  Renters are being evicted for the higher 
profit margins of these short-term rentals, again, creating communities that don’t have 
residents.  Those are my concerns.  Thank you for the time.” 
 
Mayor Julian commented, “We can’t say much because this topic is not on the agenda.  There is 
a minimum of 10 “Airbnb’s” in Guadalupe.  We hear you loud and clear.” 

 

PUBLIC HEARING 
 
5. Public hearing to consider draft 2021 General Plan Update to determine if staff should move 

forward with phase 2, environmental review. 
 
Written report: Larry Appel, Planning Director 
Recommendation: That the City Council: 
a. Receive presentation from staff and EMC Planning Group; and 
b. Conduct a public hearing to receive comments from the public and Council; and 
c. With minor revisions, if required, direct staff to release the RFP for preparation of an EIR and 

bring the final 2021 General Plan back to Council when it is ready to be certified: or 
d. Make significant modifications to the draft General Plan and return to Council for further review 

prior to initiating the CEQA review process.  

 

Larry Appel, Planning Director, thanked the City Council for this special meeting and then gave a 

brief background on the draft 2021 General Plan. He said, “Last year on August 25, 2020, the City 

entered into a professional services agreement with EMC Planning Group, Inc. (EMC) to prepare an 

update to the 2002 General Plan. It’s been a challenge with the COVID restrictions, but we were able 

to maintain communications with the consultants.   There were limited funds from our SB2 State 

grant which gave us $150,000 for this total project.  EMC has been able to use a number of existing 

documents that had been prepared for the City, and EMC remained within the budget.  The draft 

plans were both English and Spanish versions to ensure the largest exposure of this document.”   

 

Mr. Appel continued saying, “If after hearing from the public this evening, the Council is fine with 

our answers and on the revisions proposed, then my recommendation is to move into the California 

Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) phase as noted in the recommendations of the staff report.  I’d be 

happy to discuss that process in more detail later in the evening if you have questions.” 

 

At this point, Mr. Appel introduced Mr. Michael Groves, President of EMC, who made a few 

comments.  He said, “I was here one year ago yesterday and talked with the City Council about their 

General Plan.  I just want to thank you for selecting the EMC Planning Group and bringing us into 

the City, allowing us to be part of your process.  I first want to say that you have an incredible team 

here.  We spent a lot of time with a number of people here.  Todd (Bodem) did a great job of bringing 

people together.  Larry (Appel) has been incredible in terms of his responsiveness and getting back 

to us, even while driving his big RV all around.  Shannon (Sweeney), thank you for all your input on 

the public works/engineering side. The mayor took a day off and drove all around the City.  Just a 

wealth of knowledge.  We’ve translated the draft from English to Spanish.  It may not be exact due 



August 26, 2021 City of Guadalupe Council Meeting Agenda  Page 3 of 24 

 

to the translation.  It’s a work in progress, a draft.  But if there are errors, please note those and feel 

free to give to us.  We’re looking for any corrections and improvements to be made. We want the 

General Plan in a binder.  If you have to make an amendment to the General Plan, it makes for a 

more functional document of getting to the policy and programs when you have a specific project.  

We now want to go out and start the CEQA documentation.” 

 

Mr. Groves then turned the meeting over to Mr. Martin Carver, Project Manager, to give the full 

presentation.  Mr. Carver initially spoke about coming to Guadalupe to put the document together 

and to learn about the town.  He said, “To me, it feels like we’re at the end of the process because 

we’ve spent months and months pouring over and writing analyses and consulting with agencies 

around the region and state, but it’s really the beginning of the process.  We started in September 

2020 and were hoping for the team to start on the Environmental Impact Report (EIR) process.  We 

want the community input to shape this document.  What made getting this done in such a short 

amount of time was the fact that over the last 20 years, there really have been a lot of planning work 

done in the City.  The last General Plan was in 2002.  There was a 2009 document prepared by Cal 

Poly.  In 2014 Cal Poly prepared another document and again in 2018, a draft plan.  We don’t want 

to reinvent the wheel with months and months of workshops.  A lot of public participation went into 

that.  We spent a lot of time going over the notes.  We want to invite the community to contact us 

to help shape this document.  There’s plenty of time.  We’re at the cusp of the EIR process.  There 

will be at least 60 days before the EIR process starts.  They’ll still be a short window of opportunity 

to make big input and participate.” 

 

Mr. Carver then spoke about the other agencies, like Santa Barbara County, Cal Trans, other agencies 

located in Sacramento they dealt with gathering information altogether for all the topics they dealt 

with   He said, “There are 10 topic chapters or elements that Guadalupe has, but the document only 

has nine.  We don’t house the ‘Housing element’ – that has a special process and timeline.  That isn’t 

part of EMC’s scope of work.  There’s a cycle where you need to get it done within a certain period 

of time.  It’s due in approximately two years.  Also, this document has a newly required 

‘Environmental Justice’ element which I’ll speak on a little later.” 

 

Mr. Carver then focused on “Vision”.  He said, “We do our best to understand where the community 

is going, what its needs are, and what its vision is.  But it isn’t perfect.   As we said before, we want 

the community’s input.  I would invite the community to participate with their input in the next 60 

days where we’re just gearing up to do the EIR.  So, send us a letter, or email two or three lines 

showing ‘My vision of what Guadalupe is’.  I would like to add to this document a nice clean 

paragraph that just talks about what the vision is.  Sort of from about a 40,000’ level.  That’s 

something I really can’t do as well as all of you can.  So, I make that invitation.” 

 

Mr. Carver continued saying, “The first thing you need to know is that the General Plan doesn’t 

expand boundaries.  It doesn’t say that there’s land in the agricultural fields and we’re going to 

annex it and we’re going to grow.  None of that.  It relies on staying with the existing limits.  What 

we have done with the document and where we do a focus is on downtown revitalization.  I’ll get 

into that when I talk about land use.  What that means is better use of the land we have here now.  

Downtown is the obvious place to make that happen.  That’s really where we hinged our vision.  



August 26, 2021 City of Guadalupe Council Meeting Agenda  Page 4 of 24 

 

What we call, in the industry, ‘urban infill housing’.  That strategy makes sense because in part, you 

have AMTRAK service.  Of all the communities we’ve worked in, we look for opportunities and special 

things that a community has.  So far, few of them have meaningful train service.  There it is for 

Guadalupe.  And a bike path we can talk about further on.” 

 

Mr. Carver highlighted the summary of elements to be discussed:  1) Land Use; 2) Circulation; 3) 

Housing (separate process); 4) Environmental Justice; 5) Conservation and Open Space; 6) Economic 

Development; 7) Community Design/Historic Preservation; 8) Air Quality and Safety; 9) Public 

Facilities, and 10) Noise.  He said, “These are your substantive topics in this General Plan.  This is the 

heart of the document.  We want to dive into each one.  Some more than others.” 

 

Land Use 

 

Mr. Carver started off this topic by saying, “This is the heart of any general plan.  Where are you 

going to place structures and in what kind of uses?  What kind of configurations?  How high are you 

going to build?  The first thing to note that’s been high on everyone’s mind, before COVID, was a 

statewide housing crisis.  There’s not enough affordable housing.  There’s not enough housing, but 

especially affordable housing.  Blends well with staying within city boundaries and focusing on 

downtown and that ‘urban infill housing’.  That type of housing can be more affordable than other 

types of housing.  It blends well within that housing crisis.  Make use of that crisis.  Every crisis 

presents an opportunity.” 

 

He continued saying, “I already said there are no changes to urban boundaries.  That’s especially 

key.  We re-tooled some of the land use designations.  For example, what used to be called ‘General 

Commercial’ is now ‘Mixed-Use’.  This isn’t about commercial anymore.  It’s about housing.  This is 

key for me.  What I’ve noticed over my years of planning is that downtown revitalization starts with 

housing, ironically enough.  Or maybe, unintuitive, for many.  But what we found is that adding 

housing to downtown, then the restaurants, all the little shops, the dry cleaners, all those little 

businesses, actually have more customers right there.  Those customers can walk out of their front 

doors and come down and buy something at that little store, etc.  It’s also how you get movie 

theatres.” 

 

Mr. Carver then discussed re-designation sections showing two maps.  He said, “There are many 

tweaks that need to be made around downtown, changing some mixed-use back to R-3; some things 

out of Gularte Tract that need to be addressed.  There were some big pieces we looked at that were 

changed from 2021 to 2022, showing some areas in downtown as R-3.  Another area now to be 

shown as open space which is near Olivera Street.  Then going towards the train station on 5th Street, 

which was industrial land, is now designated R-3 housing.  We double downed on R-3 housing.  In 

addition, we made downtown mixed-use so there’s housing opportunities.  We tried to load the 

housing downtown.” 

 

Circulation 

 



August 26, 2021 City of Guadalupe Council Meeting Agenda  Page 5 of 24 

 

Mr. Carver began this section by saying, “This is where we’re building on previous work because 

there’s been a lot of fine work done.  For example, in 2014, there was a bike and pedestrian plan.  In 

2109, there was an amazing process.  That document has so much information, it looks like there 

was a robust public participation process.  We’re trying to include of that material in the document 

because they came up with a lot of great ideas.  In 2020, there was a multi-use trail that came to 

you not long ago.  We incorporate this information, but we don’t decide what the outcomes will be, 

but we put them front and center as things that the City will pay attention to going forward.” 

 

He continued talking about ‘issues and opportunities’.  He said, “Of course, with circulation, it’s 

about cross-connectivity.  As great as it is to have that rail service, it makes it hard to get across 

town safely and creates quite a divide between the westside and eastside.  There’s this whole 

westside of town that’s harder to get downtown if you have to go down Main Street, come around, 

come up, etc.  We’d like to be able to find ways to connect that westside more directly with 

downtown.  That would be a huge advantage.” 

 

Mr. Carver then focused on capitalizing on tourism.  He said, “There are a lot of bike tourists that 

come through town.  Connecting that bike trail that was talked about in the 2014 plan, as well as 

the 2019 plan, connecting it, because it comes from Santa Maria, comes down the levee.  There’s no 

reason to not bring that right downtown.  That would be a great way to bring those people into town 

and supports that downtown retail element and all of that.” 

 

The last point on this element is ‘sidewalks and safe routes to school’.   He said, “This is a little bit 

tough because during the pandemic, Cal Trans lightened up on the rules of sidewalk cafes and the 

like.  Now that we’re somewhat past that, they seem to be reverting to their somewhat hard line 

about sidewalk cafes.  But we’re encouraging the City to stay on it and work with them to see if we 

can liven up that downtown.  Part of that is getting sidewalk cafes in place and getting more people 

on the streets.” 

 

Environmental Justice 

 

 Mr. Carver explained that this is a new element that’s required for what is called ‘disadvantaged 

communities’ which is the technical term that the state uses to determine through research on 

demographics, income and other factors.  He said, “The issue that came up for us in writing this 

element is, of course, the neighboring agricultural areas.  Living with dust and the pesticides and the 

like that get used there.  Although the slide shows ‘disinvestment in downtown, the more and more 

I hear, it’s really ‘investment’ in downtown.  But in the past, it hasn’t had much attention.  Just look 

at downtown.  There’s so much potential there.”   

 

He then talked about the lack of a local high school.  He said, “I don’t really envision that in the near 

term that Guadalupe is going to have its own high school.  There’s nothing in this plan that it says 

the City needs to have its own high school.  We recognize that but it comes up as a point.  In addition, 

access to healthy food is another part of this element that’s important.” 

 



August 26, 2021 City of Guadalupe Council Meeting Agenda  Page 6 of 24 

 

Mr. Carver further said, “When looking at this whole ‘environmental justice’ element, it’s looking at 

the individual ideas that fall under this element.  But rather than looking at them as a planner, you 

look at them more like a public health official.  How can we think about these issues from that 

perspective?  How can we make this community healthier?  How can we address some of the things 

that are plaguing it? Of course, we do that part as planners, but it’s always interesting to put on a 

different hat and see things from a different perspective.  That’s what this ‘environmental justice’ 

element is all about.” 

 

Conservation & Open Space 

 

Mr. Carver said, “The ‘conservation’ part of this element talks about special status species that might 

be around in the area.  But we also do other things like set park and recreation standards on the 

‘open space’ part of this element.  We inventory all the park spaces around and have them listed in 

the element.  Based on that inventory, we set park and recreation standards.  So, when developers 

come in with new ideas for housing and the like, we have a basis to say that we want that housing, 

but you need to be able to provide some resource for parks, etc. – so many acres per 1,000.  That 

kind of thing.” 

 

Economic Development 

 

Looking at this element, he said, “At the beginning, we looked at vision and the future.  What drove 

it for me was this element.  It’s really about looking at downtown and trying to revitalize it.  Trying 

to bring housing to it that then feeds the retail component and really build from the ground up that 

way.  Building on bike tourism that we really talked about already.  I know you have a process 

underway to have some form of cannabis production in town.  I don’t know exactly where you are 

with that but that can be a component of economic development.   Cities in Salinas Valley have done 

well with a number of cannabis producers up there and have seen some amazing results.   

Vandenberg Space Force Base is just the beginning of the future. Guadalupe is right next door, just 

a short train ride away.  It makes me think that over time you want to pay attention to those 

connections and perhaps find a way to be a part of and support that community.  That could possibly 

be another source of economic development for the community.   More practically, there are some 

opportunity sites that we know exist around the City that either have dilapidated buildings or are 

vacant that can be redeveloped.  While we haven’t identified other opportunity sites for this element, 

we’ll probably go back and, with your help, identify what kinds of things will work best there to make 

sure we pick the right sites.” 

 

Other Elements 

 

Mr. Carver talked a little bit about ‘community design and historic preservation’.  He said, “Here we 

talk about things such as design review.  We inventory all the historic resources.  What I mean is that 

we go back to the fine work that the Cal Poly students did.  They actually did all that work.  We just 

catalogued it and included it here.  It becomes the basis for future local register of historic places.  A 

lot of communities will have that.  If you so choose to protect those properties and their environs, it 

provides a basis to move forward on that.” 



August 26, 2021 City of Guadalupe Council Meeting Agenda  Page 7 of 24 

 

Mr. Carver then shifted to ‘air quality and safety’.  He said, “Here we talked about air quality with 

pretty straight forward information.  We catalogued information from the Air District.  Agricultural 

dust again comes up.  We spent a lot of time working with Santa Barbara County and integrating 

the ‘local hazard mitigation planning’ process that has been developed.  That process, however, is 

not part of this General Plan process.   It happens separately but it is really key.  The State requires 

It when you’re updating a safety element, you incorporate, as much as possible, materials from that 

‘local hazard mitigation plan’.  You’ll find that I excerpted, in one of the appendices of the General 

Plan document, a portion of that multi-jurisdictional document that is relevant to Guadalupe.” 

 

He further said, “The ‘safety’ aspect here involves police and fire.  We catalogue what resources they 

have and what kind of problems they’re having.  The Chief of Police was kind enough to join us when 

we did our tour of the City.  We learned a lot of very interesting things from him.  This safety element 

also deals with fire hazards which really isn’t so much of an issue.  We have some habitat around 

the river which is out of your city boundaries but within your planning area.  The City isn’t prone to 

fire, but we have to address it.  We also talk about flood.  The City is out of the flood zone. The entire 

City is in the inundation area of Twitchell Dam so if that dam ever failed, you could expect to have 

water in your streets.  It seems unlikely, but it’s something we need to address.  We also addressed 

seismic hazards.” 

 

Mr. Carver continued saying, “For public facilities, we talk about potable water, wastewater, 

drainage and schools.  This was probably the easiest chapter to write, in large part because of the 

work your Public Works Director has done.  Shannon has done such a good job of really getting the 

City’s act together and addressing the things that need to be addressed and paying attention to the 

things that needed attention.  It was just a matter of cataloguing all the fine work that’s already 

been done.  So, it was pleasure to do that work.  I also talk about schools in this chapter.  I had 

several conversations with school officials that were illuminating and interesting.” 

 

The last element Mr. Carver spoke on was ‘Noise’.  He explained, “We talk about sensitive uses and 

noise abatement issues, and we take an opportunity to set, what we call, noise standards.  You then 

have a benchmark against which to measure particularly loud uses.” 

 

Goals, Policies and Programs  

 

Mr. Carver said, “I’ve just gone through all the elements.  At the end of each of those chapters, there 

are ‘goals, policies and programs’.  I thought it would be helpful to make sure we understood what 

the exercise was here.  General plans, first and foremost, are thought of as a city’s ‘constitution for 

development’. It really is the place where everything flows.  For example, your zoning map has to be 

consistent with your general plan diagram, not vice versa, by the way. If you have an inconsistency, 

the zoning map does not rule the general plan diagram.  When you make land use decisions about 

use permits or subdivisions, you typically would have to make findings consistent with your general 

plan.  The exercise is to then go through and make sure you go through all those policies and each 

of the elements and making sure that there’s nothing about that project or that particular 

subdivision that is really inconsistent.  So, that’s how the document works.  It’s actually your 

‘constitution for development’.  This is particularly relevant when there is LAFCo work to be done.  



August 26, 2021 City of Guadalupe Council Meeting Agenda  Page 8 of 24 

 

Sphere of Influence, amendments and annexation are not relevant here because they’re staying 

within our boundaries.  I want to emphasize that a general plan is a “long-range” plan which contains 

goals which are really trying to incapsulate vision.  Then there are policies which are more like 

regulations or law.  You have to pay attention to those to make sure you’re staying consistent with 

it.  From that policy work, you derive work programs which then becomes a basis for your capital 

improvements.”   

 

 

Implementation Program 

 

In the final piece of the presentation, Mr. Carver said, “The way the General Plan is set up to work is 

we have these chapters to discuss issues and opportunities.  We’ve identified an issue so we have a 

policy and maybe we have a goal that addresses it and a program that will deal with the issue.                                            

The important part is that the best general plans aren’t left on the shelf.  At every city council meeting 

you open them up when you’re making land use decision.  And when it comes budget time.  It’s really 

about looking and saying, ‘What is our list of implementing programs?’ In the ‘Implementation’ 

chapter, I’ve taken every implementation program from every chapter and recited them all in one 

place in Chapter 11.  So, when it comes to your planning process for budget, this is where you want 

to start and anchor it there. If your administrative office is going to do any strategic planning 

exercise, the first place to look is at your General Plan and moving to more specifics on that strategic 

planning process.  It all comes down to that City’s annual budget process and your capital 

improvements program. That’s the way it’s supposed to work.  The process works best when you 

keep it alive and keep it front of you.  You can then see what might not have worked.  So, then you 

can look at amending that specific section for clarity.  It becomes a living document.  That’s what 

the process is meant to be.”  Mr. Carver then said that they now really want to hear and work in 

what we can from the community and from the policymakers. 

 

Before the Council, staff or public made comments, Mr. Groves spoke again saying, “We really 

encourage city councils we work with to use that budget process to work with your Planning Director, 

your City Administrator, your Public Works Director, particularly, about the things you want 

improvements in town.  Shannon is already working on a lot of stuff and is doing an incredible job.  

It gives you an opportunity to have that annual look.  I really emphasize that.  I’ve seen it in cities, 

like Salinas which is a large city.  It wasn’t until we did the economic development element there and 

introduced the idea of them bringing that element to their budget hearings and talking about 

connecting that with their capital improvement program that the Public Works Director was working 

on and connecting the dots.  Questioning what they wanted to do in three or five years.  I want to 

emphasize again that it’s a really good tool for you as a council and the staff to work with when you 

have your budget hearings.” 

 

Mr. Groves then talked about housing.  He said, “You notice there isn’t a ‘Housing Element’ here, but 

you know it’s so important in the State now because a lot of your grant funds are based on whether 

you have a housing element certified by the State.  If you don’t have a housing element, that could 

hold up monies that you could get.  It’s an important tool.”  He mentioned that EMC has a housing 

element team. 



August 26, 2021 City of Guadalupe Council Meeting Agenda  Page 9 of 24 

 

 

In concluding his comments, Mr. Groves said, “The last thing is timeline.  I’m proud of Martin, Larry 

and the team.  A normal general plan process is usually a good two-to-three-year process.  We’re a 

year and in front of you with a draft plan to start moving forward.  There’s just been a lot of work 

and writing to get it done and make sure we had all the information compiled.  Larry talked about 

the budget which was a very small one.  Most of the general plans are 10 times what this budget 

was.  This team has done an incredible job of pulling this together.  We’re open to comments on it.  

Thank you.” 

 

Mayor Julian asked if Todd Bodem, City Administrator, had any comments.  Mr. Bodem said, “Just a 

few little ones.  One of them is a lot of times you’ll have a general plan update.  An applicant might 

come in three years from now and say, ‘Can we do a zoning map amendment?’  Just based on the 

projects I’ve seen cities before just approve those based on the project.  So, the applicant comes 

forward hoping that this allows for consistency moving forward.  Sometimes cities will approve those 

amendments based on, I don’t know what.  Just a comment.” 

 

Mayor Julian commented, “You talked about the budget process and bringing the General Plan 

before staff.  And I know in the Plan there’s the requirement set forth for the City Administrator and 

staff that every year the General Plan is pulled out for a thorough review process.  We haven’t done 

that in years, in terms of looking at the General Plan and moving it forward.  And you have some 

teeth within this document that says, ‘This is what you will do’.  It’s on the City staff to follow 

language in the document regarding the review that ‘You shall pay attention to that on a yearly 

basis.’ It’s important during the budget process, especially when money is tight, to pay attention to 

the General Plan.” 

 

The mayor also spoke about the housing element.  He said, “It’s a big-ticket item with the State.  We 

are required to provide more dense housing for the community residents.  On a personal note, there’s 

talk about R-2 and R-3 zoning.  And I was looking at the fact that many people in the United States 

or especially here in California can’t afford single family homes.  Single family homes in Pasadera 

are going at the mid-$400k price range or so.  How many residents in the local community can afford 

that? The farming community?  There aren’t many.  So, where do they live?  I know we have quite a 

few apartments in the community, and we need housing.  We need places for people to live.  One of 

the State requirements is to live close as you can to where you work.  You look at The Sphere of 

Influence – we’re surrounded by fields.  There’s a heavy traffic element in and out of Guadalupe.  In 

the mornings, there are people going to the fields.  The evenings…you can’t get to Santa Maria 

without heavy backup.  That says a lot about where we are with our commercial, like a grocery store, 

and our businesses so people don’t have to go to Santa Maria to shop.   This sets a tone to generate 

business.” 

 

Mr. Groves referenced the mayor’s comments.  He said, “Regarding the housing and downtown 

comments, create affordable housing in the downtown area.  Put people downtown.  How do I 

encourage residential development along with my commercial in the downtown? When a 

commercial developer is looking for a restaurant, the first thing they will look at is how many people 

are within this radius.  They do their demographics. Take advantage of commercial downtown now 



August 26, 2021 City of Guadalupe Council Meeting Agenda  Page 10 of 24 

 

by building housing around it.  It’s better for everyone’s business.  It’s a really important tool to use 

by trying to encourage those sites and the opportunity sites which are those vacant buildings and 

vacant lots.  How do we get more parking downtown?  How do we get some more housing 

downtown and still have retail on the bottom floor?” 

 

The mayor asked Mr. Appel, “Are there any changes that were brought to you to suggest changes 

to the General Plan?”  Mr. Appel replied, “One thing that’s come up recently that’s very exciting for 

us, is a young couple decided to invest in downtown, like doing a wine grotto on the first floor.  The 

second floor would possibly be for housing with expansions out to the rear. We need that first new 

business to attract attention.  I can see this wine grotto as something the City can welcome.  In 

talking to the owners of that property, they’re well positioned in the wine industry in San Luis Obispo.  

Others have told them, ‘If this works for you, we’re coming, too.’  I can see other types of businesses 

playing off that.  This is what we’ve been looking for to get downtown revitalized. Then there’s the 

Royal Theatre and all that’s going on with that. I think it’s actually happening.  Having this economic 

element in the General Plan is really going to be something to help us all have a road map to help 

this work.” 

 

The mayor continued saying, “This is a living document.  Those ideas from the business community 

and the general community are critical to hear so we can actually move toward what the community 

desires for the future. This is a 20-year plan – needs updating.  Geographically, we can’t do much 

going west and we can’t do much going to the north. We have agriculture all around us.   Our 

population, based on the housing you have here, projections could be up to 12,000 people.  What do 

12,000 people do when there are kids?  We have 37% of the population under age 18. That’s almost 

5,000 kids under the age of 18.  The General Plan can help prepare for the future.” 

 

Public Hearing Opened @7:00p.m. 

 

1. Garrett Matsumura 

 

“First of all, I want to say ‘thank you’ for all the hard work that’s gone into this document.  For 

anyone who’s seen the General Plan the first time this past week, there’ a lot to ‘chew on’, 

especially if you don’t have any background or history in planning.  I’m here both as a 

representative of the Guadalupe Business Association (GBA) and a member of the Broadband 

Task Force, as well as a private citizen.   

 

First, I want to talk a little bit about the point of view of the GBA.  We had a meeting last night 

and discussed this document in depth.  Some concerns were raised.  The general consensus was 

that there were somethings underrepresented and somethings missing in the plan such as food 

trucks or farmers’ market, vacant buildings, methods to decrease division, perceived or real, 

between the Pasadera community and the rest of Guadalupe.  Also, zoning.  We want to be able 

to address modification to zoning codes to allow for food and beverages in the light industrial 

area on Hwy 1.  Due to its location adjacent to the train station, it’s an opportunity to provide 

visitors and commuters with additional convenient dining options which is a way to help boost 

local economy. It’s a strip we felt could be altered. We talked about Airbnb regulations and their 



August 26, 2021 City of Guadalupe Council Meeting Agenda  Page 11 of 24 

 

effects on the community.  We talked about the linkage between Airbnb’s and tourism, and the 

need for a hotel in the community. The Royal Theatre – a true performing arts center.  I know it 

was mentioned in the document that there’d possibly be a library.  There’s been so much work 

done on revitalization of the theatre as a true performing arts facility that we feel strongly that 

that’s the direction it needs to go.  Because of these programs and others that can directly affect 

the economy, it is the unanimous decision of GBA to delay implementing the General Plan for 60 

days so we can get more information and input from the business community.” 

 

Mr. Matsumura then spoke about the Broadband Task Force.  He said, “There is need to increase 

broadband to bring social equity to all residents.  The need for more reliable broadband service 

is readily apparent.  The Broadband Task Force is looking at the possibility of seeing if we can 

bring a system here in the City where it’s a community broadband system.  The community would 

pay for the infrastructure.  The City and the community would then be able to invite in private 

companies to provide broadband service.  So, instead of paying $100 a month and getting 100mb 

of download speed and 10mb of upload speed, there’d be the option of paying an amount for an 

increased service, offered through the City as a utility. That’s something we feel very strongly to 

include this in the document.” 

 

He further said, “As a private citizen, I’m currently in the process of putting together an 

exploratory task committee to discuss the visibility of discovering a new civic anchor here in town.  

This particular anchor would feature things the community has talked about.  Things like a newer 

and larger library.  A community health center.  A business incubator and STEM learning facility 

to help kids, kindergarten through high school.  It could be a hub for fiber technology that could 

help provide that highspeed access throughout the entire town.  Mixed-use housing.  Low to mid-

income housing. A boutique hotel.  Again, the exploratory task force is only in the process of 

being developed.  At least one of the sites that is being talked about would be the remediation 

site.  This type of program is really a win, win, win, win for the entire community.  It’s not coming 

into the community saying it’s going to fix everything.  This is something trying to take into 

account many different opinions and different suggestions the community already had and 

bundle them together, so everybody wins.” 

 

Mr. Matsumura ended his comments by saying, “That is the short list of items to bring up for 

tonight.  I know there are other people here who are part of the GBA and other entities here in 

town that have a vested interest in seeing this town continue to grow and flourish.  Thank you.”  

Mayor Julian commented, “I see the consultants really writing everything down. That’s the 

process…looking at input this document has and the community’s input to be taken into 

consideration.” 

 

2. Lupe Alvarez 

 

“I want to speak on a couple of items. I previously had spoken with Mr. Appel concerning 

everything on North Pioneer Street that’s being changed to R-3.  It’s currently zoned commercial 

with three-story apartments out there.  A couple parcels were left out. We had requested and 

asked back in January.  He concurred back then that those parcels should be part of it. I had 



August 26, 2021 City of Guadalupe Council Meeting Agenda  Page 12 of 24 

 

written a letter with some documentation that we had had this conversation earlier in the year.  

We’re requesting that all that be considered R-3 on down there on lower Pioneer.  We’ve 

retrofitted a building there on the corner.  That parking lot, that whole lot is about 350’ long. It’s 

our intention to build in the back on top and provide parking underneath.  This would create 

more opportunities for residents to live there and create more economy downtown, as well as 

support local businesses downtown.  I hope the Council can support that.”  

 

All of you are on the right track working as a whole for the betterment of the community – Todd, 

Larry, City Council, Shannon.  It’s very visible.  I’ve helped on the food distribution but my hat’s 

off to the mayor and Gilbert (Robles) for being there week after week.  

 

We rent clean affordable housing and we keep getting asked for vacancies.  We just tell them to 

check around the first of the month in case someone gave notice. I believe Airbnb has a purpose 

and it does create synergies for the town.  It does bring tourism but there needs to be rules and 

regulations that benefit the whole community and don’t cause problems for the existing 

community who are invested in Guadalupe day in and day out.” 

 

Mr. Alvarez then spoke about Gularte Tract which has been designated for R-2 from R-1. He said, 

“We have a project we’d like to put there.  Currently, that project is going to be R-2 and we feel 

it should be considered as R-3.  I’m glad there’s going to be housing on lower Pioneer as R-3.  

However, what’s the easiest egress and ingress for the residents that live off Gularte?  It’s 

through 11th Street.  It’s to Hwy 166.  It’s to Hwy 1 if you work in North County.”  (Mr. Alvarez 

then handed the Council and staff a number of pictures and copies of letters of support for the 

tract parcels that are there.  The mayor said that the handouts would be accepted and reviewed 

at a later date.  City Attorney Sinco said that they’d be made a part of the record.)  Mr. Alvarez 

then said, “There is a need for housing.  If the City Council is going to change the General Plan, 

and we’re not looking to increase our Sphere of Influence or looking at future annexations at this 

time, whether this plan is a 10 or 20-year plan, either way, it’s a long time to not provide 

additional housing that can be done at this time once this plan is approved.  I hope you consider 

that.  I hope Mr. Appel can make some comments to the project on lower Pioneer that I was 

referring to earlier as well.  Thank you.” 

 

The mayor said that the Housing Element is every five years.  Mr. Alvarez said, “But the zoning is 

R-2.  So, the density is going from 11 to 20 and R-3 is 20 to 30.”  Mayor Julian said, “There was a 

comment in open session about Airbnb’s.  I live by an Airbnb.  There are people backing in their 

4-wheelers right next door and partying until three in the morning.  Chief Cash has had several 

calls from me about noise.  And I know others may have the same issues.  We heard you loud 

and clear on that.”  Mr. Alvarez then said, “I have a neighbor, as well.  We live in a cul-de-sac, 

too, and the parking is a problem.” 

 

3. Shirley Boydstun 

 

“The 2021 General Plan will be a great resource for future actions.  There are minimal directives 

for creating jobs which I think is critically needed at this time. It also touches on some of the 



August 26, 2021 City of Guadalupe Council Meeting Agenda  Page 13 of 24 

 

creeping globalism that is being pushed on Americans, not just here in Guadalupe. Zoning 

changes are a case in point.   Getting rid of R-1 lots to cram multi-units could be seen as a threat 

to physical and mental health and safety which is not addressed in the environmental justice 

segment.  Having more park space and trying to eliminate automobiles, for those of us who don’t 

walk well or ride bikes, is not a remedy. The City can barely manage the 59 acres of the park 

system now in existence.  There was a complaint Tuesday night that they’re not managed well 

at all.  It takes more staff and money which are in short supply in the City.   If second-and third- 

story buildings are envisioned, we certainly need better fire apparatus which will be needed to 

support those heights.  This is a huge cost which is not easily budgeted.  However, if there’s time, 

maybe you can add five bucks a year to start working on that new apparatus.  Each of the ten 

elements will require an enormous investment of time and talented staff which is pushed to the 

limit right now. Each element proposes programs and actions in the first year of adoption for a 

total of 16 specific programs plus their ongoing activities.  Within two years of adoption, there 

are 12 specific programs and actions that must be addressed and implemented plus ongoing 

activities.”  

 

Ms. Boydstun continued saying, “Each resident of Guadalupe wants it to be a better place to live 

and raise a family.  But some of this is too much, too soon. There’s a need for more public 

involvement and input by the residents to understand fully what’s to be expected from all of us. 

I again urge no adoption of the plan until there have been more workshops and seminars to 

present to the residents the best plan to take this ‘diamond out of the rough’. Thank you.” 

 

4. George Alvarez 

 

“In listening to the presentation, there are a lot of good plans.  For the new council members, 

you’re getting a quick history lesson on why we’re in the position we’re in now.   I’ve been 

pounding this organization for years and decades about the Sphere of Influence.  Santa Maria 

has their sphere of influence all the way down to Ray Road.  An extension, maybe, down to Point 

Sal.  School – we don’t have the new school that was to be built 10 years ago.  The reason why 

they had a joint meeting with the City Council to hold up the progress of Pasadera because they 

were greedy and wanted more property for free.  They got money from the State to get the 

school.  It’s not done.  The kids and teachers are suffering because they don’t have a facility that’s 

worthy for them. High school?  You have to deal with the Santa Barbara County who wouldn’t 

give you an opportunity for this. Guadalupe was used in the 60’s to get federal funding for 

Righetti.  If it wasn’t for Guadalupe, we probably wouldn’t have Righetti.” 

 

Mr. Alvarez then continued saying, “You must know the history of this community.  We must 

have more public meetings to get the full impact of what the people want.  Not five people; not 

staff.  A picture of what’s needed, yes, but by the voice of the people who want to live here.  We 

have budgets that are over-budget in all departments.  Some people are getting big monies for 

nothing.  Why? You have to budget for 15-20 years to survive.  We can’t afford retirement 

anymore like before.  The responsibility of the plan is to improve the wheel and a joint venture 

together where it doesn’t cost me, a taxpayer, more money. Housing Element?  We have so many 

self-help homes out here.  We’ve over matched the poverty level.  We rewarded those who didn’t 



August 26, 2021 City of Guadalupe Council Meeting Agenda  Page 14 of 24 

 

have opportunities.  We can’t supply housing for everyone.  I know we’re supposed to supply a 

certain amount but do it tactfully.  Go on with the developers who are going to build these things 

and work together so they get a break, don’t get overtaxed, and they build what’s needed.  Work 

together on this.  And the new business organization?   Your plans are great.  You’re like salmon 

running against the river.  I’ve lived here all my life.  It’s frustrating to see the lack of intelligence 

and common sense in these chambers.  The railroad situation is a perfect opportunity for us to 

channel together all the cities.  Have a good evening.” 

 

5.  Peter Lopez   

 

“The City Council and team are doing a great job.  You had a big pandemic.  You worked under a 

timeline and constraints.  You had zoom meetings.  I appreciate all the time and effort to get us 

here to this particular point.  I’m here to speak on behalf of Gularte Tract, specifically, 4235 in 

that area, to see if you’ll give consideration for R-3 instead of R-2.  I think it would greatly benefit 

the area and the community to reach the RINA numbers.  Also, because there are larger parcels 

over there that I think would warrant larger development. The access roads there are convenient 

to both Santa Maria and Hwy 1.  The other thing that has gone on with this pandemic is the high 

costs of construction costs.  They’ve increased significantly.  If R-3, that will allow more units on 

a property.  Because of the high cost of construction, it would make it economically more feasible, 

in my opinion, to get these projects built out. It would be a tremendous benefit to the community.   

I ask for your consideration instead of R-2 to R-3 zoning.  Thank you.” 

 

6. Gustavo Alvarez 

 

“On page 2-8 (of the General Plan), ‘Floor Area Ratio – Central Business District’, it gives some 

good examples of how it works.  For example, if the lot is 5,000 sq ft., you can only build on 2,500 

sq ft. of it.  As you may know, many of these lots are very tiny downtown.  Not enough to have 

parking.  In my opinion, you’d be wasting a lot of ground.  That number should be adjusted to 

maybe .20 or .80, depending how you want to look at it.   I don’t think the ‘FAR’ is beneficial for 

our downtown or it could be explained differently than the way I interpreted it.  And I, too, am 

for R-3 in the Gularte Tract area.” 

 

 Public Hearing Closed @7:25p.m. 

 

 Mayor Julian had the following comments: 

 

1. “Royal Theatre – maybe at one point, the document may have said the library was going to be 

put there.  That’s not the case anymore.  The City is moving forward with the development of the 

Royal Theatre.  So, there isn’t a plan, to date, for the library there. 

2. School – according to the Superintendent of schools, the school will break ground next summer. 

That’s moving forward. 

3. Year 2008 – everybody took a dive with the recession.  That stalled a lot of things that were 

happening.  Now, like with Pasadera, they’re really moving forward.  This past Tuesday, we 

talked to the DJ Farms developer regarding access from the south going into property.  Santa 



August 26, 2021 City of Guadalupe Council Meeting Agenda  Page 15 of 24 

 

Maria Valley Railroad Road asked them to put in two bridges before they can cross.  The plan is 

to access the south into the property. 

4. Element re: school – size of property of the school is inaccurate.  (The mayor said he would get 

consultants the correct information on property size.)  The City sold five acres to the school and 

received Quimby funds.  They started off with 12 acres for the school.  We had a joint meeting 

with them at the school, not City Hall, that was many years ago.  They came in with a plan that 

said 17 acres which included the City’s property.  The City said it wasn’t going to give up that 

property.  The school actually purchased that extra five acres so they will have 17 acres at the 

school site. 

5. R-3 – look at maps that show huge requirements for parks.  Treasure Park has not one little park 

there.  Point Sal Dunes has no park there.  No space for parks.  O’Connell Park is out there in that 

neighborhood.  Paco Pereyra Park has the self-help housing.  There’s a park there; a small one.  

In consideration of R-3, I personally don’t want to see a lot of folks with no places to play.  

Pasadera has some community parks or neighborhood parks - pocket parks.  Probably not big 

enough.  I asked someone, ‘In terms of population, how many people can you put on an R-3?’  He 

put 100 people an acre.  That’s a lot of people.  R-2 or R-3 is still being discussed.  No decision 

has been made yet.  We need to make sure there are recreational facilities, even if it’s just for 

walking around.  We need facilities, for both passive and active recreation.” 

 

Mr. Bodem said, “I’m really interested in the economic development side of things, obviously, if we 

can promote economic development, such as campground for bikers, etc. But also, something we 

could look at more, maybe a developer or a businessperson like this could be instituting impact fees 

in our developments, park dedication and funds that would go as part of that.  Look into impact fees.  

All of this is going to cause infrastructural needs because of the growth.  And because of that, the 

new development should have some onus to pay for some of that, in whatever category, such as 

public safety, water, sewer, etc.  I refer to them as ‘SAC and WAC’ fees (‘sewer access charges and 

water access charges’).  They’re working off the existing capacity of the City.  This new growth is 

going to create a need for a future expansion of those facilities.  I think that’s something that can be 

looked at.” 

 

Larry Appel asked to go back and respond to some of the comments made: 

 

1.  “Lower Pioneer property – I did meet with the Alvarez family.  It was my oversight for not 

including those two parcels going to the south on our map.  They provided sufficient information 

for me to be able to give to EMC to show that the two buildings up at the top will remain ‘mixed’.  

It can have commercial on the bottom and have resident on top.  But the rear area would have 

the ability to go to R-3, like other projects we had planned. 

2. Gularte Tract going from R-1 to R-3.  By reading through this, we’ve increased the density in R-2 

and R-3 such that R-2 which had a maximum density of 14 units per acre is now 20 units per acre.   

That’s a significant increase.  We don’t have the best ordinance when talking about open spaces 

and recreational uses.  When I worked for Santa Barbara County, any time you had a design 

review zone district, you had a requirement to have 40% open space.  It would be hard to get up 

to 14 units per acre let alone 20 units per acre.  But you could go up in height which would allow 

you the additional density.  We only require 150 sq ft. for something like a patio or a balcony for 



August 26, 2021 City of Guadalupe Council Meeting Agenda  Page 16 of 24 

 

each of the units.  So, it doesn’t address the open space park issues you’re talking about.  Going 

from R-2 to R-3 would allow 30 units per acre.  That’s too dense for that area.  The People’s Self-

Help project was very well done and that was at 14 units per acre.  Think of it as doubling that 

density if you have an R-3 there.  I am professionally recommending going to R-2. 

3. Floor Area Ratio (FAR) – this helps to design projects, like on vacant land.  When you have what 

we do, especially on the westside of Guadalupe Street, you have solid buildings.  There’s no room 

for landscape, parking, open space or anything like that.  That’s the whole downtown and that’s 

the way we’re accepting it.  I think what we’re going to do is provide a FAR of ‘1.0’ which allows 

full use of the footprint for those on the westside.  For new development coming in on eastside, 

it would be to respect that ‘.5’ because it would need to have parking, landscaping and those 

sorts of things.  So, I think we’ll be making those modifications if we go forward tonight. 

4. Guadalupe Business Association – we’re not at the point of adopting the General Plan.  It’s only 

at the draft stage now.  The next step in the process for us would be to move into CEQA review 

(EIR).  That’s going to take a long time.  Maybe six to nine months.  We can go in and make some 

of these changes and recommendations talked about tonight, such as putting in new programs, 

etc. but not delaying for 60 days.  The next step is CEQA and once we’re done with CEQA and the 

other corrections, we’ll come back to you again to ask you to look at the entire process.  We’ll 

make sure we have more time than we did this time to allow people to review the draft final and 

the EIR before it comes before public hearing.  If the City Council goes with my recommendation 

approving the release of the RFP, then we’ll let a number of planning firms bid on the EIR, 

including EMC.  The winning bid will most likely come back the first week in October for a 

contract.  Then we would start the six-to-eight-month process doing the EIR.  In the meantime, 

there are a couple of months where EMC can continue to work on some of these changes and 

get in dialogue with GBA or some of the other people who had concerns.”   

 

Note:  Because there are several people in the audience very interested in R-3 for Gularte, Mr. Appel 

said it was important to hear from them tonight.  He said, “If the majority of you believe it should be 

an adjustment to R-3 for Gularte, we’ll go back and make changes. But I just wanted you to know 

what our position was before that happened.”  

 

Mayor Julian said, “With R-2, 80 people within that one acre and two ADUs and junior ADU per 

project.  We have a population of 3.78 persons per household.  I think that’s light and should be more 

like 4.1.  With R-2, that’s 80 people within that one acre.” Mr. Appel added, “And there are two ADUs 

you can add, in addition to that, plus the junior ADU, so you can have 25% of those units have those 

in there, as well.  So, you can get a higher density than you initially thought.”  The mayor then added, 

“We have a map of the whole city and the sphere. What would it look like if we took the Gularte 

Tract, and said, ‘This is what it would look like if you had an R-3, R-2 and what it looks like now?  

What would it look like in terms of housing?  My concern is that we lack housing.  We don’t want to 

put too many people in one place.  We need open space.  We don’t want to get into another Treasure 

Park where there’s no open area, or another Point Sal Dunes.” 

 

CM Cardenas spoke on the Gularte Tract and the increase in density there.  She said, “I agree that 

we provide some type of service to that area. We’re making connections from the westside into 

downtown. Walkways.  We need to make sure we’re also doing that there.  I would also think that 



August 26, 2021 City of Guadalupe Council Meeting Agenda  Page 17 of 24 

 

R-3 is too much for that area with 30 units per acre.  Just seems a lot. We already have development 

there and they’re doing 14 units.  R-2 is already providing 20 units and two ADUs per unit.  (Mr. Appel 

corrected that: “Two ADUs per project.”)   

 

City Attorney Sinco addressed Mr. Appel, “I can’t remember off the top of my head.  A density bonus 

would be available to exceed the R-2 zoning if there was affordable housing.  Is that correct?”  Mr. 

Appel said, “If the additional units are all affordable and are placed into a permanent affordable 

program, yes.”  Mr. Groves said, “There’s a criteria table board.  An example would be if you did 20% 

affordability in low or very low, you could get the density bonus which could be up to 32% - 35%, in 

that range.  It would depend on whether it’s low or very low.  There’s a formula for it. You can also 

get incentives, basically concessions.  You could have a setback or a height that you didn’t have to 

meet, so you could get concessions for that.  There’s also the potential for the City to do waivers on 

certain standards and criteria.  There are a lot of incentives to provide affordable housing and get 

more densities at the same time.  And instead of doing 10%, you could do 20% and get only one 

concession so there are different ways to go about it, depending how the developer wants to do 

that.”   

 

City Attorney Sinco then said, “My main point in raising that was to dovetail on what was being said 

about density.  There would be a way to make a project economically affordable or incentives would 

be given to the developer to develop the property R-2 so that R-3 wouldn’t be necessary. Is that a 

fair statement?”  Mr. Groves responded, “Again, I’m not going to advocate either way. R-3 has a 

place in town and could be beneficial.  What I hear the biggest issue is providing open space, 

connectivity, trails, providing enough park space and open space within your projects.  I think we can 

provide something in the policy language that maybe strengthens that for you.  And then when you 

go on the zoning side, then you can have a part in there for a percentage of it to be open space.  

Then you have the density and can go up.  And you can have that density, so long as you have that 

open space.  So, it creates more of a balance.  I don’t think you have those provisions in your zoning 

now and that would be helpful.   I’m not advocating either way.  We’ve done and seen some very 

good R-3 products.  Cities like Monterey and others are now going to R-3 more so than R-2.  So, I 

strongly encourage you to look strongly at it and pick and choose where you want to see that 

happen.  R-3 can make a difference in terms of getting your housing product up if it’s done well.  And 

R-2 has its place, as well, and you can use your density bonus.” 

 

Mayor Julian said, “The new Pioneer Street.  That’s R-3 with three-story structures.”  Mr. Appel said, 

“That is a project that was approved with a conditional use permit to allow ground floor housing on 

general commercial land.  Rincon didn’t check the density when they approved it and it is a higher 

density than R-3 would have allowed”.   

 

The mayor then asked, “Given the complexity of this issue, do you need that decision, since this is a 

draft, do you need that decision now?” 

 

Mr. Groves said, “There’s a period of time between now and when the environmental document 

starts.  When the environmental document does start, we need to fix the project description.  Over 

the course of the next 60 to 90 days, people were asking for more time.  I don’t think you need to 



August 26, 2021 City of Guadalupe Council Meeting Agenda  Page 18 of 24 

 

delay the process. You can direct your Planning Director to send out the RFP and get that process 

going.  It takes time for people to respond and time to come back to the Council for a contract.   

During that time, the Council can start thinking about these points.  Because R-3 or R-2 makes a 

difference in population and density, things are going to be affected when the CEQA document is 

drafted with that project description.  So, we want to lock that project description down.  You have 

60-90 days to make those decisions and come back, look at it and say what you want to do.  We 

have all the comments made today.  They’re all written down.  EMC can add provisions for more 

park space and things like that if you do choose to have R-3.  Even R-2 should have park space.  There 

should be some percentages around that.  In the end, it takes the Council’s direction to say, ‘We 

want to build here and there’ and we’ll add the nuances on the park space and those provisions.  

Then you have State law the developer can use if they want to use density bonus and that type of 

thing.  When they do that, they’re providing affordable housing and, hopefully, you already have the 

park provisions built in.” 

 

The mayor said, “Part of my concern is both within open space within their living quarters but what 

if you have kids?  You’re going to have families there.  We’re short now for areas for kids to recreate.  

What would that be if we went with R-3 without any provisions, what would that look like?  Do you 

need that?  You said there’s 60 days?   Mr. Appel said, “If everything goes well, on September 14th, 

we will be bringing back, for City Council to consider, EMC’s contract requesting an extension.  We 

really need to lock in that project description.  If Council is uncertain between R-3 or R-2, that’s fine, 

but if you know now just like you can answer in six weeks, we still would like to hear what Council is 

thinking.” 

 

City Attorney Sinco read Recommendations #3 and #4 of the staff report and asked Mr. Appel, “Is 

there a middle ground here?  Can the Council tentatively approve this General Plan update, so you’re 

allowed to move forward for RFP for EIR.  Then before that actually starts, bring it back for final 

approval of the draft?  Can you do that? And leave changes to be made?”  Mr. Appel said that that 

could be done on September 14th. 

 

Mayor Julian asked, “And I’d like to see what you’re talking about; benefits to the property owner 

for making affordable housing – what would that look like.”   

 

Mr. Groves said, “I think it’s important to understand that we aren’t going to be producing another 

one of these.  We’re going to have a checklist that will go on page 6, ‘Policy X will be modified.”’ 

We’ll add Policy ‘X’ on park space to be directed toward ‘x percentage’ if we want to do that. We 

can keep this running list and along with the document, will be the project description for the EIR.  

So, whoever gets selected to do the EIR, you also have the power to sign a contract with them, you 

can say you want them on hold for another 30 days or we don’t want you to start now. You have 

that power because you can say that you need another month to do this.  The main thing, though, is 

not to drag it out.  The CEQA process takes time to ramp it up and get someone under contract and 

get going.  While that’s happening, you can run this parallel track and it’ll save you time on the other 

end. Instead of having an approval in March, if you don’t run a parallel track, it could be next year 

at this time.  We’d really be looking at March/April/May timeframe to bring back to Council.”     

 



August 26, 2021 City of Guadalupe Council Meeting Agenda  Page 19 of 24 

 

City Attorney Sinco then asked, “Then, with the direction of the Council, can you move forward with 

RFP now with any decisions on the General Plan draft?”  Mr. Appel responded, “Yes, it was just a 

discussion item that had come up with several people so I thought it would be good in a public forum 

to find out a straw vote how they were feeling about densities.”  City Attorney Sinco then said, “You 

heard the people speak.  Some want more time. I also heard some positive remarks about you 

moving in the right direction.  So, my recommendation would be to authorize staff to release an RFP 

for preparation for the EIR.  And when that comes before you to bring the General Plan with the 

additional proposed revisions that staff will work on for you for final adoption of the project 

description.  I don’t think we’ve heard from everyone yet.” 

 

CM Ramirez spoke saying, “There are more than housing issues” and listed them as follows: 

 

1. “High School – I know it was mentioned in there that one isn’t seen in the foreseeable future.   

And I know this is a multi-share document and I honestly think if we really want to look at 

‘environmental justice’, and we want to look at public facilities, we need to invest in at least 

some conversations for a high school.  I know we have plans for a joint meeting with the school 

district so that might be something we can add more details and talk a little more about a high 

school.  I went from Mary Buren to McKenzie to Righetti High.  If you think about a divide 

amongst the community here, can you imagine the divided community between Orcutt and 

here?  It’s very night and day.  I think it’s something worthwhile to even look at more ideas 

coming from them, as well. 

2. I wholeheartedly back up the idea of incorporating broadband which is another environment 

issue that we make sure we address.  I’m remembering back at the start of the pandemic.  I had 

the luxury and privilege of upgrading my internet, but I was still having problems connecting 

even after that.  I could only imagine people who needed to buy that for the first time or didn’t 

have access to something like that.  So, I think that’s something for sure we need to address in 

this document.   

3. Economic Vitality – I second what Todd said.  I think it’s important to have a section about 

attracting major industry here.  I’m talking about creating a hub and incentivizing a business to 

come here.  Maybe an industry.  We’re reaching out to the cannabis industry but that’s not the 

only thing we can bank on.  We need to make sure we have something in there as well. 

4. Los Amigos de Guadalupe – there are some micro-enterprise types of grants that we’ve recently 

been awarded that were not addressed in the General Plan.  Obviously, these were happening 

at the same time, so I didn’t expect to see that in there.  These grants would be to help small 

businesses, residential kitchens, etc.  I know there are people in Pasadera who’ve applied and 

received their permits for residential kitchens.  Adding something like that to the section on 

‘economic vitality’ would be good. 

5. I’m a library person.  There’s no mention of a library in public facilities.  That’s something we 

need to address and that’s something that’s long-term if we want to see that as a vision.  That’s 

part of the identity of what we can do to make sure we have inclusion of all the residential 

subdivisions of the community.  We talk a lot about how Pasadera has formed its own identity 

when it comes to Guadalupe.  But it even existed before.  We need to make sure that as we grow, 

we grow smart and that we have that vision of identity on there.  It wasn’t something that was 

happening recently.  It’s just apparent now that it’s happening in more of an abundance.” 



August 26, 2021 City of Guadalupe Council Meeting Agenda  Page 20 of 24 

 

 

Mayor Julian had some additional comments.  He said, “Mr. Matsumura talked about a potential 

plan for a library in an area downtown which is a good idea. Also, the property west of the bank and 

the Pioneer Street extension, I know there are plans to walk from Point Sal Dunes all the way through 

Pioneer Street and then the extension from Pioneer and 10th all the way to 11th Street.  Those are 

land-locked buildings.  If we were to look at having a natural road through there, you could have 

access for people to walk and drive and then have access for those businesses in back of Pioneer 

Street and north of 10th Street.” 

 

The mayor further said, “I know in Santa Maria, from Main and Broadway, there’s an area that’s not 

required to have parking that you would need to have in terms of new building because of its 

historical nature. Is that correct?”   Mr. Appel said, “It’s actually a part of the Downtown Specific 

Plan.  There is a section in the downtown, three different zones.  Depending on what zone you’re in 

depends on whether there’s a need for commercial parking spaces or not.  It took into consideration 

that there are a number of parking lots throughout the downtown to be used for that.  I was talking 

to Todd and Shannon today to see if it would be possible if some of these vacant lots we have 

downtown, particularly near the Royal Theatre, could be developed into public parking lots.  Then 

we’d be able to direct people to those lots instead of trying to force parking where there just isn’t 

room now.”   

 

Mr. Gustavo Alvarez then asked to speak again.  He said, “When we were talking about the “FAR” 

earlier, he said that on the eastside, it would be .50.  That might jeopardize the plans for the Royal 

Theatre to do that addition to the back.  There’s a lot in the back of it but you can only build on a 

portion of it.  You’re going to essentially erase the lot line to merge them both if you don’t build out 

your property lines.  The theatre is already property to property line.  If the City wants to build an 

addition, that might jeopardize the plans on that. Now’s the time to adjust it.”  Mr. Appels said he’d 

look into that.  The mayor then said that the only parking is at the City Veterans Memorial Parking 

lot and the streets. 

 

CM Cardenas added, “I have to agree with what Shirley Boydstun said.   Staff is limited.  Some of 

these programs are like in one year.  There’s a lot of work that this is asking for.  I love it but is it 

really feasible for us is my concern.  I like that this is making us accountable as a living document, 

but I don’t know.”   

 

The mayor commented that there’s a lot of responsibility for the City Administrator to move things 

forward.  Mr. Bodem commented, “Larry and I talked about this.  Before this document even hit you, 

there were a lot of items that we took out. A lot of the things we’re already doing.” CM Cardenas 

commented that some of the programs she could see but there were some that she questioned.  Mr. 

Appel added, “EMC helped us on this.  The Environmental Justice element is something we must do.  

If we didn’t do that, we couldn’t get our document adopted or approved. And if we didn’t do that, 

that starts jeopardizing our grant money.  I had a really hard time with some of the policies, 

especially, the first version that Cal Poly came out a few years ago which had programs that didn’t 

fit planning or city administrative functions.  So, there were a lot of those types of programs that 

were not included in this document.  This is a small number of what we started with.” 



August 26, 2021 City of Guadalupe Council Meeting Agenda  Page 21 of 24 

 

 

City Attorney Sinco asked, “Instead of saying ‘after one year, it has to be implemented’, we give a 

range, like ‘between 1-3 years depending on Council and budget priorities’.  Put that language in all 

of them so they’d have some flexibility, and we have a range.”  Mr. Carver agreed with flexibility of 

timeframes to start any program.  He added, “Or I might suggest moving from ‘one year to 

commence to possibly two years to commence’.  It’s more important that these work and are 

realistic.  Because if we overloaded it, that doesn’t serve anything.  Let’s get it right.  There’s nothing 

in State law that says that any program must be in the first year.  That may be true if you’re dealing 

with your Housing Element, or some fine-tuning issues there but with the rest of this, you have 

flexibility.  It needs to fit.”  

 

Mr. Appel emphasized, “One of the key features of this is that we need to bring our zoning ordinance 

and our zoning map up to match what we adopt in the General Plan.  That’s going to be my priority.     

Having to change some of the zoning ordinances, say in the residential densities, all of that is going 

to be brought to you within the first few months after the plan is adopted. We’ll probably farm out 

the zoning map to have it updated so it’s consistent with the General Plan.  Those are the types of 

things I see having to do right away because you don’t want to leave a map inconsistent with the 

General Plan and have two different densities and two different uses shown on there.  I would like 

the flexibility with a common statement of ‘one to three years’ of what the program is.” 

  

Mr. Lupe Alvarez spoke, “Thank you, CM Cardenas. That was a great question on the financial aspect 

because that’s always been a concern here.  I really like the ‘one to three years’ because that’s really 

a plus. When I was here, we never did a General Plan update.   What’s the potential legal liability if 

you don’t fulfill the things that you approve?”   City Attorney Sinco said, ‘The General Plan can be 

amended four times a year in a general law city.  So, we don’t need a requirement extended.  There’s 

no penalty if not in compliance.  There’s no legal responsibility.  Practically speaking, there are no 

real legal consequences.  Worst case scenario, they can always amend it to reflect reality.” 

 

Mr. Lupe Alvarez said, “I strongly recommend that if the City is going to make the Royal Theatre into 

a community center/theatre/ event center, you really need parking.  There’s land next to it.  How do 

you meet ADA if there’s no parking?” 

 

CM Cardenas said, “I heard before about ‘community input’.  Being able to submit ‘My Vision of 

Guadalupe is’.  We should put that up on the website for people to submit their comments within a 

certain timeframe about the General Plan. Maybe a community workshop but not sure now about 

housing a lot of people in one place now.   Also, I want to definitely see something about our library 

in the General Plan.  That’s very much needed.” 

 

CM Robles said, “There is so much to comprehend.  Twenty years.  We haven’t had a General Plan 

since 2002.”  He added additional comments which follows: 

 

1. “The draft plan used common sense.  A lot to take in.  Always thought about a high school.  I feel 

passionate about that because I always felt we need our own identity.  We always knew that our 



August 26, 2021 City of Guadalupe Council Meeting Agenda  Page 22 of 24 

 

Guadalupe kids would end up falling through the cracks at Righetti.  When they’re bussed 13 

miles, our kids feel like visitors there.  It doesn’t feel like their own identity high school. 

2. I agree with the comments about broadband. 

3. Downtown Area – we need to have tourists stop driving through.  We need people to come back 

downtown after they get off work. 

4. Parks – Critical need.  With COVID, kids aren’t really moving. We have a lot of slow kids after 16 

months zooming. In the long term, though, maintenance is needed for these parks which involves 

money, scheduling, etc.  Central Park is a good park, but it’s never had its own identity.  Is it a 

walk-thru?  What is it exactly?  We envision a skate park there, basketball court, a dog park.   

5. Bike Trail – we need to bring one in connecting it from Santa Maria. 

6. Royal Theatre – it’ll be great to see that art deco 1939 building and should stay that way. 

7. We have a unique downtown corridor that I don’t see many communities in our area have.  

Arroyo Grande is somewhat.  Los Alamos is booming and they’re not a quarter of what we have.  

We have the bones and the framework to do something big here.  It’s just up to us.  All of us are 

thinking the same thing – getting it right.  We need to get this community together.  There’s a 

lot of energy out there.  I’d love to just keep that downtown charm.  When I drive through Santa 

Maria and I go down Broadway, the landscaping’s not there.  It’s vehicle friendly; not pedestrian 

friendly.  They dropped the ball when they got rid of their downtown charm.  I would hate to lose 

that here.  One other thing – we need to lower that speed limit.  We just have so much potential.” 

 

Mayor Julian said, “There’s talk about the crosswalks in downtown area.  There is a bulb out that   

people want to get rid of them. It takes up parking spaces.  You can’t park at a bulb out.” 

 

CM Robles also mentioned the new Recreation Commissioner, Emily Dreiling.  He said, “She has so 

much experience running the program out at Vandenberg and that’s something we really need inside 

here.  We’ve done things on shoestring budgets.  It’s a tough job.  Also, I hope we addressed our 

issues for GBA.  Thank you.” 

 

Mayor Julian said, “Larry and I talked about this.  The old rodeo grounds property is in Santa Barbara 

County. There’s talk that the County Park and Recreation affiliations were looking at this property 

for maybe a park development.  There are other entities, as well, looking at this site for a maybe a 

business opportunity or other interests.  It’s just got cars, and cows, and tractors there. Some folks 

want to put an RV part there.  One minor thing.  One of the maps has ‘UNICAL’.  It should be 

‘UNOCAL’…not a biggie.” 

 

CM Robles asked about camping and campgrounds.  He said, “If we could designate a specific area 

to bring people here, would that be something we’d tax?”  City Attorney Sinco said, “I’d have to look 

at our ordinance.  I don’t think it’s clear.  We could negotiate that for some kind of payment as a 

concession or condition of approval. But that’s beyond the scope of this General Plan.  But I think 

there’s room in the plan.  It’s a guideline.”  

 

City Attorney Sinco then said, “Larry, I would recommend continuing with the public hearing or 

continuing the documents because the Council isn’t going to approve it at tonight’s meeting.  So, 

we’ll continue so we’ll avoid re-noticing to the date you want.”  Mr. Appel responded, “Take the 



August 26, 2021 City of Guadalupe Council Meeting Agenda  Page 23 of 24 

 

recommendation #3 but continue to the September 14th Council meeting.”  City Attorney Sinco 

added, “Recommendation #3 but we’re not approving the General Plan with minor revisions but 

direct staff to release the RFP but bring back the General Plan update with minor revisions at that 

meeting as well for adoption with the approval of the EIR.” 

 

Mr. Appel said, “We could probably have an errata sheet or something.  We’re not going to be 

changing the document between now and then.”  City Attorney Sinco added, “I was listening to CM 

Cardenas.  She wanted to have another opportunity for people to make comments.”  Mr. Appel said, 

“They could certainly do that, and they’ll have this document to provide comments from.  Like we 

said, we’re not going to update that document between now and then.  With an errata sheet, they’re 

able to show the public these are the things we’re making changes to the document based on their 

comments.”   

 

Mr. Bodem asked, “For those who may not know what an errata sheet is, would you explain to the 

public what it is?”  Mr. Appel said, “It’s just our notes we’ve taken on things that people suggested 

changes for the document.  We just make a note that on a certain page that we’re changing like the 

designation from ‘mixed’ to R-3 and things like that.” 

 

City Attorney Sinco said, “Recommendation #3:  Approve the draft and direct the staff to release the 

RFP for preparation of the EIR.”  Mr. Appel added, “And bring contract back at the October 12th 

Council meeting.” 

 

CM Cardenas asked for clarification.  She said, “For comments by when?  So, we can put something 

on our website.   At any time?”  EMC said, “Before the CEQA process starts.” 

 

Mayor Julian asked if the General Plan draft was in Spanish on the website.  Mr. Appel confirmed 

that it is up there now. 

 

City Attorney Sinco then phrased a motion, “Motion to direct staff to release RFP in preparation of 

the EIR and approve the draft General Plan.”  Mr. Groves interjected, “I want to caution on the word 

‘approve’.  The Council is not approving.  It’s an informal moving forward because the approval must 

have the CEQA document.  You’re accepting the document as is and moving forward with the CEQA 

process.  Council, what I envision what we would do is when you come back for that CEQA document, 

or within a month after that CEQA document, or within a month after you issue a contract for that 

CEQA document, somewhere within that range, we would have this errata sheet. Not only the public 

but you’ll be able to see all the changes made.  You’ll see all the changes made on the comments 

today.  That, hopefully, will make the process a lot better because you’ve already read the document.  

You’ve seen and now you know what changes have been made.  Whether we’re changing this to 

mixed-use, or R-2, or R-3, or we’re adding provisions to parks, etc.  You’ll see what those changes 

are, so it makes it more efficient to jump in and go forward.”   

 

City Attorney Sinco then changed the motion to say, “Motion to accept the 2021 draft General Plan 

update and direct staff to release RFP for preparation for the EIR.” 

 



August 26, 2021 City of Guadalupe Council Meeting Agenda  Page 24 of 24 

 

Motion was made by Council Member Ramirez and seconded by Council Member Cardenas to 

accept the 2021 draft General Plan update and direct staff to release the RFP for preparation for 

the EIR.  4-0 Absent: Costa, Jr. Passed. 

 

6. ADJOURNMENT  

 

Motion was made by Council Member Ramirez and seconded by Council Member Cardenas to 

adjourn meeting.  4-0 Absent: Costa, Jr. Passed.  Meeting adjourned at 8:32p.m. 

 

 

Prepared by:      Approved by: 

 

 

______________________________   _________________________________ 

             Amelia M. Villegas, City Clerk    Ariston Julian, Mayor 
 

 



September 14, 2021 City of Guadalupe Council Meeting Agenda Page 1 of 17 

MINUTES 

City of Guadalupe 
Regular Meeting of the Guadalupe City Council 

Meeting of the Successor Agency to the Guadalupe 

Redevelopment Agency Board 

Tuesday, September 14, 2021, at 6:00 pm 

City Hall, 918 Obispo Street, Council Chambers 

1. ROLL CALL:

Council Member Liliana Cardenas 

Council Member Gilbert Robles 

Council Member Eugene Costa Jr. 

Mayor Pro Tempore Tony Ramirez 

Mayor Ariston Julian 

CM Member Costa, Jr. was absent.  All others present.  (Note:  The abbreviation “CM” is being used 

for “Council Member” in these minutes.) 

2. MOMENT OF SILENCE

Mayor Julian mentioned that he and CMs Ramirez and Cardenas had attended the September 7th

City of Santa Maria Council meeting.  A proclamation was read regarding Guadalupe’s 75th

anniversary.  The mayor said, “Before in our council meetings, we would have an invocation.  We’d

invite one of our local priests, pastors, ministers, etc. and a prayer would be said before each

meeting.  But that was stopped as we were told it was ‘illegal’ to do.  Santa Maria does it.  So, it’s

easier to ask for forgiveness than permission.”  With that said, Mayor Julian read the following: “All

Voices Heard Prayer” …Almighty God, may Your grace cover each aspect of this meeting.  We pray

that all voices will be heard and that we will have a mindset of inclusivity.  May this be a safe space

for people to express their opinions, and a place where ideas matter more than titles.  May everyone

be engaged and involved, and may all concerns be addressed.  May each member of this team feel

valued, and may we each recognize the skill sets and knowledge that each person brings to the table.

Amen.”

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

4. AGENDA REVIEW

Todd Bodem, City Administrator, pulled from the agenda Item #7.I. “Adopt Resolution No. 2021-73
approving the use of Fund 26 RDA operating funds in the amount of $32,115.00 to cover the cost of

Agenda Item No. 8D



September 14, 2021 City of Guadalupe Council Meeting Agenda  Page 2 of 17 

 

the water-damaged gym steel column, Part B change order – Leroy Park and Community Center 
Project.”  This item will not be discussed at tonight’s meeting.  There were no other requests for 
agenda changes. 
 

5. CEREMONIAL CALENDAR  
 

• Proclamation – Ovarian Cancer Awareness Month- September 2021 
 

CM Cardenas read the proclamation which stated that the City Council recognizes September 2021 
as “National Ovarian Cancer Awareness Month” and encourages the Guadalupe community to 
become educated about the symptoms of ovarian cancer.  The proclamation further stated that 
ovarian cancer is the fifth most common cause of fatal cancer in the United States and that increased 
awareness of the symptoms and risk factors of ovarian cancer will enhance chances of early 
detection and, hopefully, increased survival rates from this serious disease and threat to women’s 
health. 
 
Ms. Cristina Martins Sinco, Co-Founder and Board Member of the “Teal Journey Ovarian Cancer 
Foundation”, was present to receive this proclamation.  She thanked the Council saying that it was 
an honor to accept the proclamation on behalf of the Foundation.  She further said, “About 22,000 
women will be diagnosed this year and more than 14,000 will die this year.  There’s no testing and 
symptoms are difficult to detect.  But women must be proactive and be their own ‘best healthcare 
advocate’.” 

  

6. COMMUNITY PARTICIPATION FORUM 

Each person will be limited to a discussion of three (3) minutes or as directed by the Mayor.  
Pursuant to provisions of the Brown Act, no action may be taken on these matters unless they are 
listed on the agenda, or unless certain emergency or special circumstances exist.  City Council may 
direct staff to investigate and/or schedule certain matters for consideration at a future City Council 
meeting. 
 
Mr. Deek (Richard) Segovia of the Vietnam Veterans of American, Chapter 982 in Guadalupe, 
announced a blood drive on Friday, September 24th at the Senior Center.  This drive will run from 
2:00 p.m. to 6:00 p.m.  He said, “Guadalupe hasn’t had a blood drive in quite some time.  Vitaland is 
the name of the blood bank handling this drive and they service Guadalupe and both Santa Barbara 
and San Luis Obispo Counties.  Most businesses downtown have flyers up showing all the necessary 
information.”   
 
Mr. Segovia also mentioned that Friday, September 17th is “National POW/MIA Day”.  He said, “It’s 
always the third Friday of September.  A lot of civilians and even some veterans aren’t aware of this 
holiday.  We go out to different areas and pass out clovers in remembrance.  There are a little under 
1,600 MIA from Vietnam and 40,000 from WWII and all other conflicts.” 

 

7. CONSENT CALENDAR  

The following items are presented for City Council approval without discussion as a single agenda 
item in order to expedite the meeting.  Should a Council Member wish to discuss or disapprove an 
item, it must be dropped from the blanket motion of approval and considered as a separate item. 

 



September 14, 2021 City of Guadalupe Council Meeting Agenda  Page 3 of 17 

 

A. Waive the reading in full of all Ordinances and Resolutions. Ordinances on the Consent 
Calendar will be adopted by the same vote cast as the first meeting, unless City Council 
indicates otherwise. 
 

B. Approve payment of warrants for the period ending September 8, 2021. 
 

C. Approve the Minutes of the City Council regular meeting of August 24, 2021, to be ordered 

filed. 

 

D. Adopt Ordinance No. 2021-496 second reading, amending the official zoning map to prezone 

and approving annexation of a 0.58-acre area located at the southwest side of the 

intersection of Simas and Eleventh Street.   

 

E. Adopt Resolution No. 2021-69 authorizing Mayor Julian to execute Amendment No. 1 to the 

City’s agreement with EMC Planning Group Inc. to extend their contract to complete 

preparation of the 2021 General Plan update.   

 

F. Adopt Resolution No. 2021-70 accepting the Cal Fire, Rural Fire Capacity (RFC) grant in the 

amount of $7,846.21 for wildland equipment and radio communication equipment.  

 

G. Adopt Resolution No. 2021-71 authorizing Mayor Julian to execute a construction contract 

with CalPortland Construction for the 2021 Pavement Rehabilitation Project and an 

agreement with Cannon for contract inspection services.  

 

H. Adopt Resolution No. 2021-72 authorizing Los Amigos de Guadalupe (LADG) to sell the 

sculptures previously owned by the Squire Foundation and apply proceeds to the LeRoy Park 

Renovation Project. 

 

I. Adopt Resolution No. 2021-73 approving the use of Fund 26 RDA operating funds in the 

amount of $32,115.00 to cover the cost of the water-damaged gym steel column, Part B 

change order – LeRoy Park and Community Center Project. 

 

J. Accept minor revisions to Cannabis Business Permit Applications Procedures and Guidelines.  

 

As stated in “Agenda Review”, Item #7.I. was pulled from the agenda.  No items were pulled for 

discussion.  Motion was made by Council Member Ramirez and seconded by Council Member 

Cardenas to approve the Consent Calendar.  4-0 Absent: Costa, Jr.  Passed. 

 

K. MONTHLY REPORTS FROM DEPARTMENT HEADS 
 

1. Planning Department report for August 2021 

2. Building Department report for August 2021 

3. Public Work/Engineering report for August 2021 

 

8. CITY ADMINISTRATOR REPORT: (Information Only) 

 



September 14, 2021 City of Guadalupe Council Meeting Agenda  Page 4 of 17 

 

Mr. Todd Bodem reported the following: 

 

1. On November 16th at 6:00 p.m. there will be a joint meeting between the City Council and the 

School District at the Mary Buren Multi-Media Room. 

 

2. At the last meeting, the Parks & Recreation Commission has asked to have a joint meeting with 

the City Council.  Date TBD. 

 

3. The American Rescue Plan (ARP) workshop will be set up some time in October. 

 

Shannon Sweeney, PW Director, gave an update on the trunk main improvement project.  She said, 

“We found out last Wednesday that because of the hurricane, the manufacture of the pipe that’s 

going to be installed has been delayed by 3-4 weeks. We were ready to put in the pipe on September 

23rd, but there will now be about a one-month delay waiting for the pipe.” 

 

9. DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC SAFETY REPORT: (Information Only) 

 
Chief Cash gave the following report: 
 
1. “Fireworks Enforcement Program:  I want to thank our city attorney for providing us with our 

hearing officer.  This is the third year of the program.  Warnings have been issued and sent out.  
There’s a $1,000 fine.  We have nine (9) cases.  Four (4) have come in to pay their fines.  We have 
five (5) cases outstanding.  All paid $100 to have their hearing. 

 
2. Thank you to HR, Finance, Council and City Administrator, who all assisted with the hiring of the 

airport police officers.  For the past two months, we have had two (2) hours of overtime at the 
airport.  All other costs for these two officers are covered by the airport contract with the City. 

 

3. Wildfires in Northern California:  the fire team is on its third rotation.  They spent 2 to 2.5 weeks 
out on each rotation. The third team is out now.  Working with HR to ensure the fire staff are not 
overworked and stressed.  Trying to do some emotional support, the animal group, “CAUSE for 
PAWS” brought out an emotional support animal for Fire to take. 

 

4. Code Compliance:  at the last Council meeting, Harold Ramirez complained about the state of 
City.  He mentioned the carwash area and the homeless.  An officer went to the carwash and 
cleaned it out.  We know who the individuals are.  Police did the initial clean up and now Code 
Compliance will do a follow-up.  Also, I want to thank Shannon and her crew at Central Park. The 
day after the Council meeting, the park was cleaned out.  Looks great.  There’s a homeless 
resident who sleeps at the jail.  We’re trying to help him. 

 

5. Public Safety attended the various Bulldogs football games on Saturday.  Both Police and Fire 
were well accepted at this community-type event.  We saw how valuable our park resources are 
and how much they’re used. 

 

6. Police Appreciation Dinner:  scheduled at the Elks tomorrow, Wednesday, September 16th. Our 
residents have been patient and supportive.  When I’ve had meetings with the City of Santa 



September 14, 2021 City of Guadalupe Council Meeting Agenda  Page 5 of 17 

 

Maria Police Chief and the District Attorney’s office and they talk about their issues, I tell them 
that Guadalupe is doing fine.  We’re in the Top 10 cities with the lowest crime rate in the State. 
That’s been achieved because of the community, City staff and citizens.  We have to stay on top 
of this. 

 

Mayor Julian said, “At the football games at O’Connell Park last Saturday, Rudy, James and Public 
Works really worked to put it together.  Kids wanted to take pictures with Fire and the engine.  Also, 
at the Santa Maria City Council meeting I recently attended, I mentioned that Mayor Patino called 
me and asked how the Police Department and community were doing.  That was nice to hear that 
our sister city and its City Council asked how we were doing.  We were appreciative of that. Chief has 
had support from Santa Maria PD and the Sherrif’s Department.”  CM Robles said, “I just want to 
add that the Guadalupe Bulldogs won all four (4) football games.  Home field advantage sometimes 
does pay off!” 
 

REGUAR BUSINESS 

 

10. Comprehensive Utility Rate Study.  

 

Written Report: Shannon Sweeney, Public Works Director/City Engineer 

Recommendation: That the City Council adopt Resolution No. 2021-74 approving the City of 

Guadalupe Comprehensive Utility Rate Study.  

 

Ms. Sweeney gave some background information on this rate study.  Staff worked with Wildan 

Financial Services to complete a Comprehensive Utility Rate Study.  The report establishes 

recommended rates taking into consideration full cost recovery for operating costs, debt, and other 

expenditure requirements, consistency with industry guidance, equity amongst customer classes, 

and administrative efficiency.   

 

Ms. Sweeney said, “Year 2016 was the last time a rate study occurred, and rates were established 

for the following five-year period.  The last increase was January 1, 2021.  A consultant was hired to 

do a rate study to look at operations, maintenance and capital projects for the next 5-10 years.  This 

study was done to make sure we have the funding necessary to move forward with infrastructure 

for water and wastewater services.  The request is for the City Council to approve the final draft or 

make changes so we can move forward.” 

 

Ms. Sweeney then gave the presentation on this rate study which included the following: 

 

1. “Proposition 218 Process:  45 days prior to the public hearing, public notices, in both English and 

Spanish, are mailed to all property owners and utility rate payers in Guadalupe.  The public 

hearing and first reading are tentatively scheduled for November 9, 2021.  If the Council approves 

tonight, the public notices will be sent out.  Second reading would tentatively be scheduled for 

November 23, 2021, provided less than half of property owners or rate payers protest the rate 

increase at the November 9th hearing and Council approves first reading.  The rejection must be 

in writing or those rejecting must be at the City Council meeting. 



September 14, 2021 City of Guadalupe Council Meeting Agenda  Page 6 of 17 

 

2. Proposed Rate Adjustment:  Cumulative 12% rate increase for each utility over five years, 

implemented as follows: 

 

January 1, 2022 = 3.0% 

January 2, 2023 = 3.0% 

January 1, 2024 = 3.0% 

January 1, 2025 = 1.5% 

January 1, 2026 = 1.5% 

 

       The last time rates were adjusted, the Consumer Price Index (CPI) was in addition to the rates. In  

 this case, the CPI is included.   These proposed rates lower the number of units available under 

the base rate from current 6 units of water included in the base rate to 5 units in 2022, and then 

4 units in 2023 (water) and from current 5 units to 4 units in 2023 (wastewater commercial), so 

the numbers are the same for both water and wastewater. 

 

3. Capital Projects: 

 

What greatly impacts a water or wastewater budget is its capital projects we anticipate over the 

next five (5) years.   

 

For wastewater we have two (2) very large construction projects currently underway:  the trunk 

line project and the effluent pump station project.  The next one is the lift station at Highway 1 

and then the lift station at Pioneer Street.  Those must be done.  There are no questions for capital 

projects for wastewater. 

 

Some of the capital projects in the last rendition of the Water Master Plan done in 2014 were 

questionable.  I took the remaining funds from an Integrated Regional Water Management Plan 

grant, a community planning grant.  There was $35,000 left and put that into the Water Master 

Plan Update.  I gave the spreadsheet 2014 Water Master Plan to the consultant and the analysis 

resulted in a rate increase of 9% per year. 

 

We went through the Water Master Plan Update and were able to remove $3M worth of capital 

projects we defined as unnecessary, bringing those rate increases down to the proposed rates of 

‘3/3/3/1.5/1.5’ for a five-year period.  It was well worth the exercise to make sure we felt positive 

that the CIPs on our list are ones we really need and that we don’t unnecessarily raise rates for 

projects we were able to define as unnecessary. 

 

4. Current Rates vs Recommended Rates: 

 

What happens if we don’t raise rates?  The consultant recommends the City have 100 days cash 

on hand for operations, in case of an unforeseen occurrence/emergency.  If we didn’t adjust the 

rates, the existing rates shows that City would have inadequate number of days cash on hand 

for water and negative days cash on hand for sewer.  Proposed rates meet target days cash on 

hand for water and temporary inadequate days cash on hand for sewer (in years 2023 and 2024 



September 14, 2021 City of Guadalupe Council Meeting Agenda  Page 7 of 17 

 

due to lift station capital projects) but it will fix itself after five (5) years.  No action on the rate 

adjustments places the City’s water and wastewater infrastructure in potential jeopardy.  Again, 

Consumer Price Index (inflation) has already been considered in the evaluation. It’s folded into 

the rates. 

 

5. Comparison with Our Neighbors: 

 

When comparing Guadalupe’s rates (combined water and sewer fees) with other cities in both 

Santa Barbara and San Luis Obispo Counties, Guadalupe’s proposed rates are in the middle of 

the average monthly bill compared to 13 other cities.  Our existing rates are just below Grover 

Beach.  Our proposed rates are a little above Grover Beach but we’re still right in the middle.” 

 

Mayor Julian asked, “Do we pump effluent across the river to the other side?”  Ms. Sweeney said, 

“Yes, Philip and I are working on an amendment extending that agreement now to continue with the 

property owner.”   The mayor then said, “About 10 years ago, a pipe was wiped out.  The replacement 

cost was $60,000.   That would wipe us out if we don’t have the necessary cash on hand.”   Ms. 

Sweeney said, “The 100 days cash on hand is more than $1M.   Before recommending any project, I 

like to see $1.5M in addition to the capital project.  We have that for water and wastewater.” 

 

CM Cardenas asked, “For five years?  Two-year base rate decreases?  Does the base rate go down in 

years 3, 4 & 5?  Ms. Sweeney responded, “The base rate doesn’t go down after Year 2.  The number 

of units stays at ‘4’ for the base rate. It doesn’t go lower than that.  The percentage of increase goes 

down the last two years.  Water is included in base rate.  The consultant said that other agencies are 

removing water in their base rate.  When people aren’t using a lot of water, they’re supporting those 

who use more.  We acknowledge there are those people who use less than ‘6’ units, but we don’t 

want to eliminate entirely.  By lowering to ‘4’, we’re splitting the difference.” 

 

CM Ramirez then asked, “What would it look like if we didn’t have “number of units?  People using 

more water would then be ‘taxed more’.  The people who use more water (spend more) should cover 

more of the bill because they’re consuming more.  If we didn’t have any base units, people who use 

less then have less impact on services.  Ms. Sweeney said, “That would be too difficult to quantify 

what that means. Our current software is somewhat poor but we’re upgrading with the purchase of 

the Tyler system.  Tyler will make it easier to quantify but it would be hard to see what it will do to 

our rates.  For example:  if we said $30 base rate for ‘4’ units with $5 each additional unit. If ‘6’ units 

were used that would equal $40.   If base rate with no units was $20, plus $4 per unit, using ‘6’ units 

would equal $44.  You lower the variable rate, but it comes out about the same.” 

 

CM Ramirez continued asking, “What’s holding things with our doing this in November instead of 

waiting for the Tyler system?”  Ms. Sweeney said, “For one, Tyler is another year out.  We don’t want 

to skip a year of rate adjustments because you then have to do higher rates to make up for the 

incremental increase loss. We can do three-year rate increases if we want.   But with no rate increase 

now, there are so many different impacts.  We need to collect to ensure infrastructure is in place.”  

Mr. Bodem asked, “If this is not done now, would you have a consultant do another rate study if 

there’s no data now?”  Ms. Sweeney said that she could ask the consultant to re-analyze things.  She 



September 14, 2021 City of Guadalupe Council Meeting Agenda  Page 8 of 17 

 

then said, “If we don’t approve this now, we can’t do rate adjustments on January 1, 2022.  It would 

then be February 1, 2022.” 

 

CM Ramirez said, “People who use more water will have more motivation to use less water if they 

see their adjustment rate is going up.”  Ms. Sweeney responded, “Take four (4) persons per 

household.  The amount of water for health and safety reasons is four (4) units.  If consumption is 

less, that might mean that the house is vacant.  Four (4) units is healthy conservation.  In a San Juan 

Capistrano case, the decision was that rates cannot be adjusted to conserve water.  You can charge 

what it takes to make or provide the water, but you can’t charge to conserve. The only way we can 

encourage conservation is to lower the number of units in the base rate and still be legal.  But once 

you get down to four (4) units, you’re at the health and safety levels.  That’s why ‘4” is used.” 

 

Mayor Julian asked, “What is the average water usage?  Is it 58 gallons per person per day?”   Ms. 

Sweeney responded, “Removing commercial/industry, it’s about 60 gallons per person per day.  And 

I’m very happy with that number.  When I worked in Santa Maria, we strove for 90 gallons per person 

per day.  It was at 120 gallons per day.”   The mayor then said that in Marin County, it’s 270 gallons 

per person per day. 

 

City Attorney Sinco asked, “If the Council approved the study as is, rates, etc., can you tinker once 

Tyler gives you data and be cost efficient by using same consultant or would that require a whole 

new study?”  Ms. Sweeney said that she could request that now.  We can get a five-year rate 

approved now, and we can come back in maybe two years and change then.  When the Tyler system 

comes in, we can make some recommendations.” 

 

CM Ramirez said that he would approve 1-to-2-year rate increase now and revisit later but won’t 

approve all five-year increases.  He said, “I don’t want to bank on futureness.” 

 

The mayor then asked, “Resolution No. 2021-74 approval of the rate study.  If we have to come back 

in the future to look at it, we will.  What was the cost?”  Ms. Sweeney said, “$36,000.  I budgeted for 

$60,000 but it’s under $40,000.”  

 

City Attorney Sinco said, “Ask the consultant to provide additional information for the Council.  

Would that have to be in the rate study or is that separate to be presented at the next meeting?”  

Ms. Sweeney said, “I can ask the consultant to make some adjustments if it’s clear what ‘tinkering’ 

you’re requesting.  A rate study is a rate study.  It gives you a line.  Gives information.  The rate study 

proposes five years.  The Prop 218 notice can say what you want to do.  It establishes a means to 

protest.  If you wish, we can say we do three-year increases.  At the public hearing we can say if we 

don’t do a rate hike on January 1, 2022, here’s what we need to do.”   City Attorney Sinco then said, 

“We can approve study but not be bound by it.”  To which Ms. Sweeney asked, “I need guidance on 

what the Prop 218 notice is to say.” 

 

CM Ramirez asked, “Why not accept the rate study rather than go through an approval through a 

resolution?”  Ms. Sweeney said, “Because I haven’t finalized it.  I didn’t know how you’d feel about 

six (6) units going to four (4) units.  I wanted the Council to review and give input before it was 



September 14, 2021 City of Guadalupe Council Meeting Agenda  Page 9 of 17 

 

finalized.”  City Attorney Sinco said, “A resolution is a more formal motion.  With a resolution 

number, we can track but doesn’t make it more binding.”  Mr. Bodem added, “These rate increases 

include chemicals.  Those costs go up.  If CPI goes up, everything goes up.  If you average over five 

(5) years, it’s not outrageous.” 

 

CM Cardenas asked, “The Tyler system.  Is that the new water meter system?”  Ms. Sweeney 

responded, “It’s the new financial software.  It has a billing module for water.  There’s money in the 

budget to update meters that are now read on foot once a month.  With the new system, water 

meters can be read once per hour and reported to a radio tower four (4) times a day.  We’d be able 

to read more quickly.”  CM Cardenas asked when will that system would be in?   Ms. Sweeney said 

that the request for quotes is already written and should go out in next week or two.  CM Cardenas 

then said that this will help residents.  Ms. Sweeney said, “Yes, it will help with customer services 

assisting our residents to better understand their use and conservation methods.” 

 

Ms. Sweeney then asked, “Assuming the rate study is approved, do I need to ask consultant to tinker 

and what would I need to ask?”  CM Ramirez said, “No units included and what price for water.”  Ms. 

Sweeney said, “I’ll ask.  Take units away and just base rate for meter and charge per unit.  Then for 

the Prop 218 notice, how would that be worded?  What would that notice look like?”   

 

CM Ramirez continued asking, “If the consultant can tinker, how them look at 1-2 years; if not, five 

years.”  Ms. Sweeney then said, “So, we’re not approving the Prop 218 notice then.”  CM Ramirez 

then said, “I’d want to see all options for the increases to make the most educated decision possible 

versus a one snapshot of what it could be.”   Ms. Sweeney then asked if she was to come to the next 

council meeting with a tinkered report to which CM Ramirez said, “Yes.”  Ms. Sweeney then said, 

“Prop 218 won’t happen on November 9th.  That will be the first reading with the second reading at 

the November 23rd council meeting.  The rate adjustment then will be February 1, 2022.” 

 

City Attorney Sinco asked, “Can two options for Prop 218 be made?  If you put at five years at certain 

rates or have Prop 218 based on five-year adjustments with percentages at 3/3/3/1.5/1.5, Council 

can lower at the public hearing, if they wish to do so.”  Ms. Sweeney said, “3/3/3/1.5/1.5 is based 

off the base rate and on variable rates that I have right now.  I don’t know how to compare that.” 

 

City Attorney Sinco made some additional comments and Ms. Sweeney said, “I’d rather wait one 

month.”  City Attorney then said, “You have your direction.”  Ms. Sweeney then summarized saying, 

“The request is to go back to consultant and ask what it would look like with “0” units under base 

rate or the other one.  Staff report at the next Council meeting will show both of those options.  We’d 

do Prop 218 notice after based on the option chosen:  either adjustments based on “0” units under 

base rate or rate study.  Public hearing will be off by one month because Prop 218 timelines need to 

be followed.” 

 

Motion made by Council Member Ramirez and seconded by Council Member Cardenas to approve 

Resolution No. 2021-74 approving the City of Guadalupe Comprehensive Utility Rate Study.  Roll 

Call:  Ayes: Ramirez, Cardenas, Robles, Julian   Noes: 0   Abstain: 0   Absent:  Costa, Jr.  4-0 Passed. 

 



September 14, 2021 City of Guadalupe Council Meeting Agenda  Page 10 of 17 

 

11. Presentation of Proposed Short-Term Rentals Ordinance for Discussion Only.  

 

Written Report: Philip Sinco, City Attorney 

Recommendation: That the City Council deliberate and provide direction, if any, concerning a 

proposed ordinance that would regulate short-term rentals and amend various provisions of the 

Guadalupe Municipal Code.   

 

At a City Council meeting back on October 13, 2020, the Council was provided with a staff report 

that dealt with the growth of these types of rentals which was in response to concerns raised about 

their use.  That report showed a variety of options available to municipalities to address negative 

impacts from them, such a completely banning them and ways to regulate them. 

 

At that October 13th meeting, the Council agreed with staff’s recommendation to consider adopting 

an ordinance that would require property owners who rent all or a portion of their properties to 

short-term renters to obtain a business license and pay transient occupancy tax on these short-term 

rentals.  The Council then directed staff to prepare an appropriate ordinance and bring back to 

Council for further consideration at a later date. 

 

A resident of Pasadera spoke at a City Council meeting on August 24, 2021, stating that the property 

owner does not live at the house next to hers.  That resident said that the property is used 

exclusively as a short-term rental with individuals who rent the property having no respect for the 

neighbors with ongoing loud parties.  Because this property as well as others are being bought for 

investment purposes only, the buyers can pay more for these properties, potentially locking out 

persons who want to purchase and reside on a permanent basis.  At the present time, there are 

about ten (10) short-term rentals listed on the AirBnB website for the City of Guadalupe, nine (9) of 

which are in the Pasadera development. 

 

City Attorney Sinco began the presentation by saying, “I’m bringing this forward now for Council, 

staff, and the public to give their comments to ensure the City gets the best possible ordinance 

regulating short-term rentals.  We can’t introduce the ordinance as the required notice of public 

hearing was not issued in time for the September 14, 2021 meeting.  He also mentioned that this 

proposed ordinance is mostly based on the one for Redwood City and some other cities, too. City 

Attorney Sinco then continued by explaining the purpose of the proposed short-term rentals 

ordinance is to: 

 

• Allow limited short-term rental uses while preserving residential character. 

• Establish operating standards to reduce potential noise, parking, traffic, property 

maintenance, safety, and other impacts on adjacent neighbors. 

• Provide a process to track and enforce these requirements as needed and ensure appropriate 

collection of transient occupancy taxes. 

 

He said “The proposed ordinance requires all owners of properties used for short-term rentals to   

obtain a business license, to apply to register their short-term rental with the City, to pay transient 

occupancy tax on all such rentals, and that these properties not violate any City Municipal Code 



September 14, 2021 City of Guadalupe Council Meeting Agenda  Page 11 of 17 

 

provisions concerning nuisances. In addition, the proposed ordinance distinguishes between 

“hosted” and “un-hosted” short-term rentals.  Hosted and/or un-hosted short-term rentals would 

not be allowed on any property if prohibited by conditions, covenants and restrictions (CC&Rs) or by 

the rules of a homeowners’ or community association.  These are only some of the details in the 

proposed ordinance. 

 

City Attorney Sinco then gave a little more information on the two types of short-term rentals: 1) 

Hosted – property owner is on site from 10:00 p.m. to 6:00 a.m. and 2) Un-hosted – property owner 

is not onsite; most popular type and most used.  He then said, “The person who spoke at the August 

24th meeting had a concern on these un-hosted rentals.  There should be a limited number of days 

for un-hosted rentals as well as a local contact person with a 60-minute response time.  I talked to 

Craig Smith, Project Manager/Vice-President for the developer of the Pasadera project regarding 

imposing CC&Rs to prohibit short-term rentals in the newer development section of Pasadera.”  He 

then cited a case in Missions Hills (Brown v. Montage) where short-term rentals had been allowed 

for 16 years.  The Homeowners’ Association (HOA) said “No more” and they were sued.  The property 

owner won.  The Court said the HOA could say ‘No’ to the short-term rentals only going forward but 

not retroactively.”    

 

Mayor Julian said, “There is no HOA at Pasadera.  Is he proposing not having anymore?”  City 

Attorney Sinco said, “Yes, that’s what he’s proposing.   There will be limitations placed on the deeds 

so that anyone buying at Pasadera will know of short-term rental limitations.  There will be a CC&R 

document.  This will show in the ordinance.” 

 

City Attorney Sinco continued explaining more about the proposed ordinance.  He said, “All 

properties have to be registered.  There is an application fee as well as a business license fee.   If they 

meet all the conditions of the registration process, it will be granted.  That’s a ministerial act.  There’s 

one other provision for “un-hosted” short-term rentals: an administrative use permit (AUP) is 

required with a fee in the form of a deposit.  Also, for the un-hosted rental, you have to have the AUP 

before they can get the registration.”   He further explained that an application for registration can 

be denied for reasons such as fraud and/or false statements in the application and any violation of 

any provision of the Municipal Code or federal or state laws.  He then said, “If any property whose 

registration has been denied or revoked won’t be eligible to apply for a new registration for a twelve 

(12) month period.  And for a short-term un-hosted rental, the AUP would also be revoked and 

wouldn’t be eligible to apply again for twelve months.  A revocation hearing would be informal with 

the Planning Director and appeal by the City Administrator.  So, due process would be provided.” 

 

He also gave some other general information saying, “TOT (Transient Occupancy Tax), which is 

currently 6%, would have to be paid.  Staff will want to recommend increasing it at the next election.  

There will be need to maintain records of compliance.  No special events will be permitted, like 

weddings, corporate retreats, commercial functions and similar events that cause excessive traffic, 

noise, etc. - only residential-type use.  And for those properties that are un-hosted, a local contact 

person must be identified, available 24/7 and respond within 60 minutes of call or complaint.  This 

local contact will need to be identified to the guests and surrounding neighbors.” 

 



September 14, 2021 City of Guadalupe Council Meeting Agenda  Page 12 of 17 

 

Mayor Julian asked, “What’s the tie-in with noise?  Call the local contact person?  What are the 

consequences of no action?”  City Attorney Sinco said, “The Police can document.  There are multiple 

levels of enforcement.  Right now, there’s just code enforcement. If violations warrant, you can 

prosecute (bring criminal charges).  They could be accessed up to $1,000 per day.  They’d lose their 

right to operate if they don’t comply.  The purpose of this proposed ordinance is to put additional 

controls to manage the properties.” 

 

The mayor then said, “The lady that was here at the August meeting, she brought up the fact that 

there were a lot of vehicles parked, a lot of noise.  Next door to me is a four-bedroom home which 

can be inundated with vehicles.   Are we looking at putting restrictions on the number of vehicles 

permitted?”   City Attorney Sinco said, “We don’t have those policies and procedures in place.  With 

an AUP, we’d be concerned if number of people and cars exceed the AUP and the permissible number 

of people.   That type of violation could result in revoking the permit.  Additional controls could be 

tailored to each property.”   

 

He then added, “We also want to avoid larger homes for un-hosted rentals, like going to the dunes.” 

Mayor Julian said, “Vacation rentals are astronomical in Pismo Beach.  Can’t buy a home for less 

than $1M.  People are buying homes there just for these short-term rentals.”  City Attorney Sinco 

said, “Some may want to buy a house for short-term rentals here to supplement income but the 

proposed ordinance limits to 120 days.” 

 

There were two other points City Attorney Sinco made:  1) Amnesty Period – he recommended a 

couple of months so people can be aware of the ordinance, limitations, restrictions, etc.  He said, 

“Sometimes the rentals are booked way in advance.  I don’t want to interfere with contracts.  

However, a deadline to file an application should be stated, and 2) AUP Process – he explained some 

legislative action in 2018 relating to accessory dwelling units (ADUs) and establishment of 

administrative permit (AUP) process for ADUs.  Further legislation resulted in the AUP process for 

ADUs being stopped but it was not deleted from the Municipal Code.  He said, “I’d recommend 

keeping the language on the books even if the Council didn’t want to use for short-term rentals.” 

 

City Attorney Sinco then talked about some alternatives listed as follows: 

 

1. Register only one dwelling unit as a short-term or one un-hosted rental. 

2. Multiple dwellings – limitation could be applied to one lot or parcel, or on a parcel with an 

ADU or a duplex, to allow only one of the units to be rented as an un-hosted short-term rental 

during the same time period. 

3. Maximum of 120 days for un-hosted short-term rentals – can increase or decrease. 

4. Prohibit un-hosted short-term rentals; limit to hosted only. 

5. AUP fee – change, making it a deposit. 

 

Mayor Julian said, “The property next door to me was purchased for $300,000.  About $100,000 was 

put into it; built a patio in the back.  One time there was a lot of loud noise.  I talked to the out-of-

town owner who said, ‘Just call the cops.’  An important element here is having the local contact and 

requiring them to respond within sixty minutes.  Document if no answer on these things.   Also, large 



September 14, 2021 City of Guadalupe Council Meeting Agenda  Page 13 of 17 

 

companies are buying and renting out hampering local rentals.  Money can be made here.”   City 

Attorney Sinco added that that is a concern for people wanting to move into Guadalupe who might 

lose out on someone wanting to buy property for short-term rentals.” 

 

The mayor then asked, “What if someone has an AirBnB and doesn’t tell anyone?”  CM Robles said, 

“Flying under the radar?  Maybe we’re not catching them.  They take a pro-active stance.  They’re 

good and responsible.  But I agree with Craig Smith to put language into the deeds.  You can’t come 

in and do whatever you want with the home you purchased.  Put a limit on the number of violations 

someone can get.  Constant nuisance and non-compliance.  If there are so many violations, revoke 

the permit. This would help the neighbors out.  Who is actually renting out?” 

 

City Attorney Sinco said, “We won’t get cooperation from AirBnB.  We’d have to do our own 

investigation.  We could rely on neighbors.  If they’re going under the radar but we find out they’ve 

operating a short-term rental, they won’t be able to operate and there could be serious penalties.” 

 

CM Robles added, “We know that in Pismo Beach, SanLuis Obispo and Cal Poly at graduation time, 

everything’s booked up.  Never thought it would be here in Guadalupe.” 

 

CM Ramirez said, “I understand the concerns.  I like Alternative #1.  We shouldn’t abandon short-

term rentals altogether.  Someone can buy one and have it and that’s it – hosted or un-hosted.”  CM 

Cardenas questioned, “Are we limited on how many AirBnBs they could have?”  CM Ramirez said, “if 

I buy another home, that’s it.  Un-hosted for 120 days or whatever number of days we agree on.” 

 

Mayor Julian said, “Where’s the teeth to the landlord of an un-hosted for not complying.?”  City 

Attorney Sinco said, “Multiple.  Violation of code.  Issue compliance order and daily penalties, up to 

$1,000 per day, $200,000 maximum per year.”  The mayor said that the landlord needs to know 

what non-compliance is.  City Attorney Sinco said, “Not everything can be spelled out, but it takes 

time.  There are a lot of different options.  As city attorney, I can file a code enforcement civil 

injunction and I’d get a court order for the property owner not to operate, etc.” 

 

The mayor mentioned that in Tiburon, the limit is 45 days per year.  He also said that TOT is not a lot 

of money.  City Attorney Sinco said that it could cover the cost of administering the program.  The 

mayor then said that it would help the neighbors impacted.  City Attorney Sinco said, “That’s the 

goal.  You don’t want to prohibit the short-term rentals entirely.”  

 

City Attorney Sinco said, “We want to work with those that own these short-term rentals.”  CM 

Robles asked, “I don’t know how obtrusive this can be but maybe not video surveillance but some 

sort of surveillance?”   City Attorney Sinco then talked a bit about the need to disclose for interior 

surveillance, monitoring, and external surveillance.  He said, “Once ordinance is passed, procedures 

would be drafted.  That’s one way to verify accuracy.  Also, are there any other alternatives that the 

Council wants?” 

 

CM Cardenas asked, “What about weddings?  You said there couldn’t be weddings in the rentals.”    

City Attorney Sinco clarified, “Wedding receptions are okay but not the actual wedding event.” 



September 14, 2021 City of Guadalupe Council Meeting Agenda  Page 14 of 17 

 

 

Mayor Julian then said, “I personally want more time to look at this.  You’ve heard our comments.”  

City Attorney Sinco said, “We’ll have another hearing on it.  I won’t bring it forward yet.  I told the 

woman who lives in Pasadera about this ordinance and the meeting tonight.  I’ll have Larry work on 

some conditions that you’ll want to see.  Not part of the ordinance.  When can this come back?”  The 

mayor said, “Next meeting.” 

 

City Attorney Sinco said he misunderstood what the mayor had said.  He said he would add several 

things: 1) the language regarding people purchasing property after the rule takes effect; 2) an 

application is required; 3) one short-term rental per property owner, and 4) keep the 120 days limit.”  

CM Cardenas said, “I’m open to 180 days.  But 120 is okay.”  City Attorney Sinco said, “I’m leaving it 

at 120 days and can change later unless the Council wants to change it now.”  Mayor Julian said, 

“Ok at 120 days so long as there’s teeth in the ordinance.”  Mr. Bodem added, “In addition to Larry 

Appel working on some conditions, also work with law enforcement.”   

 

The mayor said that at a relative’s home in Hemet, if there are complaints and noise, they are asked 

to leave that night.  It’s in their ordinance.  City Attorney Sinco said, “Leave at 120 days limit…I didn’t 

hear a third vote.  CM Cardenas said, “If un-hosted six months, it could be empty that long.”  City 

Attorney Sinco added, “No, not empty.  Property owners may use as vacation home and rent out 

otherwise.  But, I see your concern.  Doesn’t have to be decided tonight.  It’s up to the Council.  Maybe 

you can think about it.” 

 

Chief Cash asked, “Can it be written up having all three options, number of days, depending on what 

they’re going to be used for?  If law enforcement is in the process with the permits, we can do regular 

checks.  We only respond months later when there’s a complaint.  Six months is a long time before 

we can do anything.  City Attorney Sinco said, “It’s difficult to track with multiple number of days 

given.  We’d be collecting TOT and they could be fraudulent.  I support 120 days.” 

 

CM Robles asked, “What is TOT on average?  What are other cities using?”  Mr. Bodem said, “12%  

with some up to 14%.”  City Attorney Sinco answered, “If we sign a Voluntary Collection Agreement 

(VCA) with AirBnB or hosting platform, they collect TOT and give to the City twice a year.  In this 

ordinance, City must collect the TOT.  If they don’t pay, we can issue penalties.  Mr. Bodem added 

that if we look at TOT increase, it should be before a hotel comes in here.” 

 

CM Cardenas said, “We did look at TOT before.   We set a percentage on it.”  CM Ramirez added that 

that had to go before the voters.  City Attorney Sinco said, “The recommendation then was to focus 

on sales tax increase at election time which was more important.   We didn’t want two tax increases.  

The TOT increase will happen in the next election in 2022.  That’s part of the economic development 

plan for TOT to increase.” 

 

CM Robles suggested as an incentive to waive the TOT for 60 days just to get them on board.  City 

Attorney Sinco said, “We could say if they sign up in first three months, we’ll waive TOT, etc.  I’ll draft 

some language for that.  Amnesty provision in the proposed ordinance says that TOT has to be 

collected when the ordinance takes effect.”  He then said, “No motion needed.   I have consensus on 



September 14, 2021 City of Guadalupe Council Meeting Agenda  Page 15 of 17 

 

one change.  I’ll bring back a fresh version of the ordinance that won’t say ‘Draft’ on it.  At the next 

meeting, we’ll pick it up.” 

 

12. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 

 

Short-Time Rentals Ordinance:  bring back at 9/28 meeting 

Recreation & Parks meeting with City Council:  TBD 

American Rescue Plan (ARP) Workshop:  date TBD for October  

Proposed Utility Rate Increases:  First Reading @ 11/23 meeting 

Proposed Utility Rate Increases:  Second Reading @ 12/14 meeting 

 

13. ANNOUNCEMENTS - COUNCIL ACTIVITY/COMMITTEE REPORTS 

 

CM Cardenas 

 

1.  Attended the City of Santa Maria City Council meeting on September 7th with Mayor Julian and 

CM Ramirez.  Proclamation was read about Santa Maria’s relationship with Guadalupe. 

2. CJPIA included Guadalupe’s 75th anniversary in their newsletter. 

3. With Mayor Julian and CM Robles, we presented Mr. Joseph Sauceda his proclamation at his 

home. (Chief was also there.) “He sang to us.  Very vibrant for age 101.” 

CM Ramirez 

“I want to steal their ‘Hometown Hero’ idea acknowledging people from different walks of life.  Those 

who help boost morale, help with COVID response, farmworkers, military, etc.  The people are 

nominated by the community.  There are pictured banners that are posted in the city.   City Attorney 

Sinco added, “It started as a fundraiser for the City of Santa Maria.  There is a cost associated with 

the program.  It was initially limited to the military.” 

CM Robles 

“KCOY and KSBY have been here to City Hall for meetings, interviews, etc.  Can we look into having 

our City seal for our podium and have wheels on the podium if the City stages an event?  Maybe add 

a couple planters.  If we meet with the media, it makes for good optics.” 

Mayor Julian 

1. SBCAG-Measure A Citizens Advisory Committee-North County:  Two individuals were selected by 

a selection committee. There’s an SBCAG meeting this Thursday to appoint them. 

2. Pasadera Veterans Streets:  Craig Smith will give us the number of streets at Pasadera on the 

southside of Santa Maria Valley Railroad to be named.  There are about 20, possibly more streets 

to be named.  There’s a group of veterans who will make the selection to the Council.  Priority 

will be given to those killed in action, POWs, MIAs, etc. 

3. Clean Air Room Purifiers:  I’ve mentioned this before.  These purifiers are free.  A flyer will be 

distributed soon.  About 650 will be handed out on 9/26 and 9/30 at the Dunes Center.  We’re 

trying to get Fire PD and the school to participate in the distribution. 



September 14, 2021 City of Guadalupe Council Meeting Agenda  Page 16 of 17 

 

4. Mayors’ Luau will be held on 10/9.  City Attorney Sinco is sponsoring a table.  It’s an outdoor 

event held now at the Santa Maria Country Club.  It’s a Hawaiian themed event. 

5. Appreciation Dinner:  8-10 different agencies will be recognized at the Elks on 9/15. 

 

14. ADJOURNMENT TO THE SUCCESSOR AGENCY BOARD MEETING 

 

Motion made by Council Member Cardenas and seconded by Council Member to adjourn to the 

Successor Agency meeting.  4-0   Absent:  Costa, Jr.  Passed.  Meeting adjourned to Successor 

Agency meeting at 8:15 p.m.  

 

15. Successor Agency to the Redevelopment Agency of the City of Guadalupe approving the amended 

Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule (ROPS) 21-22 for the January 1, 2022 through June 30, 

2022 period.  

 

Written Report: Cheryl Murase, Consultant to the Successor Agency 

Recommendation: That the City Council adopt Successor Agency Resolution No. 2021-02 

approving the amended Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule for the January 1, 2022, through 

June 30, 2022 period.  

 

Once per Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule (ROPS) period, and no later than October 1st of 

each year, a successor agency may submit one amendment to the ROPS, if the Santa Barbara 

Countywide Oversight Board makes a finding that a revision is necessary.  The Successor Agency to 

the Redevelopment Agency of the City of Guadalupe (Successor Agency) desires to amend ROPS 

2021-22B in order to fund property maintenance anticipated to be higher than amount originally 

approved. 

 

Mr. Todd Bodem, Successor Agency Executive, explained that the Successor Agency owns property 

as a Leaking Underground Fuel Tank (LUFT) site (Al’s Union).  He said, “In 2008, the Agency was 

accepted into the State Water Resources Cleanup of Underground Storage Tanks Fund, approving a 

total Letter of Commitment in the amount of $1.5M.  Cleanup costs are reimbursed by the State 

within six months once the claim has been submitted.  Some things aren’t reimbursed.  Utility costs 

are not reimbursed by the State.  The Successor Agency is asking to amend ROPS for $25,000 for 

these non-reimbursable costs and $150,000 for remediation and remaining costs for the well 

abandonment and final closure activities to be incurred during the ROPS 21-22 Period.” 

 

Mr. Bodem recommended that the Successor Agency Board approve the recommendation to adopt 

Resolution No. 2021-02, which approves the amended recognized obligation payment schedule for 

the January 1, 2022, through June 30, 2022, period.  He then said, “Once the Oversight Board 

approves adopting Resolution No. 2021-02, with attachment, the Successor Agency staff will then 

transmit the Amended ROPS 21-22B to the Department of Finance, with copies to the County 

Administrative Office, County Auditor Controller, and State Controller’s Office. 

 

Motion made by Council Member Cardenas and seconded by Council Member Robles to adopt 

Successor Agency Resolution No. 2021-02, adopting the amended recognized obligation 



September 14, 2021 City of Guadalupe Council Meeting Agenda  Page 17 of 17 

 

payment schedule for the January 1, 2022 through June 30, 2022 period.  4-0   Absent:  Costa, Jr.  

Passed. 

 

16. ADJOURNMENT  

 
Motion made by Council Member Cardenas and seconded by Council Member Robles to adjourn.  
4-0   Absent:  Costa, Jr.  Passed.  Meeting adjourned at 8:24 p.m. 

 

 

 Prepared by:       Approved by: 

 

 ________________________________________  ________________________________ 

 Amelia Villegas, City Clerk     Ariston Julian, Mayor 
 

 

 

 



Page 1 of 2 

Agenda Item No. 8E 

REPORT TO THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GUADALUPE 
Agenda of September 28, 2021 

_______________________________ 
Prepared by:   
Todd Bodem, City Administrator 

SUBJECT:  Approval for the amended Scope of Work and Budget for Subrecipient Agreement with 
Los Amigos de Guadalupe (LADG). 

RECOMMENDATION:  

It is recommended that the Council approve the amended scope of work (Exhibit A) and budget (Exhibit 
B) for the City’s Agreement with Los Amigos de Guadalupe.

DISCUSSION: 

LADG (originally Rural Community Development Corporation of California (RCDCC)) was hired by the City 
in October of 2018 to manage the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) contract 
(#17CDBG12099) which included project management of the LeRoy Park and Community Center 
renovation and the completion of the Resilience-Guadalupe Plan.  On October 27, 2020, the City entered 
into a new agreement with RCDCC and added management of two more grants CDBG CV1 
(20CDBGCV100085) and CDBG ED (20CDBG12089) to RCDCC.  On March 4, 2021, RCDCC changed its 
name to Los Amigos de Guadalupe (LADG), and the City Council substituted LADG in place of RCDCC in 
the October 27, 2020 agreement (see Attachment 2). 

There is one new CDBG award that has been approved by the Department of Housing and Community 
Development (HCD): CDBG CV2/3 Covid-19 response (20CDBGCV2300015). The Council previously 
authorized submission of this application. The new scope of work includes the administration and 
implementation of this CDBG contract along with the three other CDBG contracts the City currently has. 
LADG advised the City that Exhibit A (Scope of Work) and B (Budget) of the existing agreement with the 
City would have to be amended in order for LADG to perform the administration and implementation of 
this new CDBG grant, which is the implementation of senior services (meals and nutrition services).  (See 
Attachment 1). 

Under federal subrecipient rules described in 24 CFR 570.204(c), the City approved the original October 
27, 2020 agreement without any end dates, allowing for periodic reviews and amendment, or budget 
changes, based on the City needs for LADG to administer any future grant awards.  



Page 2 of 2 
 

As the City will be awarded the CDBG CV2/3 Covid-19 response (20CDBGCV2300015), City staff and LADG 
have determined that LADG is needed for the administration and implementation of the award for the 
senior meals activity. In other words, LADG will not only manage the contract administration but will also 
operate the senior meals program on behalf of the city. 

Additionally, LADG and the City have revised the scope of work to include additional items related to 
operating awarded activities and not just managing the contract administration. It should be noted that 
some items in the scope of work are not reimbursable under the present grants, and some are unlikely 
ever to be funded. LADG will continue to find other sources of funds to pay the costs. These include 
operating costs, for example insurance coverage, and support services for the City, for example, grant 
searches, grant reviews, grant application writing, public outreach efforts, and maintaining community 
events on behalf of the City.  

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Amended Scope of Work (Exhibit A) and Amended Budget (Exhibit B) to Agreement between 
LADG and the City of Guadalupe 

2. Agreement between LADG and the City of Guadalupe  
 
 



Exhibit A – Scope of Work 

Scope of Work: 

For all assigned grant contracts awarded to the City, LADG will ensure all contract obligations are 
completed, and completed within the contract periods. This includes all reporting requirement, 
submission of all required documents, and primary contact work with funding agencies. 

LADG will ensure an open communication with the City on all necessary communication between 
the City and the funding agencies. LADG will also provide, as needed, any needed presentation, 
training or simple explanation of the funding sources and their requirements for both the 
application process and the contacting period. 

LADG will research grant funding sources that would benefit the City and their Goals and 
Objectives. 

When assigned, LADG will complete the full application process for a grant source once the City 
agrees that the grant program would be beneficial to the City’s Goals and Objectives. 

LADG, with funding available, will have one full time staff person assigned at City Hall to 
coordinate application and contract management. 

For each new awarded funding, LADG will work with City staff on roles, responsibilities and 
determine what gaps in capacity for implementation of the grant award and fill that gap. 

LADG will submit budgets for each new award where LADG will be involved in the contract 
implementation for Council approval. The Budget will include line-item detail as contract scope 
of work if needed. 

LADG, when managing CDBG or other federally funded grant awards will provide the City with 
the technical assistance on all federal requirements (NEPA, Prevailing wage, procurement, 
Section 3, MBE/WBE, for example) and either implement these requirements or ensure 
appropriate consultants are hired. 

LADG will provide ongoing outreach assistance to the City using website, flyers, interested 
parties’ lists, and social media to promote and encourage community involvement in City 
projects.  

LADG will submit a monthly report to the city council on the first meeting of the month. LADG 
staff will be present at the council meeting for council questions. 

LADG will hire staffing for city programs that the city staff would not operate (for example, senior 
meals program). The hiring of staff will include either city staff and/or council members so that 
the City is included in the decision making process of new hires. LADG will also submit for 
approval, new position duty statements of any new hire as part of the interviewing process. 

Attachment 1



Exhibit B - Cost Proposal/Budget 

Budget Item Amount Comments 
Contract Administration $135,000 This includes three CDBG Contracts: CV (2 contracts), 

Microenterprise, and 17CDBG12099 (remaining 
contract work: Resilience Plan/LeRoy Park) 

Resilience Plan $30,000 Remaining work/funds from 17CDBG12099 
Covid Community 
Service Coordinator 

$250,000 Two Contracts. This amount represents the staffing 
costs needed for LADG to hire and operate the CV 
programs. Equipment/operating cost not included. 
City will bill the grants directly for these costs. 

Microenterprise 
Program 

$50,000 ED activity work to process businesses for technical 
assistance and loans and grants for 3 years. 
Remaining funds will go to Loans and Grants. 

TOTAL $465,000 

The above is based on two types of work LADG is completing for the city. Firstly, each contract 
has unique requirements from reporting to funds requests, to maintaining public reports. This 
contract management work is required for the life of the grant. Above, we have from one year 
remaining (17CDBG) to 4 years on the Microenterprise Assistance program. Secondly, as per the 
city request, LADG is implementing activities: operating a food bank delivery service and a 
microenterprise assistance program, and more recently, restarting and operating a senior meals 
program. These activities require LADG to hire additional staff. 



Attachment 2







































Agenda Item No. 8F 1a. 





Rev: 06/17/2021

GUADALUPE FIRE DEPARTMENT 
TO: PUBLIC SAFETY DIRECTOR, MICHAEL CASH 
FROM: CAPTAIN PATRICK SCHMITZ 
SUBJECT: MONTHLY SUMMARY OF CODE ENFORCEMENT CASES 

August 1, 2021 – August 31, 2021 
DATE: 09/02/2021 

CALLS FOR SERVICE   AUGUST  2021 

INCIDENT TYPE This 
Month 

Last 
Month 

Year to Date 
(2021-2022) 

Year to date 
(2020-2021) 

Medical 35 38 73 74 
Structure Fire 0 0 0 0 
Cooking Fire 0 1 1 1 
Trash or Rubbish Fire 1 0 1 1 
Vehicle Fire 0 1 1 0 
Grass/Vegetation Fire 1 0 1 3 
Other Fire  0 0 0 1 
Motor Vehicle Accidents with Injuries 0 3 3 3 
Motor Vehicle Accidents No Injuries  0 1 1 2 
Motor Vehicle/Pedestrian Accident 0 0 0 2 
Hazardous Materials Spill/Release 0 0 0 2 
Hazardous Condition Other 0 1 1 0 
Water Problem/Leak 0 0 0 0 
Animal Problem 0 0 0 0 
Search / Rescue 0 0 0 0 
Public Assistance 1 1 2 4 
Police Matter/Assistance 0 1 1 1 
Illegal Burn 0 0 0 0 
Smoke Detector Activation 0 0 0 6 
Dispatch and Canceled En-route 4 3 7 9 
False Alarm 2 1 3 1 

TOTAL 44 51 95 110 

Additional Information 
STAFFING:  1 Public Safety Director (Police/Fire Chief) 

3 Fire Captains  
3 Fire Engineers 
3 Paid Call Firefighters   3 Position Vacant 

Agenda Item No. 8F 1b.



  Rev: 06/17/2021 

 

GUADALUPE FIRE DEPARTMENT 
 
 
 
Special Assignments / Coverage:  

- Strike Team Deployment E-681 (Schmitz, Garcia. I, Ambrosio) Dixie Fire 08/12/21 – 
08/27/21. 

- Strike Team Deployment E-681 Crew Swap (Mack, Nuno) Dixie Fire 08/27/21 – Current.  
- Food Distribution Senior Center 08/05/21 

 
 
 
  
CODE COMPLIANCE CASES    AUGUST 2021 
 

INCIDENT TYPE This 
Month 

Last 
Month 

Year to Date 
(2021-2022) 

Year to date 
(2020-2021) 

Business License (GMC 5.04.040) 0 0 0 0 
Litter Accumulation (GMC 8.12.020) 0 0 0 2 
Abatement of Weeds and Rubbish (GMC 8.16.010) 0 0 0 9 
Working Without Permits (GMC15.04.020) 0 0 0 1 
Address Number (GMC 15.08.020 (505.1)) 0 0 0 1 
Complaints (No Violation Found) 2 0 2 2 
Apartment Inspections 0 0 0 0 
Yearly Business Inspections 0 3 3 2 
Other 0 5 5 4 

TOTAL 2 8 10 21 

Complaints Received  3 1 4 4 
 

Miscellaneous This 
Month 

Last 
Month 

Year to Date 
(2021-2022) 

Year to date 
(2020-2021) 

Visitors  25 30 55 51 
Public Relations (Food Handout, Curtacy home inspection)  2 0 2 0 
School Visits  0 0 0 0 

 



GUADALUPE CODE COMPLIANCE
TO: PUBLIC SAFETY DIRECTOR, MICHAEL CASH 

FROM: CODE COMPLIANCE OFFICER, JOSUE MERAZ 

SUBJECT: MONTHLY SUMMARY OF CODE ENFORCEMENT CASES 
AUGUST 1, 2021 – AUGUST 31, 2021 

DATE: 09/02/2021 

CODE ENFORCEMENT CASES 

INCIDENT TYPE 
This 

Month 
Last 

Month 
Year to Date 
(2020-2021) 

Prohibition of illicit discharge (GMC 13.24.050) 0 0 4 

Animal Nuisance (Odor, Noise) (GMC 6.04.100 (A,E)) 0 0 1 

Fowl, Livestock and Wild Animals (GMC 6.04.210) 0 2 4 

Litter Accumulation (GMC 8.12.020) 8 5 41 

Abatement of Weeds and Rubbish (GMC 8.16.010) 1 2 17 

Unsafe Living Conditions (GMC 8.40.020) 0 0 0 

Unlawful Property Nuisance (GMC 8.50.070) 5 0 19 

Graffiti Abatement (GMC 9.07.060) 0 1 2 

Abandoned Vehicles/ Vehicle Covers (GMC 10.36.010) 9 14 73 

Portable/fixed basketball goals (GMC 10.48.050) 0 0 2 

Yard Sale Signs (GMC 12.13.010) 0 0 0 

Tampering with Water Service (GMC 13.04.200) 0 0 0 

Working Without Permits (GMC15.04.020) 2 2 12 

Address Number (GMC 15.08.020 (505.1)) 2 2 43 

Illegal Garage Conversion (GMC 18.08.120, 18.08.160) 0 0 0 

Damage Fence (GMC 18.52.125) 0 0 1 

Parking on Front Yard Setback (GMC 18.60.035) 0 1 11 

Trailers/Mobile homes as living space (GMC 18.56.030) 1 0 1 

Residential Solid Waste Collection (GMC 8.08.070) 5 1 10 

Landscape Maintenance Required (GMC 18.64.120) 3 2 9 

Discharge of illegal fireworks (GMC 8.24.020) 9 0 11 

72hr Parking 4 6 40 

Code 60 Citations 3 8 40 

TOTAL 52 46 341 

Complaints Received 12 10 63 

Miscellaneous 
This 

Month 
Last 

Month 
Year to Date 
(2020-2021) 

Visitors 0 0 0 

Public Relations (Food distribution, Covid Vaccination) 1 0 19 

School Visits () 0 0 0 

Agenda Item No. 8F 1c.



1 | P a g e

HUMAN RESOURCES MONTHLY REPORT – August 2021 

DEPARTMENT REPORT – PUBLIC SAFETY 

Police Department 

An officer involved in a community shooting is on leave of absence pending 
investigation effective August 22, 2021.   

Another officer is on medical leave of absence and is slated to return to work on 
October 2, 2021.  

Michael Kuhbander, a second Airport Police Officer is scheduled to start 
September 13, 2021.   

Fire Department 

Labor Negotiations with International Association of Fire Fighters, Local 4403 or 
the “Association” began on May 26, 2021 and are continuing into the new fiscal 
year.  To date, the department is over-budget by $57,034.17 in overtime and have 
already used 82.55% of its approved budget in the month of August.  
Reimbursement from mutual aid support is estimated at $28k.  The 
reimbursement does not cover overtime paid to additional personnel manning the 
local fire station while personnel are out on mutual aid due to state wildfires.        

DEPARTMENT REPORT – PUBLIC WORKS 

Devin Valdivia, Wastewater Treatment Plan Operator II is scheduled to start 
September 7, 2021.   

Human Resources 
918 Obispo Street 

P.O. Box 908 
Guadalupe, CA  93434 

Ph: 805.356.3893 
Fax: 805.343.5512 

Email: egerber@ci.guadalupe.ca.us 

Agenda Item No. 8F 2. 

mailto:egerber@ci.guadalupe.ca.us


IAFF Current Schedule ‐ Scheduled Overtime

Does not include Strike Team Coverage, Sick or Vacation Leave, Coverage Due to Coronavirus 

2021
Shift A Shift  B Shift C

Fire Engineer 

A

Fire Engineer 

B

Fire Engineer 

C

Fire                

Captain A

Fire                  

Captain B

Fire                   

Captain C

 $ OT PER 

PAYROLL 

ACTUAL OT 

PER PAYROLL

PERCENTAGE OF 

OT BUDGET DIFFERENCE

Payroll Period 15 72 96 48 ‐               ‐               ‐               ‐               ‐               ‐               6,387.75     7.10% 6,387.75    

Payroll Period 16 96 96 144 ‐               ‐               1,837.33     ‐               ‐               2,151.21     4,324.55        5,296.98     12.98% 972.43        

Payroll Period 17 144 96 96 1,641.23     ‐               ‐               2,335.26     ‐               ‐               4,312.49        5,095.65     18.64% 783.16        

Payroll Period 18 96 144 96 ‐               1,737.16     ‐               ‐               2,229.22     ‐               4,302.38        21,890.58   42.97% 17,588.20  

Payroll Period 19 96 96 144 ‐               ‐               1,837.33     ‐               ‐               2,151.21     4,324.55        35,627.17   82.55% 31,302.62  

Payroll Period 20 144 96 96 1,641.23     ‐               ‐               2,335.26     ‐               ‐               4,312.49       

Payroll Period 21 96 144 96 ‐               1,737.16     ‐               ‐               2,229.22     ‐               4,302.38       

Payroll Period 22 96 96 144 ‐               ‐               1,837.33     ‐               ‐               2,151.21     4,324.55       

Payroll Period 23 144 96 96 1,641.23     ‐               ‐               2,335.26     ‐               ‐               4,312.49       

Payroll Period 24 96 144 96 ‐               1,737.16     ‐               ‐               2,229.22     ‐               4,302.38       

Payroll Period 25 96 96 144 ‐               ‐               1,837.33     ‐               ‐               2,151.21     4,324.55       

Payroll Period 26 144 96 96 1,641.23     ‐               ‐               2,335.26     ‐               ‐               4,312.49       

Payroll Period 27 96 144 96 ‐               1,737.16     ‐               ‐               2,229.22     ‐               4,302.38       

July 1 ‐ December 24 6,564.91     6,948.62     7,349.33     9,341.04     8,916.88     8,604.86     47,725.65     74,298.13   82.55% 57,034.17  

2022
Shift A Shift  B Shift C

Fire Engineer 

A

Fire Engineer 

B

Fire Engineer 

C

Fire                

Captain A

Fire                 

Captain B

Fire               

Captain C

 $ OT PER 

PAYROLL 

ACTUAL OT 

PER PAYROLL

PERCENTAGE OF 

OT BUDGET DIFFERENCE

Pay Period 1 96 96 144 ‐               ‐               1,837.33     ‐               ‐               2,151.21     4,324.55       

Pay Period 2 144 96 96 1,641.23     ‐               ‐               2,335.26     ‐               ‐               4,312.49       

Pay Period 3 96 144 96 ‐               1,737.16     ‐               ‐               2,229.22     ‐               4,302.38       

Pay Period 4 96 144 96 ‐               1,737.16     ‐               ‐               2,229.22     ‐               4,302.38       

Pay Period 5 144 96 96 1,641.23     ‐               ‐               2,335.26     ‐               ‐               4,312.49       

Pay Period 6 96 144 96 ‐               1,737.16     ‐               ‐               2,229.22     ‐               4,302.38       

Pay Period 7 96 96 144 ‐               ‐               1,837.33     ‐               ‐               2,151.21     4,324.55       

Pay Period 8 144 96 96 1,641.23     ‐               ‐               2,335.26     ‐               ‐               4,312.49       

Pay Period 9 96 144 96 ‐               1,737.16     ‐               ‐               2,229.22     ‐               4,302.38       

Pay Period 10 96 96 144 ‐               ‐               1,837.33     ‐               ‐               2,151.21     4,324.55       

Pay Period 11 144 96 96 1,641.23     ‐               ‐               2,335.26     ‐               ‐               4,312.49       

Pay Period 12 96 144 96 ‐               1,737.16     ‐               ‐               2,229.22     ‐               4,302.38       

Pay Period 13 96 96 144 ‐               ‐               1,837.33     ‐               ‐               2,151.21     4,324.55       

Pay Period 14 48 48 48 ‐               ‐               ‐               ‐               ‐               ‐               ‐                

December 25 ‐ June 30 6,564.91     8,685.78     7,349.33     9,341.04     11,146.11   8,604.86     51,692.03     ‐               ‐              

TOTAL OT PER SHIFT 13,129.82   15,634.40   14,698.66   18,682.09   20,062.99   17,209.72   99,417.68    

2021‐2022 Fiscal Year Overtime Budget 90,000.00    

Scheduled Overtime Overages (9,417.68)     

Retro Gross 

Annual with 

HOL, INCENT 

PAY/without 

OT

Wage 

@2756 Hrs

Time & Half 

OT Wage

Fire Engineer A 79,354.78           28.79           14.40           43.19              

Fire Engineer B 83,993.01           30.48           15.24           45.71              

Fire Engineer C 88,836.67           32.23           16.12           48.35              

Fire Captain A 112,911.93         40.97           20.48           61.45              

Fire Captain B 107,784.79         39.11           19.55           58.66              

Fire Captain C 104,013.12         37.74           18.87           56.61              



2 | P a g e  

 

 
 
COVID-19  
 

 
So far, 1 out of every 12 people in the county has tested positive. Over the last 
week in August, the county averaged 127 new cases and 0.6 new deaths per day.  
An estimated 30,000 out of 37,454 people who tested positive have recovered, 
according to a common statistical method applied by the LA Times.  While the 
number of precise number of active cases is unknown the Times’ model pegged 
the number around 1,000. 
 

 
At month’s end:  

• 64.4% of Santa Barbara County residents have received at least one dose of 
56.4% are fully vaccinated.   

• 75 patients admitted to county hospitals with a confirmed case of Covid-
18, a change of 69.7% from mid-month.  

• Of those, 18 were in intensive care units.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



3 | P a g e  

 

 
 
 
COVID-19 FORECASTING 
 
California has collected a wide range of data to inform its response to COVID-19, and 
developed tools to help process and analyze that data. These are made available to 
everyone for transparency: https://covid19.ca.gov/data-and-tools/. 
 
This forecasting was updated on August 31, 2021 with data from August 30, 2021.   
 

 
 
      
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
To date, the County’s total deaths are 481.  The 30-day projection to October 1, 2021 is 
550. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
To date, the County’s daily hospitalizations increased to 75.  The 30-day projection to 
October 1, 2021 is 92. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

https://covid19.ca.gov/data-and-tools/


4 | P a g e  

 

 
 
COVID-19 STATISTICS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

https://covid19.ca.gov/state-dashboard/#ethnicity-gender-age


5 | P a g e  

 

 
 
COVID-19 STATISTICS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The state records 13.8% of all cases attributed to children 17 years and younger.  On 
August 31, 2021, children 17 years and younger made up 24.7% of all cases in the county.  
 

 



6 | P a g e  

 

 
 
WORKERS COMPENSATION  
 

In partnership with CJPIA, Company Nurse provides a 24/7, 365-day triage for work 
related illness and injuries.  It is a free service to the City and streamlines CA 
mandated injury reporting for the employee, supervisor, and employer: 
https://www.companynurse.com/.   
 
 

 

https://www.companynurse.com/


IN CASE OF WORKPLACE INJURY
ACCION a seguir en caso de un accidente en el trabajo 

AVAILABLE 
24 HOURS A DAY

Injured worker notifies supervisor. 
Empleado lesionado notifica a su supervisor.

Injured worker immediately calls injury hotline.  
Empleado lesionado llama inmediatamente a la línea de enfermeros/as. 

Company Nurse gathers information over the phone and helps injured 
worker access appropriate medical treatment.  
Profesional Médico obtiene información por teléfono y asiste al empleado lesionado 
en localizar el tratamiento médico adecuado. 

2

1

3

NOTICE TO EMPLOYEE/SUPERVISOR: 
The Employee is still required to complete the DWC-1 Form.  

The Supervisor is required to complete a Supervisor's Report of Injury Form. 
A new version of the form requires Supervisors to create the narrative surrounding the injury or 

illness in order to identify key root causes and for the City to minimize risk factors.   

Search Code (Código Del Búqueda)Employer Name (Nombre De Compania) 



Agenda Item No. 8F 3.





Updates below: 

1. Community Broadband Initiative

Understanding that Guadalupe is a rural community with limited broadband technology, there is 
group of stakeholders who are looking to find ways to improve our community broadband 
infrastructure.  

On Monday, September 27th at 3 p.m., a collective group of people will have a fully digital convening 
via zoom at 1 p.m. for 2 hours (with flexibility to extend should discussion warrant it).  An invite was 
sent to the City Council for those interested in being a part of this initiative. This would take the place 
of an in-person/hybrid meeting at the Senior Center.  This zoom meeting would be hosted by the 
Broadband Consortium of the Pacific Coast (BCPC) with co-sponsorship/support from the Guadalupe 
Broadband Task Force, the GBA*, and hopefully the City of Guadalupe.   

On Wednesday, September 22nd, the City Administrator and Mayor met Garret Matsuura (GBA) and 
a BCPC representative to discuss any specific things to be covered.  

Below is a recent article about an effort to provide broadband for all in Tri-Counties: 

https://santamariatimes.com/news/local/govt-and-politics/effort-to-provide-broadband-for-all-in-
tri-counties-moving-steadily-forward/article_bec9b11a-f40a-5fd4-99de-a7b3852ffdd8.html 

2. Bike Challenge-Project Hero

A Public Right of Way Use Special Event permit packet for the Project Hero “California Challenge” bike 
ride was approved for a scheduled October 21st & 22nd (Beginning in Pismo Beach and ending on 
10/21/21. Beginning in Solvang and ending in Santa Barbara on 10/22/21).  Purpose: Therapeutic 
bicycling event to benefit injured veterans and first responders. This is a Five (5) day event with only 
the last two days taking place in the County. This bike ride will be traveling through the Santa Maria, 
Orcutt, Sisquoc, Los Olivos, Santa Ynez, Solvang, Guadalupe, Hope Ranch and Santa Barbara areas 
(attachment 1, map route). 

3. Central Coast Community Energy - Battery Storage/Microgrids

The City Administrator and Mayor will virtually attend a TEAMS meeting on October 8th at 2 p.m. with 
the Central Coast Community Energy (CCCE). There will be a discussion about microgrids and what 
they have to offer.  There is some movement in CCCE to fund development of meter (FOM) battery 
storage. They are looking for partners (cities) to work with them on available sites that are near or on 
critical facilities. These sites, and the critical facility would be able to tap into the battery storage site 
to keep the facility operational during outages.  

Agenda Item No. 11

https://santamariatimes.com/news/local/govt-and-politics/effort-to-provide-broadband-for-all-in-tri-counties-moving-steadily-forward/article_bec9b11a-f40a-5fd4-99de-a7b3852ffdd8.html
https://santamariatimes.com/news/local/govt-and-politics/effort-to-provide-broadband-for-all-in-tri-counties-moving-steadily-forward/article_bec9b11a-f40a-5fd4-99de-a7b3852ffdd8.html


Executive Director Tom Habashi sent a letter to all their cities/counties related to this subject.   

If the City is interested, it was recommended that we respond to the letter indicating we would be 
interested in having a FOM Storage in Guadalupe and that we have a facility we would like to be a 
critical facility (emergency shelter).  

While this is not everything, we would want for LeRoy Park, it is a good start, and an additional tool 
for the city. I think, for example, solar panels should still be researched. 

4. Pasadera Veteran Street Name  

Over the past year, Mayor Julian has been working with the different veteran organizations in and 
around Guadalupe to provide a list of Local veterans for inclusion as street names in the new Pasadera 
Development.  The Mayor has corresponded with the project manager of Pasadera to ensure the 
estimated 20 new street names be included. This ad hoc group has noted a selection process for local 
veterans who “raise to the top” for those veterans who deserve a street named after them.  A draft 
street naming program guideline has been developed.   

5. Regional Park Zoom Meeting – October 6th 

Supervisor Hartmann has scheduled a multi-agency stakeholder Zoom meeting on Wednesday., Oct. 
6 at 3pm-4pm. Below you can find the Zoom information. The purpose of the meeting and draft 
agenda is as follows: 

Convening to meet to have everyone report updates on Guadalupe open space projects.  Santa Maria 
Levee Trail, Guadalupe to the Beach Trail, Rodeo (top discussion), Oso Flaco, Pt Sal Access, etc.   They 
also want to discuss how we move these forward in an integrated way that benefits Guadalupe.   They 
(we) would like to talk about next steps to form a cohesive vision, discuss grants and budgets for the 
next year.  

 DRAFT AGENDA: 
1. Intros 
2. Meeting Purpose: Vision for Guadalupe area recreation and open space 
3. New potential opportunity: Rodeo site – campground 
4. Initiatives in Guadalupe area: 

• SM Levee Trail 
• Guad to Beach Trail 
• LeRoy Park 
• Housing/Childcare Center 
• Campground site selection study 
• Oso Flaco State Park Campground 
• Pt. Sal access 
• Road improvements 
• Others? 

  
5. Potential funding and partnership opportunities 
6. Next steps 
 

6. City of Guadalupe/Food Bank: October 7, 2021, starting at 11:30 a.m. through 1:00 p.m. 



Attachment 1



Page 1 of 2 

Agenda Item No. 12 

REPORT TO THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GUADALUPE 
Agenda of September 28, 2021 

_______________________________ 
Prepared by:  
Todd Bodem, City Administrator 

SUBJECT: Temporary Appointment of Councilmember, Committee, Commission or 
Community Representatives to Ad hoc groups 

RECOMMENDATION: 

It is recommended that the Mayor and City Council nominate temporary appointments from the City 
Council and various committees/commissions/community/staff to the following ad hoc committees: 

1. City Hall Auditorium Renovation Ad hoc Committee

2. T-Mobil Hometown Techover Program $50,000 Grant Ad hoc Committee

BACKGROUND: 

Mayor Julian suggested that the City Council act on the planning efforts needed for the renovations of 
the City Hall Auditorium and use of the $50,000 Techover Program grant. It is recommended that the 
City Council appoint two ad hoc committees to temporarily sit and focus on the planning efforts and use 
of funds to complete these project initiatives.  City staff did not list any names but suggested that one 
City Council member, staff, and another committee representative be appointed to the temporary ad 
hoc committees. 

 Below is a summary of the city activity and project: 

1. Auditorium Renovation
The City Hall Auditorium needs maintenance and renovation, especially the Auditorium stage. At the
September 8, 2021 Recreation and Parks Commission meeting, the Commission recommended that
the city set aside $100,000 of American Rescue Plan Funds (ARPF) for this renovation. This fund
request will be considered at the October 5, 2021, City Council ARPF workshop along with uses of
other project funds.  There needs to be a planning effort to prioritize a scope of work.

Minimally, because the following should be prioritized, the ad hoc committee will need some 
fundraising monies and in-kind contributions: 

• Electrical needs
• Painting



Page 2 of 2 
 

• Floor renovations 
• Repair of any wall surface glitches before painting 
• Retouching archway 
• Consider improving look of front area where the pads are located 
• Improve lighting/there are lights on the front of the stage facing presenters 
• Window dressing/curtains. 
• Acoustics but probably a big-ticket item 
• Look at a sound system but also a big-ticket item. 
• Storage of tables and chairs. 
• Seek advice of an experienced person with stage set up experience; there is a local art teacher 

who painted the arch in the past.   
• Paint wall surrounding the arch. 
• Stage curtains. 

  
2. T-Mobil Hometown Techover Program Grant ($50,000) 
As you may know, T-Mobile announced Woodstock, IL as our first ever Techover winner with a recent 
press release, and segment on The TODAY Show. Although the City was hopeful to be the winner, let 
us not forget the $50,000 promise that comes as being one of the Top 10 Finalists. Initially, city staff 
believed this money should go to Jack O’Connell Park to increase funding to enhance the playground 
area presented by the Public Works Director. T-Mobil needs to stay in contact with Guadalupe and 
will keep tabs as the city completes its project over the next 12 months.  

 
Although, city park play equipment was recommended by staff, the Mayor suggested that a 
temporary ad hoc committee be appointed to determine the use of these funds and be a part of the 
planning efforts. 

 
FISCAL IMPACT: 

City Auditorium: Depends on approved budget 

T-Mobil Hometown Techover Program Grant:  $50,000 
 
  
 
  



Page 1 of 5 

Agenda Item No. 13 

REPORT TO THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GUADALUPE 
Agenda of September 28, 2021 

_______________________________ _________________________________ 
Prepared by:   Approved by:  
Philip F. Sinco, City Attorney Todd Bodem, City Administrator 

SUBJECT: Short-Term Rentals Ordinance 

RECOMMENDATION: 

That the City Council introduce on the first reading, and continue to its meeting of October 12, 2021, 
for second reading and adoption, an ordinance regulating short-term rentals in the City of Guadalupe 
and amending various provisions of Title 18 (Zoning) of the Guadalupe Municipal Code.  

BACKGROUND: 

In response to concerns about the use of some residential properties in the City of Guadalupe for short-
term rentals (i.e., rentals for a period less than 30 days) listed with online hosting platforms such as VRBO 
and AirBnB, a presentation was made to the City Council at its meeting on October 13, 2020, concerning 
the growth of these types of short-term rentals in general and in the City, as well as the range of options 
available to municipalities to address negative impacts from them, including completely banning them 
and various ways of regulating them.   

The Council was presented with two main options: (1) completely banning them in the City; or (2) 
regulating them.  The Council indicated it was not opposed to allowing short-term rentals, and therefore, 
focused its deliberations on the various ways they can be regulated by the City.  Staff recommended that 
the Council consider adoption of an ordinance that would require that property owners who rent all or 
a portion of their properties to short-term renters to obtain a business license and pay transient 
occupancy tax on these short-term stays.  The Council agreed with this recommendation and directed 
staff to prepare an appropriate ordinance and bring it back to the Council for consideration at a future 
date. 

At its meeting on September 14, 2021, a proposed ordinance regulating short-term rentals in the City 
and amending various provisions of Title 18 (Zoning) of the City’s Municipal Code was presented to the 
Council for discussion only.  A detailed presentation about the ordinance was made.  A detailed staff 
report was also prepared, and the public is referred to this report for additional background on this 
matter as it will not be reiterated in this report. 

Philip F. Sinco 



Page 2 of 5 
 

Several alternatives/options were also identified and the Council was asked to provide input and 
direction about them.  The Council directed that one of these options, namely, limiting short-term rentals 
to only one per property owner, should be added to the proposed ordinance, but otherwise, the Council 
generally endorsed the ordinance.  One additional change was discussed, which was whether to permit 
unhosted short-term rentals to 180 days per year, rather than the 120 days in the proposed ordinance, 
but there was not a consensus of Council on that issue, and therefore, further discussion of this possible 
change was deferred to this meeting. 
 
DISCUSSION: 

The purpose of the proposed short-term rentals ordinance (Attachment 3) is to: 
 

• Allow limited short-term rental uses while preserving residential character. 
 

• Establish operating standards to reduce potential noise, parking, traffic, property maintenance, 
safety, and other impacts on adjacent neighbors. 
 

• Provide a process to track and enforce these requirements as needed and ensure appropriate 
collection of transient occupancy taxes. 

 
Short-term rentals are a significant concern as they may reduce available housing stock for long term 
renters or home ownership.  The popularity of short-term rentals, and the substantial average rent that 
may be collected per night has incentivized the use of dwellings as exclusively short-term rentals. In 
some cases, one or two weeks of short-term rental revenue may equal the average monthly rent of a 
standard dwelling, motivating property owners to remove dwellings as a “residence” for month-to-
month (or longer) leases and shift them into permanent short-term rentals.  This is a serious issue in a 
time when demand for housing already substantially exceeds supply.  Additional concerns include effects 
on residential character, and how a rotating series of guests may lead to a lack of neighborliness, with 
the associated noise, parking, and traffic impacts.  
 
Despite these drawbacks, there are also benefits with permitting short-term rentals in the community.  
Income from short-term rental may be important to homeowners and residents.  The short-term nature 
of the rental adds flexibility, allowing homeowners to adjust the rental schedule as needed. In other 
cases, a person who purchases a property as a second home or a future retirement home could generate 
additional income to help finance the purchase, although this poses more potential for adverse impacts 
to neighboring properties than for hosted short-term rentals and must be addressed.   
 
The proposed ordinance requires all owners of properties used for short-term rentals to obtain a 
business license, to apply to register their short-term rental with the City, to pay transient occupancy tax 
on all such rentals, and that these properties not violate any City Municipal Code provisions concerning 
nuisances.  In addition, the proposed ordinance distinguishes between “hosted” and “unhosted” short-
term rentals.  Under the proposed ordinance, unhosted short-term rentals are only allowed if the 
property owner obtains an administrative use permit.  The ordinance, as proposed, limits unhosted 
short-term rentals to no more than 120 days per year.  This number could be changed, and a ranger 
between 90 days to 180 days (or more) can be justified.  There was some discussion about allowing 
unhosted short-term rentals for 180 days at the Council’s meeting on September 14, 2021, and should a 



Page 3 of 5 
 

majority of the Council agree, the number in the ordinance as proposed can be changed to 180 day per 
year (or other number).   
 
The proposed ordinance originally included a provision that hosted and/or unhosted short-term rentals 
would not be allowed on any property if prohibited by a conditions, covenant, or restriction (CCR) 
affecting the property or by the rules of an homeowners’ or community association.   However, as 
discussed at the September 14, 2021, Council meeting, a recent case (Brown v. Montage at Mission Hills) 
held that no such CCR or association rule could prohibit short-term rentals unless the CCR or rule was in 
place at the time the owner purchased the property.  Short-term rentals can be prohibited if the property 
owner purchases the property after the CCR or rule is imposed on the property, and local jurisdictions 
may regulate short-term rentals (or prohibit them entirely), but because of the holding in this recent 
case, the ordinance considered by the City Council at its September 14, 2021, meeting, had to be slightly 
revised to be consistent with the case holding.  The ordinance before the Council this evening has been 
appropriately modified.  
 
Under the proposed ordinance, both hosted and unhosted short-term rentals are required to submit an 
initial application to register the property as a short-term rental, and thereafter, to annually renew their 
registration.  If the application is for an unhosted short-term rental, an administrative use permit must 
be obtained prior to submitting the application, or such application will be rejected or deemed 
incomplete.  In addition, the application must include a “local contact person” if the property is for 
unhosted short-term rentals, who must be available 24 hours per day and seven (7) days per week during 
the entire unhosted short-term period to respond to any complaints about the rental within 60 minutes.  
An application fee is also required in an amount to be established by resolution of the City Council.  
 
The City is required to approve the registration if:  
 

• The property owner demonstrates the ability to meet all Municipal Code requirements;  

• The subject dwelling unit is not the subject of an active code compliance order or administrative 
citation from the City in the past twelve months;  

• A short-term rental registration for the dwelling unit has not been denied or revoked in the prior 
twenty-four-month period, and 

• An administrative use permit has been obtained if the short-term rental is an Unhosted short-
term rental property.  

 
An approved registration shall not be transferable to any other person and shall automatically expire 
upon sale or transfer of the dwelling unit.  
 
Upon registration, all short-term rentals are required to meet the following operating standards: 
 

• May only occur within legal dwelling units;  

• On-site parking spaces shall be made available to short-term renters;  

• Special events such as weddings, corporate events, commercial functions, and any other similar 
events which have the potential to cause traffic, parking, noise, or other problems in the 



Page 4 of 5 
 

neighborhood are prohibited; 

• Transient occupancy tax (TOT) must be collected;  

• Records documenting the compliance with these requirements must be retained for a period of 
three (3) years after each period of short-term rental (including records showing payment of 
transient occupancy taxes) and upon reasonable notice, such documentation must be provided  
to the City for the purpose of inspection; and  

• For unhosted short-term rentals, a local contact person shall be identified to all guests and all 
occupants of neighboring properties to be available twenty-four (24) hours per day, seven (7) 
days per week during the term of any unhosted stay. The designated local contact person shall 
respond within sixty (60) minutes to complaints regarding the condition or operation of the 
dwelling unit or the conduct of guests take remedial action.  

 
The proposed ordinance also provides for enforcement and penalties for violations.   Any short-term 
rental registration may be revoked by the Planning Director after notice and hearing for any of the 
following reasons:  
 

• Fraud, misrepresentation, or false statements contained in the application or made in the course 
of carrying on a short-term rental;  

• Any violation of any provision of the Municipal Code; or  

• Any violation of any provision of federal, or state laws.  

 
Before revoking a short-term rental registration, the Planning Director or designee shall give the property 
owner notice of the grounds for the proposed revocation and also of the time and place for the hearing.  
Any property owner whose application has been denied or registration has been revoked shall have the 
right to an administrative appeal before the City Council. 
 
Any property whose registration has been denied or revoked shall be ineligible from applying for a new 
registration for a twelve (12) month period.    
 
Finally, the proposed ordinance offers a one-year amnesty period for all short-term rentals operating on 
or before the enactment of this Chapter to allow these existing, unpermitted uses to be legalized by 
conforming to the requirements of the ordinance.  Transient occupancy tax payments are required for 
short-term rentals and must be collected and paid during the amnesty period.  Failure to obtain a 
registration approval for an existing, unpermitted short-term rental use on or before one (1) year after 
the effective date of the ordinance will require the short-term rental to cease operations and it shall be 
prohibited from resuming unless and until the use conforms to the requirements of the ordinance. 
 
Administrative Use Permit Process 

As discussed at the September 14, 2021, Council meeting, the administrative use permit (AUP) process 
that was approved by the City Council in 2018 exclusively for regulating certain accessory dwelling units 
(ADUs) soon became legally unenforceable with respect to ADUs because of further changes in state law, 
although it was not officially repealed.  In attempting to address the additional potential adverse impacts 



Page 5 of 5 
 

of unhosted short-term rentals, staff believed that an AUP process would be useful.  In revising the AUP 
provisions in Title 18 (Zoning), staff also decided to do it in such a way that it was not limited only to 
unhosted short-term rentals but could be used for other types of land use entitlements that the Council 
(in the future) might authorize.  If the Council adopts the proposed ordinance, the AUP process will only 
be available for unhosted short-term rentals unless, or until, the Council determines that other 
entitlements might be more efficiently granted through the AUP process rather than by way of a 
conditional use permitting process.   An AUP can be granted more quickly and with less expense than a 
CUP, which is an advantage from the applicant’s point of view, but they are still an entitlement, so the 
City can impose conditions on their approval and can revoke them if these conditions are violated.   
 
With respect to other amendments to Title 18 (Zoning), if approved, unhosted short-term rentals will be 
listed as “conditionally permitted” uses in the City’s residential zoning districts, and language in each of 
these sections has been added to permit such uses by an AUP (as opposed to a CUP) when the Municipal 
Code otherwise allows that. 
 
The revised administrative use permit process is available “when required or allowed” by the Municipal 
Code but shall only be issued if certain findings by the Planning Director (or his/her designee) can be 
made.  The Planning Director or designee is also required to impose conditions that may be necessary to 
serve the purposes of the City’s Zoning Ordinance (Title 18 of the Guadalupe Municipal Code).  The 
findings required to approve an AUP include a finding that issuance of the AUP will not be detrimental 
to public health and safety, introduce unreasonable adverse impacts to the immediate neighbors, and 
would not overburden sewer and water services, or overburden traffic flow.  An application for an AUP 
must be filed by the property owner(s) and a filing fee (to be determined by the City Council by 
resolution) must be paid. 
 
Finally, as directed by the City Council at the September 14, 2021, meeting, a provision has been added 
to the ordinance to prohibit any property owner from operating more than one (1) short-term rental 
(hosted or unhosted). 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Ordinance entitled “An Ordinance of the City of Guadalupe Adding Chapter 18.55 to Title 18 and 
Amending Various Other Sections of Title 18 of the Guadalupe Municipal Code Regulating the 
Short-Term Rental of Residential Dwelling Units.” 

 





ORDINANCE NO. 2021-497 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF GUADALUPE ADDING CHAPTER 18.55 TO 
TITLE 18 AND AMENDING VARIOUS OTHER SECTIONS OF TITLE 18 OF THE 

GUADALUPE MUNICIPAL CODE REGULATING THE SHORT-TERM RENTAL OF 
RESIDENTIAL DWELLING UNITS  

WHEREAS, the City of Guadalupe has a number of existing, unpermitted, dwelling units being 
used as short-term rentals defined as any occupancy of less than thirty (30) consecutive days; 
and 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Guadalupe has determined not to completely ban short-
term rentals, although it reserves the right to discontinue permitting short-term rentals, instead 
choosing to regulate them; 

WHEREAS, the City Council intends that short-term rental regulations that allow limited short-
term rentals should preserve residential character and establish operating standards to reduce 
potential noise, parking, traffic, property maintenance, safety, and other impacts on adjacent 
neighbors as well as provide a process to track and enforce all requirements and ensure 
appropriate collection of transient occupancy taxes; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council also intends that short-term rental regulations that allow limited 
short-term rentals not violate any private conditions, covenants, and restrictions or rules of a 
homeowners or community association applicable to the owner’s property that may prohibit the 
owner from using his or her property as a short-term rental unit; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council considered a proposed ordinance regulating short-term rentals and 
amending various provisions of the City of Guadalupe Zoning Ordinance Amendment on 
September 14, 2021; and 

WHEREAS, on September 28, 2021, the City Council held a duly-noticed public hearing on the 
proposed short-term rental ordinance and Zoning Ordinance amendments; and 

WHEREAS, at the public hearing the City Council considered the whole of the record including, 
but not limited to, any written and oral public comments, staff reports and staff presentations. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Guadalupe does hereby ordain as follows: 

SECTION 1.   Chapter 18.55 is hereby added to Title 18 of the Guadalupe Municipal Code to 
read as follows: 

18.55.01 Purpose. 

The purpose of this section is to: 

Attachment 1



A. Allow limited short-term rental uses while preserving residential character and establish operating 
standards to reduce potential noise, parking, traffic, property maintenance, safety, and other impacts on 
adjacent neighbors; and  

B. Provide a process to track and enforce these requirements as needed and ensure appropriate 
collection of transient occupancy taxes. 

C. Prohibit all short-term rentals except as provided for in this Chapter. 
 
18.55.02 Definitions. 

For purposes of this section, the following definitions shall apply:  
A. Neighboring properties.  The dwelling units located on any properties within 100 feet of the 

property lines where the dwelling unit on which the short-term rental is located, measured in all directions 
from these property lines.  

B. Host.  Any person(s) who, or entity that, is the owner of record of residential real property on which 
a dwelling unit, or portion thereof, is offered for short-term rental either through a hosting platform or 
individually as an operator.  

C. Hosting platform.  A means through which a host may offer a dwelling unit, or portion thereof, for 
short-term rental. A hosting platform includes, but is not limited to, an internet-based platform that allows 
a host to advertise and potentially arrange for temporary occupation of the dwelling unit, or portion thereof, 
through a publicly searchable website, whether the short-term renter pays rent directly to the host or to the 
hosting platform.  

D. Hosted short-term rental.  A short-term rental for which the host resides and maintains a physical 
presence during the short-term rental period, including being present on the property between the hours of 
10:00 p.m. and 6:00 a.m. each day of the short-term rental period. 

E. Short-term rental. The use or possession of or the right to use or possess any dwelling unit, or 
portions thereof in any dwelling unit, for residing, sleeping, or lodging purposes for less than thirty (30) 
consecutive calendar days, counting portions of days as full calendar days.  

F. Short-term renter. A person who exercises occupancy or is entitled to occupancy by reason of 
concession, permit, right of access, license, or other agreement for a period of less than thirty (30) 
consecutive calendar days, counting portions of calendar days as full calendar days.  

G. Unhosted short-term rental.  A short-term rental where the Host does not occupy a portion of the 
dwelling unit that is offered for a short-term rental during the period of the short-term rental (or does not 
occupy another dwelling unit located on the same property where the short-term rental is located during the 
period of the short-term rental). 
 
18.55.03 Permitted use - hosted short-term rentals 

Hosted short-term rental uses shall be permitted in all residential zones in the City of Guadalupe subject to 
the requirements of this Chapter, including compliance with the operating standards, registration provisions, 
transient occupancy tax payments, and recordkeeping obligations, unless such short-term rentals are 
specifically prohibited by conditions, covenants, and restrictions and/or by any rules adopted by a 
homeowners or community association that apply to the property owner and prohibit the Host from using 
the property as a short-term rental.  
 
18.55.04 Administrative use permit required for unhosted short-term rentals 

Unhosted short-term rental uses shall be allowed in all residential zones in the City of Guadalupe subject 
to obtaining an administrative use permit as provided in Chapter 18.72 in addition to compliance with the 



operating standards, registration requirements, transient occupancy tax payments, and recordkeeping 
obligations, unless such short-term rentals are specifically prohibited by conditions, covenants, and 
restrictions that apply to the property and/or by any rules adopted by a homeowners or community 
association that apply to the property owner and prohibit the Host from using the property as a short-term 
rental.  
 

18.55.05 Registration Application and Annual Renewal. 

A. Registration and Annual Renewal.  
1. Application. Prior to advertising or making available any residence for short-term rents, Hosts shall 

register the residence as a short-term rental with the City. This registration shall be submitted on a form 
prepared by the City and shall include the name and contact information of the Host, the address of the 
dwelling unit(s) being used for short-term rental, the contact information for the local contact person, an 
acknowledgement of compliance with the requirements of the City's Zoning Ordinance, Municipal Codes, 
applicable health and safety standards, and other information as requested. If the application is for an 
Unhosted short-term rental, an administrative use permit as provided in Chapter 18.72 must be obtained 
prior to submitting the application, or such application will be rejected or deemed incomplete. 

2. Fee. The registration form shall be accompanied by a filing fee in an amount established by 
resolution of the City Council and updated from time to time.  

3. Application Completeness. The submitted information shall be used to determine whether to 
register the short-term rental. The Host will be notified if an application is incomplete. If the Host fails to 
timely submit the required information or fees necessary to complete the application, the application shall 
be deemed withdrawn. An application will expire (90) days after submission unless extended by the City 
Administrator upon a showing of good cause.  If an application is incomplete and fees have been submitted, 
they will only be refunded if City staff does not review the application.   

4. Decision. The City Administrator or designee shall be responsible for deciding short-term rental 
registration applications. After an application is deemed complete, registration shall be approved where:  

a. The Host demonstrates the ability to meet the requirements of this Chapter.  
b. The subject dwelling unit is not the subject of an active code compliance order or administrative 

citation from the City in the past twelve (12) months.  
c. A short-term rental registration for the dwelling unit has not been denied or revoked in the prior 

twelve (12) month period.  
d. An administrative use permit has been obtained if the short-term rental is an Unhosted short-term 

rental property.  
B. Validity. An approved registration shall be valid and payable on a fiscal year basis. An approved 

registration shall be personal to the Host and shall automatically expire upon sale or transfer of the dwelling 
unit. No registration may be assigned, transferred, or loaned to any other person.  

6. Annual Renewal. A registration may be renewed annually upon payment of registration renewal 
fees and all required transient occupancy tax remittance associated with the short-term rental. The Host 
shall submit such information concerning the short-term rental activity as may be required to verify the 
amount of tax paid. Failure to renew prior to the expiration date will result in expiration of the registration.  

C. Requirements Not Exclusive. The issuance of a short-term rental registration shall not relieve any 
person of the obligation to comply with all other provisions of this Code applicable to the use and occupancy 
of the property.  
 
 



18.55.05 Operating standards and requirements.  

The following operating standards and requirements shall apply to short-term rentals:  
A. Legal Dwelling.  Short-term rentals may only occur within legal dwelling units with no open code 

compliance cases.  
B. Business license:  Any property used as a short-term rental requires approval of a City business 

license. 

C.  One Short-Term Rental Allowed Per Host:  The same Host may only operate one short-term rental 
in the City of Guadalupe. 

C. Annual Limit. A dwelling unit may be occupied as an Unhosted short-term rental for no more than 
one hundred twenty (120) days per calendar year. There is no limit on the number of days a primary 
residence may be occupied as a short-term rental where the Host is present. For purposes of this Chapter, a 
Host is considered present when they are on the premises at all times between the hours of 10:00 p.m. and 
6:00 a.m.  

D. Local Contact Person. For Unhosted short-term rentals, Hosts shall identify to all guests and all 
occupants of neighboring properties a local contact person to be available twenty-four (24) hours per day, 
seven (7) days per week during the term of any unhosted stay. The designated local contact person shall:  

1. Respond within sixty (60) minutes to complaints regarding the condition or operation of the 
dwelling unit or the conduct of guests; and  

2. Take remedial action to resolve such complaints.  
E. Parking. No additional parking shall be required for short-term rentals. Existing on-site parking 

spaces shall be made available to short-term renters.   
F. Special event. Weddings, corporate events, commercial functions, and any other similar events 

which have the potential to cause traffic, parking, noise, or other problems in the neighborhood are 
prohibited from occurring at the short-term rental property, as a component of short-term rental activities.  

G. Administrative policy. The City Administrator or designee shall have the authority to develop 
administrative policies to implement the intent of this Section.  

H. Transient occupancy tax (TOT). Transient occupancy taxes must be collected for short-term rentals 
and paid to the City pursuant to Chapter 3.20 of the Guadalupe Municipal Code.  Collection of transient 
occupancy taxes for short-term rentals shall be the responsibility of the Host. The hosting platform shall 
collect TOT if the City and the hosting platform have entered into a voluntary collection agreement (or 
equivalent) with the City.  

I. Records of compliance. The Host shall retain records documenting the compliance with these 
requirements for a period of three (3) years after each period of short-term rental, including but not limited 
to records showing payment of transient occupancy taxes by a hosting platform on behalf of a Host. Upon 
request and reasonable notice, the host shall provide any such documentation to City for the purpose of 
inspection or audit to the City Administrator or his/her designee.  

J. Violations. 
1. Notice of Violation. The City may issue a notice of violation to any occupant, owner(s) or operator, 

pursuant to this Chapter or this Code, if there is any violation of this Chapter committed, caused or 
maintained by any of the above parties. 

2. Administrative Citation. The City may issue an administrative citation to the property owner(s) 
pursuant to Chapter 1.11 of this Code if there is any violation of this Chapter or this Code committed, 
caused, or maintained.  Nothing in this section shall preclude the City from also issuing an infraction or 
misdemeanor citation upon the occurrence of the same offense on the same day to any occupant, owner(s) 
or the operator.  Unless otherwise provided herein, any person issued an administrative citation shall for 



each separate violation be subject to an administrative fine in an amount not to exceed one thousand dollars.  
3. Criminal Citation.  The City may issue an infraction or misdemeanor citation to any occupant, 

owner(s) or operator, pursuant to the provisions set forth in Section 1.08.020 (Infractions) or  Section 
1.08.030 (Misdemeanors) for Municipal Code violations. 

K. Revocation of registration. A short-term rental registration issued under the provisions of this 
Chapter may be revoked by the Planning Director after notice and hearing as provided for in this section, 
for any of the following reasons:  

a. Fraud, misrepresentation, or false statements contained in the application;  
b. Fraud, misrepresentation, or false statements made in the course of carrying on a short-term rental 

as regulated by this Chapter;  
c. Any violation of any provision of this Chapter or of any provision of this Code; or  
d. Any violation of any provision of federal, state or local laws.  
2. Revocation hearing. Before revoking a short-term rental registration, the Planning Director or 

designee shall give the responsible Host notice in writing of the proposed revocation and of the grounds 
thereunder, and also of the time and place at which the Host will be given a reasonable opportunity to show 
cause why the registration should not be revoked. The notice may be served personally upon the Host or 
may be mailed to the host at the last known address or at any address shown upon the application at least 
ten (10) days prior to the date of the hearing. Upon conclusion of the hearing the Planning Director or 
designee may, for the grounds set forth herein, revoke the registration.  

3. Appeal from denial or revocation of registration. Any Host whose application has been denied or 
registration has been revoked by the Director or designee shall have the right to an administrative appeal 
before the City Council. An appeal shall be filed in writing on a form provided by the City stating the 
grounds therefor within ten (10) days of the decision. The City Council shall hold a hearing thereon within 
a reasonable time and the decision shall be final. 

4. Waiting period. Any Host whose registration has been denied or revoked shall be ineligible from 
applying for a new registration for a twenty-four-month period.  

L.  Amnesty period for short-term rentals. Notwithstanding any other provision of law, short-term 
rentals operating on or before the enactment of this Chapter shall be considered existing, unpermitted uses. 
An amnesty period of one (1) year after the effective date of the ordinance from which this Chapter is 
derived is being offered to allow these existing, unpermitted uses to be legalized by conforming to the 
requirements of this Chapter, including, but not limited to, compliance with operating standards and 
requirements, registration, and recordkeeping obligations, and obtaining of an administrative use permit for 
any Unhosted short-term rentals. Transient occupancy tax payments are required for short-term rentals and 
must be collected and paid during the amnesty period. Applications to bring an existing, unpermitted short-
term rental use into compliance shall be made on or before one (1) year after the effective date of the 
ordinance from which this Chapter is derived. Existing short-term rental uses that do not conform to the 
requirements of this Chapter shall cease operation within one year of the effective date of the ordinance 
from which this Chapter is derived and shall be prohibited from resuming unless and until the use conforms 
to the requirements of this Chapter. 
 
SECTION 2.   Section 18.20.020 of Title 18, Chapter 18.20 of the Guadalupe Municipal Code is 
hereby amended to read as follows: 
 
18.20.020 Permitted uses. 
 

Permitted uses in the R-1 district include: 



A.    One single-family dwelling; the dwelling shall be of a permanent character, placed upon a 
permanent foundation, and shall not be a mobile home or other temporary or vehicular type of dwelling; 

B.     Accessory buildings or uses, such as garages, patios, swimming pools or storage sheds, which 
are normally incidental to a single-family residence if constructed simultaneously with or subsequent to the 
main building on the same lot; 

C.     The storage of recreational (trailer) vehicles within the rear yard provided that said vehicle is 
located a minimum of 5 feet from all property lines and structures; 

D.    The storage of recreational (trailer) vehicles within the side yard (or street side yard of corner 
lots) provided that all of the design standards contained in Municipal Code Section 18.60.035 can be met; 

E.     Group dwellings with 6 or fewer residents, such as boardinghouses, family care homes, rest 
homes, convalescent homes, or other similar residential uses, provided that there shall not be more than one 
residing occupant for each 500 square feet of land within the lot or parcel on which the dwellings are 
located; 

F.     A minimum of 60% of the rear yard area shall be retained for landscaping. Storage of RVs, boats, 
trailers and other vehicles shall be stored on a paved surface for which zoning clearance is required; 

G.    Small family daycares; 
H.    Large family daycares, provided that no large family daycare is closer than 300 feet from another; 
I.      Home occupations; 
J.      Keeping household pets.; 
K. Hosted short-term rentals as permitted by Section 18.55.03. 
 

SECTION 3.  Section 18.20.030 of Title 18, Chapter 18.20 of the Guadalupe Municipal Code is 
hereby amended to read as follows: 
 
18.20.030 Conditional uses. 
        Uses permitted subject to obtaining a conditional use permit, or an administrative use permit when 
allowed, in the R-1 district include: 
        A.    A church, public or private elementary school, park, playground, public utility building or public 
building, along with required parking; 
        B.     Accessory buildings or uses normally incidental to a single-family residence, if constructed or 
installed prior to the main building on the same lot; 
        C.     Employee housing as defined by Section 18.08.328 of this title, where accommodations are 
provided to 7 or more employees in a dwelling unit, or on a single parcel if there is also an accessory 
dwelling unit and/or a junior accessory dwelling unit in addition to the primary dwelling unit on the parcel. 

D. Unhosted short-term rentals as permitted by Section 18.55.04. 
 
SECTION 4.  Section 18.21.020 of Title 18, Chapter 18.21 of the Guadalupe Municipal Code 
(regarding R-1 (SP) Residential Single Family – Low Density (Specific Plan)) is hereby amended to 
read as follows: 
 
18.21.040 Permitted uses.  

Permitted uses are limited to those outlined in the adopted specific plan, and short-term rentals as 
permitted by Sections 18.55.03 and 18.55.04.  For the DJ Farms specific plan, schools and public parks are 
permitted. 



 

SECTION 5.  Section 18.24.030 of Title 18, Chapter 18.24 of the Guadalupe Municipal Code (R-1-
M Single-Family (Medium-Density) Residential District) is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 
18.24.030 Conditional uses. 
        Uses permitted subject to obtaining a conditional use permit, or an administrative use permit when 
allowed, in the R-1-M district shall be the same as those listed in Section 18.20.030 for the R-1 district. 
 
 
SECTION 6.  Section 18.28.020 of Title 18, Chapter 18.28 of the Guadalupe Municipal Code (R-2 
Multiple Dwelling (Medium-Density) Residential District) is hereby amended to read as follows: 
  
18.28.020 Permitted uses. 

  Uses permitted in the R-2 district include: 
A. One or more single-family or multiple-family dwellings, including apartment houses or 

condominiums, provided that there shall be no more than one dwelling unit for each 3,000 square feet of 
land within the lot or parcel on which the dwelling is located. All dwellings shall be of a permanent 
character, placed upon a permanent foundation, and shall not be a mobile home or other temporary or 
vehicular type of dwelling; 

B. All multiple units in R-2 medium-density residential zones placed on one lot must be attached; 

C. Group dwellings with 6 or fewer residents, such as boardinghouses, family care homes, rest homes, 
convalescent homes, or other similar residential uses, provided that there shall not be more than one residing 
occupant for each 500 square feet of land within the lot or parcel on which the dwellings are located; 

D. Accessory buildings or uses, only if constructed simultaneously with, or subsequent to, the main 
building on the same lot; 

E. Public park or playground; 

F. A minimum of 60% of the rear yard area shall be retained for landscaping. Storage of RVs, boats, 
trailers and other vehicles shall be stored on a paved surface for which zoning clearance is required; 

G. Hosted short-term rentals as permitted by Section 18.55.03.  

 
SECTION 7.  Section 18.28.030 of Title 18, Chapter 18.28 of the Guadalupe Municipal Code (R-2 
Multiple Dwelling (Medium-Density) Residential District) is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 
18.28.030 Conditional uses. 

 Uses permitted subject to obtaining a conditional use permit, or an administrative use permit when 
allowed, in the R-2 district include: 

A. Group dwellings with more than 6 residents, such as boardinghouses, family care homes, rest 
homes, convalescent homes, or other similar residential uses, provided that such a group dwelling shall not 
be located within 300 feet of the boundaries of a parcel containing another group dwelling, unless a 
conditional use permit is issued on the basis that waiver of such separation requirement would not be 
materially detrimental or injurious to the property, improvements or uses in the immediate vicinity; 



B. A church, public or private elementary school, public utility building or public building, along with 
required parking; 

C. Accessory buildings or uses normally incidental to a single-family residence, if constructed or 
installed prior to the main building on the same lot; 

D. A home occupation; 

E. Employee housing as defined by Section 18.08.328 of this title, where accommodations are 
provided to 7 or more employees in a dwelling unit, or on a single parcel if there is also an accessory 
dwelling unit and/or a junior accessory dwelling unit in addition to the primary dwelling unit on the parcel; 

F. Unhosted short-term rentals as permitted by Section 18.55.04. 

SECTION 8.  Section 18.32.020 of Title 18, Chapter 18.32 of the Guadalupe Municipal Code (R-3 
Multiple Dwelling (High-Density) Residential District) is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 
18.32.020 Permitted uses.  

Uses permitted in the R-3 district include: 
A.    One or more single-family or multiple-family dwellings, including apartment houses or 

condominiums, providing there shall be no more than one dwelling unit for each 1,700 square feet of land 
in the lot or parcel on which the dwellings are located; 

B.     Group dwellings with 6 or fewer residents, such as boardinghouses, family care homes, rest 
homes, convalescent homes, or other similar residential uses, provided that there shall not be more than one 
residing occupant for each 500 square feet of land within the lot or parcel on which the dwellings are 
located; 

C.     Offices, recreation facilities, dining rooms, laundry facilities and other incidental uses 
constructed simultaneously or subsequent to the main building on the same lot; 

D.    A church, public or private school, public building, public utility building, park or playground;  
E.     A minimum of 60% of the rear yard area shall be retained for landscaping. Storage of RVs, 

boats, trailers and other vehicles shall be stored on a paved surface for which zoning clearance is required.; 
F. Hosted short-term rentals as permitted by Section 18.55.03. 
 

SECTION 9.  Section 18.32.030 of Title 18, Chapter 18.32 of the Guadalupe Municipal Code (R-3 
Multiple Dwelling (High-Density) Residential District) is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 
18.32.030 Conditional uses. 

 Uses permitted subject to obtaining a conditional use permit, or an administrative use permit when 
allowed, in the R-3 district include: 

A. Mobile home parks or recreational vehicle parks; 

B. Mortuaries; 

C. A home occupation; 

D. Group dwellings with more than 6 occupants, such as hotels, motels, boardinghouses, family care 
homes, rest homes, convalescent homes or other similar residential uses, provided that such a group 
dwelling shall not be located within 300 feet of the boundaries of a parcel containing another group 



dwelling, unless a conditional use permit is issued on the basis that waiver of such separation requirement 
would not be materially detrimental or injurious to the property, improvements or uses in the immediate 
vicinity; 

E. Accessory buildings or uses normally incidental to one of the uses permitted above, if constructed 
or installed prior to the main building on the same lot; 

F. Employee housing as defined by Section 18.08.328 of this title, where accommodations are 
provided to 7 or more employees in a dwelling unit, or on a single parcel if there is also an accessory 
dwelling unit and/or a junior accessory dwelling unit in addition to the primary dwelling unit on the parcel; 

G. Unhosted short-term rentals as permitted by Section 18.55.04. 

 
SECTION 10.  Sections 18.72.150 through 18.72.20 of Chapter 18.72 of Title 18 of the Guadalupe 
Municipal Code are hereby amended to read as follows: 
 
18.72.150 Issuance conditions. 
        Administrative use permits (AUP) when required or allowed by this Code are limited to permit 
applications for an accessory dwelling unit and shall be issued only if the findings identified in Section 
18.72.190 can be made. The Planning Director or designee shall impose such conditions as deemed 
necessary to serve the purposes of this title, and may require tangible guarantees or evidence that such 
conditions are being or will be complied with.  
  
18.72.160 Application—Information RequiredProperty Owner(s). 
        Application for an AUP shall be made in writing by the majority property owner(s).  A copy of the 
application for an accessory dwelling unit (ADU) may be considered the official application for an AUP at 
the discretion of the Planning Director or designee.  
  
18.72.170 Application fee. 
        No additional A fee shall be required to process an AUP once the ADU processing fee has been in an 
amount established by resolution of the City Council and updated from time to time.  
  
18.72.180 Application—Director determination. 
        Upon receipt of the application for an administrative use permit and payment of the application deposit, 
the Planning Director or designee shall evaluate the request and determine if the findings listed in Section 
18.72.090 can be made to approve the request.  
  
18.72.190 Findings for approval. 

A. In order to approve an administrative use permit, under Section 18.53.080 to waive any 
development standard or other requirement set forth in Section 18.53.050 the Planning Director or designee 
shall make specific findings that granting the waiver will meet the purposes of Chapter 18.53 (Accessory 
Dwelling Units) and this title and the administrative use permit will not be detrimental to public health and 
safety, introduce unreasonable adverse impacts to the immediate neighbors, and would not overburden 
sewer and water services, or overburden traffic flow or parking. 



        B.     In order to deny an administrative use permit under Section 18.53.080, the Planning Director or 
designee shall find that the ADU would be detrimental to the public health and safety, would introduce 
unreasonable adverse impacts to the immediate neighbors, would overburden sewer and water services, or 
overburden traffic flow.  
  
18.72.200 Administrative hearing. 
        Prior to issuing an administrative use permit under this cChapter, the Planning Director or designee 
shall cause an administrative hearing to be noticed and held in the following manner: 
        A.    Notice of Hearing. Notice of a public hearing shall contain the information required by 
Government Code Section 65094 and any additional information the Director deems appropriate. In 
addition, the notice shall declare that the application for the administrative use permit will be acted on 
without a public hearing if no request for a hearing is made. 
        B.     Method of Notice/Distribution. Notice of public hearings shall be given as provided by 
Government Code Section 65091. 
        C.     Public Hearing. A public hearing on an administrative use permit shall occur only when a hearing 
is requested by the applicant or other interested person(s). This request shall be made in writing to the 
Planning Director or designee no later than seven (7) days after the date of the public notice. In the event a 
public hearing is requested, the hearing on the administrative use permit shall be held on the date and time 
as defined in the public notice. At the request of the project applicant and/or at the discretion of the Planning 
Director or designee, a public hearing may be continued from time to time, but notice of the further hearings 
may be required to be provided again in the same manner as provided by subsection A. All costs associated 
with noticing shall be borne by the property owner. 
        D.    Conduct of Hearing. At the public hearing, interested persons may present information and 
testimony relevant to a decision on the proposed AUP. 
        E.     Final Decision. Immediately after the conclusion of public testimony in the case of a public 
hearing, or no sooner than the date of the meeting specified in the public notice required by subsection A, 
the Planning Director or designee shall announce the final decision, continue the decision to a future date, 
or announce that the matter will be referred to the City Council for a final decision.  
 
SECTION 6. This Ordinance has been reviewed for compliance with the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), and the CEQA guidelines, and has been found to be exempt 
pursuant to §15306 of the CEQA Guidelines (Information Collection) because it does not have the 
potential to create a physical environmental effect. 
 
SECTION 7. The City Council declares that each section, subsection, paragraph, subparagraph, 
sentence, clause, and phrase of this Ordinance is severable and independent of every other 
section, subsection, paragraph, subparagraph, sentence, clause, and phrase of this Ordinance.  If 
any section, subsection, paragraph, subparagraph, sentence, clause, or phrase of this Ordinance 
is held invalid, the City Council declares it would have adopted the remaining provisions of this 
Ordinance irrespective of the portion held invalid, and further declares its express intent that the 
remaining portions of this Ordinance should remain in effect after the invalid portion has been 
eliminated. 
 
SECTION 8. The City Clerk is hereby authorized to make minor changes herein to address 
clerical errors, so long as substantial conformance of the intent of this document is 



maintained.  In doing so, the City Clerk shall consult with the City Administrator and City Attorney 
concerning any changes deemed necessary. 

 
INTRODUCED at a regular meeting of the City Council on the 28th day of September 2021, by the 
following vote: 
 
MOTION:  
 
AYES:   
NOES:       
ABSENT:     
ABSTAINED:  
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED at the regular meeting of the City Council on the  12th day of  October 2021, 
by the following roll call vote: 
 
MOTION:   
 
AYES:     
NOES:     
ABSENT:     
ABSTAINED:  
 
ATTEST: 
 
__________________________________   ______________________________ 
Amelia M. Villegas, City Clerk     Ariston Julian, Mayor 
 
 
APPROVED AS IS TO FORM: 
 
___________________________________ 
Philip F. Sinco, City Attorney 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


	CC Agenda 9 28 2021
	6 Comprehensive Guadalupe Ordinance Presentation 8-9-2021
	8B Warrants
	8C CC Minutes 8-26-2021 Special Meeting
	8D CC Minutes 09 14 2021
	8E Los Amigos de Guadalupe Amended Scope of Work and Budget
	Staff Report LADG Amended Scope and Budget 9-28-2021 (City Atty Rev-changes accepted)
	Agenda of September 28, 2021

	LADG Amendment Exhibit A  B 9-28-2021
	LADG Subrecipient Agreement

	8F 1a Police Report - August 2021
	8F 1b Fire Department Monthly Report August 2021
	SUBJECT:  MONTHLY SUMMARY OF CODE ENFORCEMENT CASES
	CALLS FOR SERVICE         AUGUST  2021
	CODE COMPLIANCE CASES    AUGUST 2021

	Last Month
	This Month
	Year to date
	Medical 
	Structure Fire
	Cooking Fire
	Trash or Rubbish Fire
	Vehicle Fire
	Grass/Vegetation Fire
	Other Fire       
	Motor Vehicle Accidents with Injuries   

	Year to Date
	INCIDENT TYPE
	Last Month
	This Month
	Year to date
	Abatement of Weeds and Rubbish (GMC 8.16.010)
	Address Number (GMC 15.08.020 (505.1))

	Year to Date
	INCIDENT TYPE
	Year to date
	Year to Date

	8F 1c Code Compliance Report August 2021
	8F 2 HR Monthly Report August 2021
	HRMonthlyRptJAug2021.pdf
	FIRE OT.pdf
	Company Nurse 1.855.339.1895.pdf

	8F 3 City Treasurer's Report August 2021
	11 Mayor's Update
	City Projects Updates 9-28-2021
	Attachment 1 Project Hero California Challenge Permit_2021-09-22

	12 Staff Report Council Appointments Temp Ad Hoc Committee 9-28-2021
	Agenda of September 28, 2021

	13 Short Term Rentals Ordinance
	Staff report re short-term rental 9 28 21
	Agenda of September 28, 2021
	The City is required to approve the registration if:
	 The property owner demonstrates the ability to meet all Municipal Code requirements;
	 The subject dwelling unit is not the subject of an active code compliance order or administrative citation from the City in the past twelve months;
	 A short-term rental registration for the dwelling unit has not been denied or revoked in the prior twenty-four-month period, and
	 An administrative use permit has been obtained if the short-term rental is an Unhosted short-term rental property.
	An approved registration shall not be transferable to any other person and shall automatically expire upon sale or transfer of the dwelling unit.
	Upon registration, all short-term rentals are required to meet the following operating standards:
	 May only occur within legal dwelling units;
	 On-site parking spaces shall be made available to short-term renters;
	 Special events such as weddings, corporate events, commercial functions, and any other similar events which have the potential to cause traffic, parking, noise, or other problems in the neighborhood are prohibited;
	 Transient occupancy tax (TOT) must be collected;
	 Records documenting the compliance with these requirements must be retained for a period of three (3) years after each period of short-term rental (including records showing payment of transient occupancy taxes) and upon reasonable notice, such docu...
	 For unhosted short-term rentals, a local contact person shall be identified to all guests and all occupants of neighboring properties to be available twenty-four (24) hours per day, seven (7) days per week during the term of any unhosted stay. The d...
	The proposed ordinance also provides for enforcement and penalties for violations.   Any short-term rental registration may be revoked by the Planning Director after notice and hearing for any of the following reasons:
	 Fraud, misrepresentation, or false statements contained in the application or made in the course of carrying on a short-term rental;
	 Any violation of any provision of the Municipal Code; or
	 Any violation of any provision of federal, or state laws.
	Before revoking a short-term rental registration, the Planning Director or designee shall give the property owner notice of the grounds for the proposed revocation and also of the time and place for the hearing.  Any property owner whose application h...
	Any property whose registration has been denied or revoked shall be ineligible from applying for a new registration for a twelve (12) month period.
	Finally, the proposed ordinance offers a one-year amnesty period for all short-term rentals operating on or before the enactment of this Chapter to allow these existing, unpermitted uses to be legalized by conforming to the requirements of the ordinan...

	Ordinance No. 2021-497 Guadalupe Short-Term Rental Ordinance 9 28 21
	WHEREAS, the City of Guadalupe has a number of existing, unpermitted, dwelling units being used as short-term rentals defined as any occupancy of less than thirty (30) consecutive days; and
	WHEREAS, the City Council also intends that short-term rental regulations that allow limited short-term rentals not violate any private conditions, covenants, and restrictions or rules of a homeowners or community association applicable to the owner’s...
	The purpose of this section is to:
	A. Allow limited short-term rental uses while preserving residential character and establish operating standards to reduce potential noise, parking, traffic, property maintenance, safety, and other impacts on adjacent neighbors; and
	B. Provide a process to track and enforce these requirements as needed and ensure appropriate collection of transient occupancy taxes.
	C. Prohibit all short-term rentals except as provided for in this Chapter.
	18.55.02 Definitions.
	For purposes of this section, the following definitions shall apply:
	A. Neighboring properties.  The dwelling units located on any properties within 100 feet of the property lines where the dwelling unit on which the short-term rental is located, measured in all directions from these property lines.
	B. Host.  Any person(s) who, or entity that, is the owner of record of residential real property on which a dwelling unit, or portion thereof, is offered for short-term rental either through a hosting platform or individually as an operator.
	C. Hosting platform.  A means through which a host may offer a dwelling unit, or portion thereof, for short-term rental. A hosting platform includes, but is not limited to, an internet-based platform that allows a host to advertise and potentially arr...
	F. Short-term renter. A person who exercises occupancy or is entitled to occupancy by reason of concession, permit, right of access, license, or other agreement for a period of less than thirty (30) consecutive calendar days, counting portions of cale...
	18.55.03 Permitted use - hosted short-term rentals
	18.55.04 Administrative use permit required for unhosted short-term rentals
	18.55.05 Registration Application and Annual Renewal.
	A. Registration and Annual Renewal.
	1. Application. Prior to advertising or making available any residence for short-term rents, Hosts shall register the residence as a short-term rental with the City. This registration shall be submitted on a form prepared by the City and shall include...
	2. Fee. The registration form shall be accompanied by a filing fee in an amount established by resolution of the City Council and updated from time to time.
	3. Application Completeness. The submitted information shall be used to determine whether to register the short-term rental. The Host will be notified if an application is incomplete. If the Host fails to timely submit the required information or fees...
	4. Decision. The City Administrator or designee shall be responsible for deciding short-term rental registration applications. After an application is deemed complete, registration shall be approved where:
	a. The Host demonstrates the ability to meet the requirements of this Chapter.
	b. The subject dwelling unit is not the subject of an active code compliance order or administrative citation from the City in the past twelve (12) months.
	c. A short-term rental registration for the dwelling unit has not been denied or revoked in the prior twelve (12) month period.
	d. An administrative use permit has been obtained if the short-term rental is an Unhosted short-term rental property.
	B. Validity. An approved registration shall be valid and payable on a fiscal year basis. An approved registration shall be personal to the Host and shall automatically expire upon sale or transfer of the dwelling unit. No registration may be assigned,...
	6. Annual Renewal. A registration may be renewed annually upon payment of registration renewal fees and all required transient occupancy tax remittance associated with the short-term rental. The Host shall submit such information concerning the short-...
	C. Requirements Not Exclusive. The issuance of a short-term rental registration shall not relieve any person of the obligation to comply with all other provisions of this Code applicable to the use and occupancy of the property.
	18.55.05 Operating standards and requirements.
	The following operating standards and requirements shall apply to short-term rentals:
	A. Legal Dwelling.  Short-term rentals may only occur within legal dwelling units with no open code compliance cases.
	D. Local Contact Person. For Unhosted short-term rentals, Hosts shall identify to all guests and all occupants of neighboring properties a local contact person to be available twenty-four (24) hours per day, seven (7) days per week during the term of ...
	1. Respond within sixty (60) minutes to complaints regarding the condition or operation of the dwelling unit or the conduct of guests; and
	2. Take remedial action to resolve such complaints.
	E. Parking. No additional parking shall be required for short-term rentals. Existing on-site parking spaces shall be made available to short-term renters.
	F. Special event. Weddings, corporate events, commercial functions, and any other similar events which have the potential to cause traffic, parking, noise, or other problems in the neighborhood are prohibited from occurring at the short-term rental pr...
	G. Administrative policy. The City Administrator or designee shall have the authority to develop administrative policies to implement the intent of this Section.
	H. Transient occupancy tax (TOT). Transient occupancy taxes must be collected for short-term rentals and paid to the City pursuant to Chapter 3.20 of the Guadalupe Municipal Code.  Collection of transient occupancy taxes for short-term rentals shall b...
	I. Records of compliance. The Host shall retain records documenting the compliance with these requirements for a period of three (3) years after each period of short-term rental, including but not limited to records showing payment of transient occupa...
	J. Violations.
	K. Revocation of registration. A short-term rental registration issued under the provisions of this Chapter may be revoked by the Planning Director after notice and hearing as provided for in this section, for any of the following reasons:
	a. Fraud, misrepresentation, or false statements contained in the application;
	b. Fraud, misrepresentation, or false statements made in the course of carrying on a short-term rental as regulated by this Chapter;
	c. Any violation of any provision of this Chapter or of any provision of this Code; or
	d. Any violation of any provision of federal, state or local laws.
	2. Revocation hearing. Before revoking a short-term rental registration, the Planning Director or designee shall give the responsible Host notice in writing of the proposed revocation and of the grounds thereunder, and also of the time and place at wh...
	3. Appeal from denial or revocation of registration. Any Host whose application has been denied or registration has been revoked by the Director or designee shall have the right to an administrative appeal before the City Council. An appeal shall be f...
	4. Waiting period. Any Host whose registration has been denied or revoked shall be ineligible from applying for a new registration for a twenty-four-month period.
	L.  Amnesty period for short-term rentals. Notwithstanding any other provision of law, short-term rentals operating on or before the enactment of this Chapter shall be considered existing, unpermitted uses. An amnesty period of one (1) year after the ...

	Blank Page


	phone: 1-855-339-1895
	employer name: 
 City of Guadalupe
	code: QT418


